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Relatério do auditor independente sobre as demonstragdes financeiras
individuais e consolidadas

Aos Administradores e Acionistas da
LOG Commercial Properties e Participagoes S.A.
Belo Horizonte - MG

Opiniao

Examinamos as demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas da LOG Commercial
Properties e Participacdes S.A. (“Companhia”), identificadas como individual e consolidado,
respectivamente, que compreendem o balan¢o patrimonial em 31 de dezembro de 2024 € as
respectivas demonstra¢des do resultado, do resultado abrangente, das mutacdes do patriménio
liquido e dos fluxos de caixa para o exercicio findo nessa data, bem como as correspondentes
notas explicativas, incluindo as politicas contabeis materiais e outras informacdes elucidativas.

Opinido sobre as demonstragées financeiras individuais

Em nossa opinido, as demonstracdes financeiras individuais acima referidas apresentam
adequadamente, em todos os aspectos relevantes, a posicédo patrimonial e financeira da
Companhia em 31 de dezembro de 2024, o desempenho de suas operacdes e os seus fluxos de
caixa para o exercicio findo nessa data, de acordo com as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil.

Opinido sobre as demonstragées financeiras consolidadas

Em nossa opinido, as demonstracdes financeiras consolidadas acima referidas apresentam
adequadamente, em todos os aspectos relevantes, a posicédo patrimonial e financeira
consolidada da Companhia em 31 de dezembro de 2024, o desempenho consolidado de suas
operacdes e os seus fluxos de caixa consolidados para o exercicio findo nessa data, de acordo
com as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil e com as normas internacionais de relatério
financeiro (IFRS) emitidas pelo International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (atualmente
denominadas pela Fundacéo IFRS como “normas contabeis IFRS”).

Base para opiniao

Nossa auditoria foi conduzida de acordo com as normas brasileiras e internacionais de auditoria.
Nossas responsabilidades, em conformidade com tais normas, estdo descritas na secdo a seguir,
intitulada “Responsabilidades do auditor pela auditoria das demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas”. Somos independentes em relacdo a Companhia e suas controladas, de acordo com os
principios éticos relevantes previstos no Cédigo de Etica Profissional do Contador e nas normas
profissionais emitidas pelo Conselho Federal de Contabilidade, e cumprimos com as demais
responsabilidades éticas de acordo com essas normas. Acreditamos que a evidéncia de auditoria
obtida é suficiente e apropriada para fundamentar nossa opinido.
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Principais assuntos de auditoria

Principais assuntos de auditoria s&o aqueles que, em nosso julgamento profissional, foram os mais
significativos em nossa auditoria do exercicio corrente. Esses assuntos foram tratados no contexto de
nossa auditoria das demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas como um todo € na
formacé&o de nossa opinido sobre essas demonstrac¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas e,
portanto, ndo expressamos uma opinido separada sobre esses assuntos. Para cada assunto abaixo,
a descricdo de como nossa auditoria tratou o assunto, incluindo quaisquer comentarios sobre os
resultados de nossos procedimentos, € apresentado no contexto das demonstracdes financeiras
tomadas em conjunto.

No6s cumprimos as responsabilidades descritas na sec¢éo intitulada “Responsabilidades do auditor
pela auditoria das demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas”, incluindo aquelas em
relacdo a esses principais assuntos de auditoria. Dessa forma, nossa auditoria incluiu a conducéo de
procedimentos planejados para responder a nossa avaliacédo de riscos de distor¢des significativas
nas demonstracdes financeiras. Os resultados de nossos procedimentos, incluindo aqueles
executados para tratar os assuntos abaixo, fornecem a base para nossa opinido de auditoria sobre as
demonstra¢des financeiras da Companhia.

Avaliagdo do valor justo das propriedades para investimento

Conforme divulgado nas notas explicativas 2.2 (¢) e 6 as demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas, a Companhia e suas controladas possuem propriedades para investimento, no
montante de R$1.020.308 mil e R$4.372.014 mil, individual e consolidado, respectivamente, em 31 de
dezembro de 2024, as quais sdo mensuradas ao valor justo utilizando-se da metodologia de fluxo de
caixa descontado, para empreendimentos em operacédo ou em estagio de construcdo, e pelo método
comparativo direto de dados de mercado, para os terrenos.

Este assunto foi considerado significativo para nossa auditoria tendo em vista a relevancia dos saldos
das propriedades para investimento em relac&o ao total do ativo da Companhia e dos efeitos dos
seus respectivos ajustes ao valor justo no resultado do exercicio, além das incertezas inerentes a
estimativa de valor justo, o julgamento associado e a determinac&o das principais premissas de
calculo. Uma mudanca em alguma dessas premissas poderia gerar um impacto relevante nas
demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas da Companhia.
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Como nossa auditoria conduziu esse assunto

Nossos procedimentos de auditoria incluiram, entre outros: (a) obtenc&o do entendimento do desenho
dos controles internos chave relacionados a determinac&o do valor justo das propriedades para
investimento; (b) utilizacdo de especialistas em modelos de valorizacdo para nos auxiliar na reviséo
da metodologia e dos modelos utilizados na mensurac¢&o do valor justo de uma amostra selecionada
das propriedades para investimento, incluindo a anélise da razoabilidade das premissas utilizadas e
da integridade dos dados sobre as propriedades fornecidos pela diretoria da Companhia e pelos
avaliadores externos; (c) avaliacdo da exatid&do e integridade das informacdes utilizadas nos calculos;

(d) realizacdo de uma reviséo retrospectiva de projecdes anteriores para identificar alguma potencial
inconsisténcia no desenvolvimento futuro das estimativas; e (e) realizac&o de calculo independente
sensibilizando as principais premissas utilizadas avaliando o comportamento do valor justo registrado,
considerando outros cenarios e premissas, com base em dados de mercado. Adicionalmente,
avaliamos a adequacéo das divulgacdes da Companhia sobre este assunto.

Baseados no resultado dos procedimentos de auditoria efetuados, que esta consistente com a
avaliacdo da diretoria, consideramos aceitaveis as estimativas preparadas pela diretoria para
avaliacdo a valor justo das propriedades para investimentos, assim como as respectivas divulgacdes
nas notas explicativas 2.2 (c) e 06, no contexto das demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas tomadas em conjunto.

Realizagdo de imposto de renda e contribuigdo social diferidos ativos

Conforme divulgado na nota explicativa 11 as demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas,
em 31 de dezembro de 2024, a Companhia possui saldo de imposto de renda e contribui¢c&o social
diferido ativo, no montante de R$114.024 mil, individual e consolidado, constituidos sobre diferencas
temporarias, prejuizo fiscal e base negativa de contribuicdo social.

Esse assunto foi considerado significativo para a nossa auditoria tendo em vista a relevancia dos
valores envolvidos, as incertezas inerentes ao negécio que impactam as projecdes de lucros
tributaveis futuros e o julgamento associado a determinac&o das premissas para determinar a
capacidade de recuperacéo desses impostos diferidos ativos e ao impacto que eventuais alteracdes
nas premissas poderiam causar no valor desses ativos nas demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas da Companhia.

Como nossa auditoria conduziu esse assunto

Nossos procedimentos de auditoria incluiram, entre outros: (a) obtencédo do entendimento do desenho
dos controles internos chave relacionados a preparacéo das projecdes de lucros tributaveis futuros
por parte da Companhia; (b) anélise da razoabilidade das premissas e avaliacdo da exatiddo e
integridade das informacdes utilizados pela diretoria da Companhia na preparacéo da analise de
realizac&do dos impostos diferidos ativos, por meio do confronto com planos de negécio, orcamentos
ou projetos ja iniciados e outras informacdes de mercado; (c) utilizacdo de especialistas tributarios
para nos auxiliar na revisdo da movimentacéo das diferencas temporarias e da base de calculo do
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lucro tributavel futuro projetado; (d) revisdo da movimentacéo histérica dos impostos diferidos ativos;
€ (e) analise de sensibilidade de premissas chave, para avaliar o comportamento da realizagc&o dos
impostos diferidos ativos nas projecdes com suas oscilacdes. Adicionalmente, avaliamos a
adequacéo das divulgacdes da Companhia sobre este assunto.

Baseados no resultado dos procedimentos de auditoria efetuados, que esta consistente com a
avaliacdo da diretoria, consideramos aceitaveis as estimativas preparadas pela diretoria para analise
de realizac&o dos créditos tributarios diferidos, assim como as respectivas divulgacdes nas notas
explicativas 2.2 (g) e 11, no contexto das demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas
tomadas em conjunto.

Outros assuntos
Demonstragbes do valor adicionado

As demonstracdes individual e consolidada do valor adicionado (DVA) referentes ao exercicio findo
em 31 de dezembro de 2024, elaboradas sob a responsabilidade da diretoria da Companhia, e
apresentadas como informac&o suplementar para fins de IFRS, foram submetidas a procedimentos
de auditoria executados em conjunto com a auditoria das demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas da Companhia. Para a formac&o de nossa opinido, avaliamos se essas demonstragdes
estéo conciliadas com as demonstra¢des financeiras e registros contabeis, conforme aplicavel, e se a
sua forma e conteudo estdo de acordo com os critérios definidos no Pronunciamento Técnico CPC 09
- Demonstrac&o do Valor Adicionado. Em nossa opinido, essas demonstracdes do valor adicionado,
individual e consolidada, foram adequadamente elaboradas, em todos os aspectos relevantes,
segundo os critérios definidos nesse Pronunciamento Técnico e sdo consistentes em relacéo as
demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas tomadas em conjunto.

Outras informacoes que acompanham as demonstracoes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas e o relatorio do auditor

A diretoria da Companhia é responsavel por essas outras informacdes que compreendem o Relatério
da administrac&o.

Nossa opinido sobre as demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas ndo abrange o
Relatorio da administracdo e ndo expressamos qualquer forma de conclusdo de auditoria sobre esse
relatério.

Em conexdo com a auditoria das demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e consolidadas, nossa
responsabilidade é a de ler o Relatério da administrac&o e, ao fazé-lo, considerar se esse relatoério
esta, de forma relevante, inconsistente com as demonstracées financeiras ou com nosso
conhecimento obtido na auditoria ou, de outra forma, aparenta estar distorcido de forma relevante.
Se, com base no trabalho realizado, concluirmos que ha distor¢c&o relevante no Relatério da
administrac&do, somos requeridos a comunicar esse fato. Ndo temos nada a relatar a este respeito.
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Responsabilidades da diretoria e da governanca pelas demonstracoes financeiras individuais
e consolidadas

A diretoria é responsavel pela elaboracédo e adequada apresentacdo das demonstra¢cdes financeiras
individuais de acordo com as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil e das demonstracdes financeiras
consolidadas de acordo com as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil e com as normas
internacionais de relatério financeiro (IFRS), emitidas pelo International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) (atualmente denominadas pela Fundac&o IFRS como “normas contabeis IFRS”), e pelos
controles internos que ela determinou como necessarios para permitir a elaboracéo de
demonstracdes financeiras livres de distorcéo relevante, independentemente se causada por fraude
ou erro.

Na elaboracdo das demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas, a diretoria é responsavel
pela avaliacdo da capacidade de a Companhia continuar operando, divulgando, quando aplicavel, os
assuntos relacionados com a sua continuidade operacional € o uso dessa base contabil na
elaboracdo das demonstracdes financeiras, a ndo ser que a diretoria pretenda liquidar a Companhia
ou cessar suas operacdes, ou nédo tenha nenhuma alternativa realista para evitar o encerramento das
operacdes.

Os responsaveis pela governanca da Companhia e suas controladas s&o aqueles com
responsabilidade pela supervisdo do processo de elaboracdo das demonstracdes financeiras.

Responsabilidades do auditor pela auditoria das demonstracoes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas

Nossos objetivos sdo obter seguranca razoavel de que as demonstracdes financeiras individuais e
consolidadas, tomadas em conjunto, estéo livres de distor¢do relevante, independentemente se
causada por fraude ou erro, e emitir relatério de auditoria contendo nossa opinido. Seguranca
razoavel € um alto nivel de seguranca, mas ndo uma garantia de que a auditoria realizada de acordo
com as normas brasileiras e internacionais de auditoria sempre detecta as eventuais distor¢des
relevantes existentes. As distor¢cdes podem ser decorrentes de fraude ou erro e s&o consideradas
relevantes quando, individualmente ou em conjunto, possam influenciar, dentro de uma perspectiva
razoavel, as decisfes econémicas dos usuarios tomadas com base nas referidas demonstracées
financeiras.
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Como parte da auditoria realizada de acordo com as normas brasileiras e internacionais de auditoria,
exercemos julgamento profissional e mantemos ceticismo profissional ao longo da auditoria. Além
disso:

¢ I|dentificamos e avaliamos os riscos de distor¢éo relevante nas demonstracdes financeiras
individuais e consolidadas, independentemente se causada por fraude ou erro, planejamos
e executamos procedimentos de auditoria em resposta a tais riscos, bem como obtemos
evidéncia de auditoria apropriada e suficiente para fundamentar nossa opinido. O risco de
néo deteccéo de distorcdo relevante resultante de fraude € maior do que o proveniente de
erro, ja que a fraude pode envolver o ato de burlar os controles internos, conluio,
falsificacdo, omissdo ou representacdes falsas intencionais.

¢ Obtemos entendimento dos controles internos relevantes para a auditoria para planejarmos
procedimentos de auditoria apropriados as circunstancias, mas ndo com o objetivo de
expressarmos opinido sobre a eficacia dos controles internos da Companhia e suas
controladas.

e Avaliamos a adequacéo das politicas contabeis utilizadas e a razoabilidade das
estimativas contabeis e respectivas divulgacdes feitas pela diretoria.

¢ Concluimos sobre a adequacé&o do uso, pela diretoria, da base contabil de continuidade
operacional €, com base nas evidéncias de auditoria obtidas, se existe incerteza relevante
em relacdo a eventos ou condi¢cdes que possam levantar duvida significativa em relac&o a
capacidade de continuidade operacional da Companhia. Se concluirmos que existe
incerteza relevante, devemos chamar aten¢cdo em nosso relatorio de auditoria para as
respectivas divulgacdes nas demonstracdes financeiras individuais e consolidadas ou
incluir modificacdo em nossa opinido, se as divulga¢cdes forem inadequadas. Nossas
conclusdes estdo fundamentadas nas evidéncias de auditoria obtidas até a data de nosso
relatorio. Todavia, eventos ou condi¢des futuras podem levar a Companhia a ndo mais se
manter em continuidade operacional.

e Avaliamos a apresentacdo geral, a estrutura e o contetido das demonstracdes
financeiras, inclusive as divulgacdes e se as demonstra¢des financeiras individuais e
consolidadas representam as correspondentes transacdes e os eventos de maneira
compativel com o objetivo de apresentacdo adequada:

Comunicamo-nos com 0s responsaveis pela governanca a respeito, entre outros aspectos, do
alcance planejado, da época da auditoria e das constatacdes significativas de auditoria, inclusive as
eventuais deficiéncias significativas nos controles internos que identificamos durante nossos
trabalhos.

Fornecemos também aos responsaveis pela governanca declaracdo de que cumprimos com as
exigéncias éticas relevantes, incluindo os requisitos aplicaveis de independéncia, e comunicamos
todos os eventuais relacionamentos ou assuntos que poderiam afetar, consideravelmente, nossa
independéncia, incluindo, quando aplicavel, as respectivas salvaguardas.
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Dos assuntos que foram objeto de comunicac&o com os responsaveis pela governanca,
determinamos aqueles que foram considerados como mais significativos na auditoria das
demonstracdes financeiras do exercicio corrente e que, dessa maneira, constituem os principais
assuntos de auditoria. Descrevemos esses assuntos em nosso relatorio de auditoria, a menos que lei
ou regulamento tenha proibido divulgac&o publica do assunto, ou quando, em circunstancias
extremamente raras, determinarmos que o assunto n&o deve ser comunicado em nosso relatério
porque as consequéncias adversas de tal comunicacdo podem, dentro de uma perspectiva razoavel,
superar os beneficios da comunicacdo para o interesse publico.

Belo Horizonte (MG), 05 de fevereiro de 2025.

ERNST & YOUNG
Auditores Independentes S/S Ltda.
CRC-SP015199/0

4
Bruno Costa Oliveira
Contador CRC-BA031359/0



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPACOES S.A.

O

BALANCOS PATRIMONIAIS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - RS

m
Nota explicativa
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Ativo

Ativo circulante

Caixa e equivalentes de caixa 3 226.237 396.515 224.507 389.057
Titulos e valores mobiliarios 3 297.358 127.721 188.831 87.438
Contas a receber 4 449.769 349.756 89.445 108.812
Estoques 6(d) 197.363 - - -
Impostos a recuperar 37.410 36.398 28.923 26.597
Despesas antecipadas 8.242 3.756 7.578 2.648
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 19 (a) - 16.676 - 16.676
Outros ativos 2.280 2.195 970 1.026
Total do ativo circulante 1.218.659 933.017 540.254 632.254

Ativo ndo circulante

Titulos e valores mobiliarios 3 237.675 229.352 236.089 228.581
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 19 (a) 53.358 55.922 53.358 55.922
Contas a receber 4 527.864 362.852 21.893 73.038
Créditos com empresas ligadas 18 - - 3.709 -
Despesas antecipadas 11.295 8.934 750 1.256
Impostos a recuperar 35.250 42.226 25.138 33.506
Imposto de renda e contribuigdo social diferidos 11 (b) 114.024 114.024 114.024 114.024
Outros ativos 18.379 20.292 29.936 22.522
Total do ativo realizavel a longo prazo 997.845 833.602 484.897 528.849
Investimento em controladas e controladas em conjunto 5 158.571 154.218 4.138.125 3.732.937
Propriedades para investimento 6(a) 4.372.014 4.308.118 1.020.308 964.667
Imobilizado 7 15.354 16.554 15.305 16.492
Intangivel 11.758 8.936 11.757 8.936
Total do ativo néo circulante 5.555.542 5.321.428 5.670.392 5.251.881
Total do ativo 6.774.201 6.254.445 6.210.646 5.884.135

Passivo e patriménio liquido
Passivo circulante

Fornecedores 70.243 58.418 8.409 8.627
Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 8 243.042 240.843 240.796 240.843
Contas a pagar por aquisi¢do de terrenos 9 84.035 9.689 32.160 -
Adiantamentos de clientes 251.463 446 733 53
Saldrios, encargos sociais e beneficios 17.325 15.427 12.639 11.186
Impostos e contribui¢des a recolher 50.119 26.162 20.501 17.922
Permutas 10 65.471 100.567 2.841 4.924
Impostos diferidos 11 (b) 15.845 13.194 1.076 3.597
Arrendamento 13 812 765 812 765
Dividendos a pagar 14 (e) - 45.642 - 45.642
Débitos com empresas ligadas 18 ° - 465.141 136.205
Qutros passivos 39.310 17.123 2.533 1.921
Total do passivo circulante 837.665 528.276 787.641 471.685
Passivo ndo circulante

Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 8 1.823.160 1.656.894 1.749.895 1.656.894
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 19 (a) 18.480 - 18.480 -
Permutas 10 129.429 53.598 51.138 6.776
Impostos diferidos 11 (b) 155.969 144.518 5.416 6.995
Contas a pagar por aquisi¢do de terrenos 9 3.380 2.896 843 -
Provisdo para riscos trabalhistas, fiscais e civeis 12 1.118 1.325 322 285
Arrendamento 13 186.228 117.954 8.459 8.888
Qutros passivos 13.397 16.763 2.443 2.667
Total do passivo ndo circulante 2.331.161 1.993.948 1.836.996 1.682.505
Total do passivo 3.168.826 2.522.224 2.624.637 2.154.190
Patriménio liquido

Capital social 2.735.382 2.735.382 2.735.382 2.735.382
Agdes em tesouraria (17.756) (38.946) (17.756) (38.946)
Reservas de capital 17.240 13.290 17.240 13.290
Reservas de lucro 851.143 995.861 851.143 995.861
Dividendos adicionais propostos - 24.358 - 24.358
Patriménio liquido atribuivel aos acionistas da Companhia 3.586.009 3.729.945 3.586.009 3.729.945
ParticipagBes dos acionistas ndo controladores 14 (g) 19.366 2.276 - -
Total do patriménio liquido 3.605.375 3.732.221 3.586.009 3.729.945
Total do passivo e do patriménio liquido 6.774.201 6.254.445 6.210.646 5.884.135

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstragdes financeiras.



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

DEMONSTRAGAO DOS RESULTADOS PARA OS EXERCICIOS FINDOS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - RS, exceto quando indicado de outra forma

Receita liquida de aluguel e de servigos prestados 219.742 220.156 72.549 73.921
Custo dos servigos prestados - administragdo de condominios 16 (5.334) (3.887) (5.334) (3.887)
Lucro bruto 214.408 216.269 67.215 70.034

Receitas (despesas) operacionais

Despesas comerciais 16 (9.820) (9.455) (6.357) (6.251)
Despesas gerais e administrativas 16 (37.294) (37.391) (31.355) (32.308)
Honordrios da administragdo 16 (9.212) (7.856) (9.212) (7.856)
Variagdo do valor justo de propriedades para investimento 6(a) 438.001 257.798 16.133 1.860
Outras receitas (despesas) operacionais, liquidas 16 (115.122) (165.365) (8.377) (49.419)
Resultado de equivaléncia patrimonial 5 6.979 7.107 407.703 232.640
Lucro operacional antes do resultado fi iro 487.940 261.107 435.750 208.700

Resultado financeiro

Despesas financeiras 17 (197.907) (173.365) (168.218) (158.811)
Receitas financeiras 17 106.805 96.755 75.857 76.134
Lucro antes do imposto de renda e da contribuigdo social 396.838 184.497 343.389 126.023

Imposto de renda e contribuigdo social

Corrente (41.648) (44.003) - -
Diferido 11 (10.812) 54.466 - 66.153
11 (52.460) 10.463 - 66.153
344.378 194.960 343.389 192.176

Lucro liquido do exercicio

Lucro atribuivel a:

Acionistas controladores 343.389 192.176
Acionistas ndo controladores 14 (g) 989 2.784
344.378 194.960

Lucro por agdo (em RS):
Basico 14 (h) 3,61702 1,92644 3,61702 1,92644
Diluido 14 (h) 3,60343 1,92490 3,60343 1,92490

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstragdes financeiras.



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

O

DEMONSTRAGAO DOS RESULTADOS ABRANGENTES PARA OS EXERCICIOS FINDOS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - RS

Lucro liquido do exercicio 344.378 194.960 343.389 192.176
Outros componentes do resultado abrangente - - - -
Total de resultados abrangentes do exercicio 344.378 194.960 343.389 192.176

Resultados abrangentes atribuivel a:

Acionistas controladores 343.389 192.176
Acionistas ndo controladores 989 2.784
344.378 194.960

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstragdes financeiras.
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LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

DEMONSTRAGAO DAS MUTAGOES DO PATRIMONIO LIQUIDO PARA OS EXERCICIOS FINDOS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - R$

O

Capital social

Dividendos

Patrimoénio liquido

Participagdes de

Agbes em Lucros o . atribuivel aos acionistas o - Total
pastoscen tesouraria Opcesioutorzadas Retenciolce acumulados ECIHIELD da Companhia g (Consolidado)
emissdo de acdes reconhecidas lucros propostos (Individual) controladores

SALDO EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2022 2.753.976 (18.594) (51.552) 9.970 71.935 818.918 - - 3.584.653 79.185 3.663.838
Aportes (distribuicdes) de acionistas ndo controladores - - - - - - - - - 35 35
AcBes em tesouraria:

Adquiridas - - (4.825) - - - - - (4.825) - (4.825)

Canceladas - - 1.063 - - (231) - - 832 - 832

AgOes em tesouraria alienadas para beneficiarios de plano de opgdes - - 16.368 - - (6.582) - - 9.786 - 9.786
Opgdes de agdes - - - 3.320 - - - - 3.320 - 3.320
Transagao de capital - - - - - (10.355) (10.355) (79.728) (90.083)
Lucro liquido do periodo - - - - - - 192.176 - 192.176 2.784 194.960
Destinagdo do lucro do exercicio:

Constituigdo de reserva legal - - - - 9.609 - (9.609) - - - -

Dividendos propostos - - - - - - (45.642) - (45.642) - (45.642)

Dividendos adicionais propostos - - - - - - (24.358) 24.358 - - -

Constituigdo de reserva de retengdo de lucros - - - - - 112.567 (112.567) - - - -
SALDO EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2023 2.753.976 (18.594) (38.946) 13.290 81.544 914.317 - 24.358 3.729.945 2.276 3.732.221
Aportes (ditribuigdes) de acionistas ndo controladores - - - - - - - - 7.824 7.824
AcBes em tesouraria: -

Adquiridas - - (314.945) - - - - - (314.945) - (314.945)

Canceladas - - 326.886 - - (326.886) - - - - -

AgOes em tesouraria alienadas para beneficiarios de plano de opgdes - - 9.249 - - (2.944) - - 6.305 - 6.305
Opgdes de agdes - - - 3.950 - - - - 3.950 - 3.950
Transagdo de capital - - - - - (8.277) - - (8.277) 8.277 -
Lucro liquido do periodo - - - - - - 343.389 - 343.389 989 344.378
Destinagdo do lucro do exercicio:

Constituicdo de reserva legal - - - - 17.169 - (17.169) - - - -

Dividendos propostos - - - - - - (81.556) - (81.556) - (81.556)

Dividendos adicionais propostos - - - - - (68.444) - (24.358) (92.802) - (92.802)

Constituigdo de reserva de retengdo de lucros - - - - - 244.664 (244.664) - - - -
SALDO EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 2.753.976 (18.594) (17.756) 17.240 98.713 752.430 - - 3.586.009 19.366 3.605.375

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstrages financeiras.
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LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

O

DEMONSTRAGAO DOS FLUXOS DE CAIXA PARA OS EXERCICIOS FINDOS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023 - METODO INDIRETO

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - RS

eat Consolidado [ indvidwal |
B I VS ™S TS B N

Fluxo de caixa das atividades operacionais
Lucro liquido do exercicio 344.378 194.960 343.389 192.176
Ajustes para reconciliar o lucro com o caixa liquido gerado

pelas atividades operacionais:

Depreciagdo e amortizagdo 16 5.671 3.972 2.946 2.053
Resultado de equivaléncia patrimonial 5 (6.979) (7.107) (407.703) (232.640)
Amortizagdo de despesas antecipadas 1.467 1.731 316 479
Provisdo para risco de crédito 787 721 134 188
Provisdes para riscos trabalhistas, fiscais e civeis 501 1.000 113 207
Resultado financeiro 130.930 133.262 118.280 125.251
Resultado da venda de controlada / ativos 110.532 159.287 7.043 48.780
Impostos diferidos (11.528) (56.962) (6.593) (67.115)
Variagdo do valor justo de propriedades para investimento 6(a) (439.298) (258.596) (16.133) (1.860)
Opgdes de agdes 16 3.950 3.320 3.950 3.320
140.411 175.588 45.742 70.839
(Aumento) redug&o nos ativos operacionais:
Contas a receber 3.563 51.980 111.890 33.717
Impostos a recuperar 5.964 (9.350) 6.042 5.461
Despesas antecipadas (8.314) 1.883 (4.740) (1.688)
Outros ativos 1.828 (5.800) (7.358) (4.907)
Aumento (redugdo) nos passivos operacionais:
Fornecedores 11.825 15.053 (218) 1.797
Saldrios, encargos sociais e beneficios 1.898 1.713 1.453 465
Impostos e contribuigdes a recolher 33.968 19.159 998 (7.641)
Débitos com empresas ligadas - - 328.936 -
Outros passivos (88.525) (44.108) (1.512) 114.614
Valores pagos por riscos trabalhistas, fiscais e civeis (708) (2.020) (76) (66)
Imposto de renda e contribuig¢do social pagos (33.500) (46.868) - -
Caixa liquido gerado pelas atividades operacionais 68.410 157.230 481.157 212.591

Fluxo de caixa das atividades de investimento

Aumento em titulos e valores mobilidrios (1.232.879) (764.425) (927.036) (522.391)
Redugdo em titulos e valores mobilidrios 1.104.126 875.355 861.585 650.663
Aumento / aquisi¢do de investimentos (624) (2.027) (455.665) (548.835)
Dividendos recebidos de investidas 5(c) 3.250 3.000 529.467 457.663
Aquisi¢des de propriedades para investimento (811.769) (545.394) (7.174) (9.916)
Recebimento pela venda de controladas / ativos 1.262.675 706.404 - 156.773
Adiantamentos a empresas ligadas - - (79.019) -
Recebimento de empresas ligadas - - 78.061 -
Outros (6.939) (6.484) (4.226) 890
Caixa liquido gerado pelas (utilizado nas) atividades de investimento 317.840 266.429 (4.007) 184.847

Fluxo de caixa das atividades de financiamento

Captagdo de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures, liquido 564.203 242.011 490.999 242.011
Amortizacdo de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 8(a) (385.618) (176.282) (385.618) (157.954)
Pagamento de juros (192.049) (214.540) (189.439) (212.178)
Transagdo de capital - - (8.277) -
Pagamento de arrendamento 13 (2.259) (668) (736) (668)
Pagamento de dividendos 14 (e) (220.000) (91.692) (220.000) (91.692)
(Pagamento) recebimento de derivativo (19.989) (89.534) (19.989) (89.534)
Alienagdo (aquisi¢do) de a¢des em tesouraria 14 (b) (314.945) (3.993) (314.945) (3.993)
Recebimentos pelo exercicio de opgdo de agbes 6.305 9.786 6.305 9.786
Aportes (distribuicBes) de acionistas ndo controladores 14 (g) 7.824 35 - -
Caixa liquido utilizado nas atividades de fii i 1to (556.528) (324.877) (641.700) (304.222)
Aumento (redugdo) do saldo de caixa e equivalentes de caixa (170.278) 98.782 (164.550) 93.216

Caixa e equivalentes de caixa

No inicio do exercicio 396.515 297.733 389.057 295.841
No fim do exercicio 3 226.237 396.515 224.507 389.057
Aumento (redugdo) do saldo de caixa e equivalentes de caixa (170.278) 98.782 (164.550) 93.216

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstragdes financeiras.
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LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A. D

DEMONSTRAGAO DO VALOR ADICIONADO PARA OS EXERCICIOS FINDOS EM 31 DE DEZEMBRO DE 2024 E DE 2023

Valores expressos em milhares de reais - RS

Receitas:
Receita de aluguéis e prestagdo de servigos 232.844 233.630 80.514 81.829
Outras receitas (60.545) (92.732) (3.197) (13.771)
Variagdo do valor justo de propriedades para investimento 6(a) 439.298 258.596 16.133 1.860
Receitas relativas a construgdo de ativos préprios 893.762 630.814 7.175 9.428
Provisdo para risco de crédito (787) (721) (134) (188)
1.504.572 1.029.587 100.491 79.158
Insumos adquiridos de terceiros (inclui os valores dos impostos ICMS, IPI, PIS E COFINS)
Materiais, energia, servigos de terceiros e outros (725.445) (472.552) (38.854) (47.447)
(725.445) (472.552) (38.854) (47.447)
Valor adicionado bruto 779.127 557.035 61.637 31.711
Depreciagdo 16 (5.671) (3.972) (2.946) (2.053)
Valor adicionado liquido produzido 773.456 553.063 58.691 29.658
Valor adicionado recebido em transferéncia
Resultado de equivaléncia patrimonial 5 6.979 7.107 407.703 232.640
Receitas financeiras 110.211 100.254 79.169 79.612
117.190 107.361 486.872 312.252
Valor adicionado total a distribuir 890.646 660.424 545.563 341.910
Distribuigdo do valor adicionado
Pessoal: 83.662 67.562 36.286 32.870
Remuneragdo direta 64.490 52.382 28.766 26.130
Beneficios 15.517 12.247 6.209 5.499
F.G.TS. 3.655 2.933 1.311 1.241
Impostos, taxas e contribuigdes: 138.648 94.688 22.554 (23.348)
Federais 135.142 91.807 22.355 (23.841)
Estaduais 1 - - -
Municipais 3.505 2.881 199 493
Remuneracdo de capitais de terceiros: 323.958 303.214 143.334 140.212
Juros 242.606 244.954 139.883 136.180
Aluguéis / Arrendamento mercantil 81.064 57.813 3.392 3.949
Outros 288 447 59 83
Remuneragéo de capitais préprios: 344.378 194.960 343.389 192.176
Dividendos 14 (e) 81.556 70.000 81.556 70.000
Lucros retidos 261.833 122.176 261.833 122.176
Participagdo dos ndo controladores 14 (g) 989 2.784 - -
Valor adicionado distribuido 890.646 660.424 545.563 341.910

As notas explicativas sdo parte integrante das demonstragdes financeiras.
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Notas explicativas as demonstracdes financeiras para o exercicio findo em

LOG Commercial Properties e Participagoes S.A. LD

31 de dezembro de 2024.
Valores expressos em milhares de reais, exceto quando indicado de outra forma.

1.

Contexto operacional

A LOG Commercial Properties e ParticipagGes S.A. (“Companhia”) é uma sociedade an6nima de capital aberto,
listada na B3 S.A. (B3), com sede na Avenida Professor Mario Werneck, n2 621, 102 andar, na cidade de Belo
Horizonte, Estado de Minas Gerais, inscrita no CNPJ/MF sob 0 n2 09.041.168/0001-10, constituida em 10 de junho
de 2008, que tem por objetivo a: (i) administracdo de bens préprios e de terceiros; (ii) prestagdo de servigos de
engenharia e de construcdo de imodveis residenciais e/ou comerciais; (iii) incorporagdo, construgéo,
comercializagdo, locagdo e servigos correlatos, inclusive consultoria imobilidria, sobre imdveis préprios ou de
terceiros, residenciais e/ou comerciais; e (iv) participacdo em outras sociedades na qualidade de sdcia ou acionista.

Os empreendimentos sdo desenvolvidos pela LOG Commercial Properties e Participagdes S.A., suas controladas e
controladas em conjunto (“Grupo”) e tém como atividade principal a constru¢do e locagcdo (mediante
arrendamento operacional) de galpGes industriais e, em menor escala: loteamento e venda de terrenos industriais
e servicos de administragdo dos seus proprios condominios e de terceiros. Os empreendimentos entregues e
administrados estdo localizados nos estados de Minas Gerais, S3o Paulo, Espirito Santo, Parand, Rio de Janeiro,
Goias, Ceard, Para, Sergipe, Bahia, Alagoas, Rio Grande do Norte, Mato Grosso do Sul, Pernambuco e Distrito
Federal.

O Grupo mantém seu forte planejamento de expansdo das atividades e, por isso, esta em constante avaliagdo do
mercado financeiro visando as melhores oportunidades de obtencdo de recursos para executar seu plano de
negdcios.

2. Apresentacao das demonstragoes financeiras, politicas contabeis materiais e

novos pronunciamentos

2.1 Apresentacdo das demonstracdes financeiras

Declaracdo de conformidade

As demonstracgGes financeiras consolidadas da Companhia foram elaboradas e apresentadas de acordo com
as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil e de acordo com as normas internacionais de contabilidade
(“International Financial Reporting Standards — IFRS”), emitidas pelo International Accounting Standards
Board - IASB. As demonstracdes financeiras individuais da Companhia ndo sdo consideradas em conformidade
com as normas internacionais de contabilidade por considerarem a capitalizagdo de juros sobre os ativos
qualificaveis das investidas.

As praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil compreendem aquelas incluidas na legislagdo societéria brasileira,
as normas da Comissdo de Valores Mobilidrios (CVM), os pronunciamentos, orientacGes e interpretagdes
emitidas pelo Comité de Pronunciamentos Contabeis (CPC) e aprovados pela CVM e pelo Conselho Federal
de Contabilidade (CFC).

Bases de mensuracdo

As demonstracgdes financeiras foram elaboradas com base no custo histdrico, exceto pelo saldo de “caixa e

” u » u ” u

equivalentes de caixa”, “titulos e valores mobiliarios”, “instrumentos financeiros derivativos”, “propriedades
para investimento”, “permutas” e alguns financiamentos (contabilidade de hedge), mensurados pelos seus
valores justos, conforme descrito nas praticas contabeis a seguir. O custo histérico geralmente é baseado no

valor justo das contraprestacdes pagas em troca de ativos.
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Bases de consolidacdo

As demonstracOes financeiras consolidadas incluem as demonstragGes financeiras da Companhia, de
entidades controladas diretamente pela Companhia ou indiretamente através de suas controladas. As
controladas da Companhia incluidas na consolidagdo estdo relacionadas na nota 5.

Para determinar se a Companhia possui controle sobre as investidas, a Administragdo utilizou-se de acordos
contratuais para avaliar os direitos existentes que outorgam para a Companhia a capacidade de dirigir as
atividades relevantes das investidas, assim como a exposicdo a, ou direitos sobre, retornos variaveis
decorrentes do seu envolvimento com as mesmas e a capacidade de usar seu poder para afetar o valor dos
retornos.

Na consolidagdo, os saldos dos ativos, passivos e resultados das controladas sdo combinados com os
correspondentes itens das demonstragdes financeiras da Companhia, linha a linha, e eliminadas as
participacOes da controladora nos patriménios liquidos das controladas, bem como todas as transagdes,
saldos, receitas e despesas entre as empresas do Grupo.

O Grupo elegeu mensurar qualquer participacdo de nao-controladores inicialmente pela participagdo
proporcional nos ativos liquidos identificaveis da adquirida na data de aquisicdo. Mudangas na participagao
do Grupo em uma subsididria que ndo resultem em perda de controle sdo contabilizadas como transagdes de
capital no patrimoénio liquido.

Quando o Grupo perde o controle sobre uma controlada, desreconhece os ativos e passivos e qualquer
participacdo de acionistas ndo controladores e outros componentes registrados no patriménio liquido
referentes a essa controlada. Qualquer ganho ou perda originado pela perda de controle é reconhecido no
resultado. Se o Grupo retém qualquer participagdo na antiga controlada, essa participacdo é mensurada pelo
seu valor justo na data em que ha a perda de controle.

2.2 Politicas contabeis materiais

(a)

(b)

Contas a receber

Representado substancialmente por aluguéis a receber de ativos locados, liquidos da provisdo para risco de
crédito e pelas contas a receber oriundas das vendas de propriedades para investimento e participagdes
societdrias em empresas que apresentavam como principais ativos propriedades para investimento, liquidas
do ajuste a valor presente. As contas a receber por aluguéis ndo sdo ajustadas a valor presente por apresentar
substancialmente vencimentos de curto prazo e/ou n3o apresentar efeito relevante nas demonstragdes
financeiras. Os saldos das contas a receber de longo prazo se referem ao efeito de linearizacdo de receita, em
conformidade com item 81 do CPC 06 R2 — Arrendamentos (nota 2.2 (n)) e parcelas a receber acima de doze
meses decorrentes da venda de ativos e participagGes societarias.

Investimentos em controladas e controladas em conjunto

Nas demonstracées financeiras consolidadas e individuais da Companhia, as informagées financeiras das
controladas em conjunto sdo reconhecidas através do método de equivaléncia patrimonial, com base nas
demonstragdes financeiras levantadas pelas respectivas investidas nas mesmas datas-bases e critérios
contabeis dos balangos da Companhia.

Nas demonstra¢des financeiras individuais da Companhia, as informacgdes financeiras das controladas sao
reconhecidas através do método de equivaléncia patrimonial, com base nas demonstracGes financeiras
levantadas pelas respectivas investidas nas mesmas datas-bases e critérios contabeis dos balancos da
Companhia.

Os lucros e prejuizos resultantes das transagbes entre empresas do Grupo sdo reconhecidos nas

demonstragdes financeiras somente na extensao das participa¢gdes na investida que ndo sejam relacionadas
ao Grupo.
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(c) Propriedades para investimento

As propriedades para investimento sdo inicialmente mensuradas ao custo ou ao valor justo para terrenos
adquiridos em permuta e remensuradas ao valor justo, com mensuragdo de nivel 3 (premissas descritas
abaixo). Os ganhos e as perdas resultantes de mudangas no valor justo sdo reconhecidos no resultado do
exercicio no qual as mudangas ocorreram.

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023, a avaliagdo pelo valor justo das propriedades para investimento foi
realizada por avaliadores externos, com as qualificagbes requeridas e experiéncia recente na avaliagdo de
propriedades em locais similares e foi mensurada conforme segue:

e Terrenos: avaliagcdo realizada pelo Método Comparativo Direto de Dados de Mercado, mediante o
qual o valor do terreno é obtido pela comparacgao direta com outros terrenos semelhantes situados
na mesma regido geoecondmica.

e Empreendimentos em operacdo ou em estagio de construcdo: avaliacdo realizada mediante fluxo de
caixa descontado para o periodo de dez anos, momento no qual se considera a saida do investimento
(desinvestimento) por meio de uma venda hipotética da propriedade simulando o principio da
perpetuidade.

Dentre as premissas consideradas, as principais foram:

e As taxas de desconto utilizadas consideram as caracteristicas dos imdveis em avaliagdo e
oscilaram de 8,00% a 9,00% a.a. em 31 de dezembro de 2024 (8,00% a 9,75% a.a. em 31 de
dezembro de 2023).

e O desinvestimento foi calculado por meio da aplicagao de taxas que oscilaram de 7,50% a
8,25% a.a. em 31 de dezembro de 2024 (7,50% a 9,00% a.a. em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

e Foram projetadas despesas correspondentes a 1,0 aluguel em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e
de 2023, para remuneracgado do trabalho de consultor imobiliario responsavel pela locagédo
do imdvel. Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023, foram utilizadas taxas de 1,5% e 2,0%
do valor de venda residual para remunera¢do do trabalho do consultor imobilidrio
responsavel pela venda do imével no final do horizonte.

A propriedade para investimento € baixada apds a alienagdo ou quando esta é permanentemente retirada de
uso e nado ha beneficios econémicos futuros resultantes da alienagdo, quando aplicavel. Qualquer ganho ou
perda resultante da baixa do imédvel é reconhecido no resultado do exercicio em que o imdvel é baixado, na
rubrica “Outras receitas e despesas operacionais”.

Ativos ndo circulantes mantidos para venda

Os ativos ndo circulantes ou grupos (contendo ativos e passivos) mantidos para venda sdo classificados como
mantidos para venda se for altamente provavel que serdo recuperados primariamente por meio de venda ao
invés do seu uso continuo.

Os ativos, ou grupo de ativos, mantidos para venda, sdo mensurados pelo menor valor entre o seu valor
contabil e o valor justo menos as despesas de venda. As perdas por reducdo ao valor recuperavel apuradas
na classificagao inicial como mantidos para venda e os ganhos e perdas de remensuragdes subsequentes, sdo
reconhecidos no resultado.

Estoques

Quando ocorre a alienagdo de uma propriedade ainda substancialmente na fase de construcdo, o referido
ativo é transferido da rubrica “Propriedade para Investimento” para a rubrica “Estoques” no balango
patrimonial, dada a alteragdo no uso. Conforme item 60 do IAS 40 (CPC 28) — Propriedades para investimento,
o custo considerado da propriedade para subsequente contabilizagdo, de acordo com o IAS 02 (CPC 16) -
Estoques, é o seu valor justo na data da alteracdo.
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Qualquer ganho ou perda resultante da alienagdo do imével é reconhecido no resultado do exercicio em que
o imovel é alienado, na rubrica “Outras receitas e despesas operacionais”.
Provisdes

Uma provisdao é reconhecida em fungdo de um evento passado, se existir uma obriga¢do legal ou ndo
formalizada que possa ser estimada de maneira confiavel e é provavel que recursos econémicos sejam
exigidos para liquidar a obrigacdo.

Quando a provisdo é mensurada com base nos fluxos de caixa estimados para liquidar a obrigacdo, seu valor
contabil corresponde ao valor presente desses fluxos de caixa.

Custos dos empréstimos

Os custos de empréstimos atribuiveis diretamente a aquisi¢do, constru¢do ou producdo de ativos
qualificaveis, os quais levam, necessariamente, um periodo substancial para ficarem prontos para uso ou
venda, sdo acrescentados ao custo de tais ativos até a data em que estejam prontos para o uso ou a venda
pretendida.

Em decorréncia das atividades de financiamento serem coordenadas de forma centralizada na Companhia, os
juros incorridos na referida empresa, referentes ao financiamento de ativos qualificaveis de suas investidas,
sdo capitalizados e apresentados na rubrica de investimento (demonstrag¢des individuais), liquido dos ganhos
decorrentes da aplicagdo temporaria dos recursos obtidos com empréstimos especificos ainda ndo gastos com
os ativos qualificiveis. Nas demonstragdes consolidadas, os valores referentes as controladas sdo
reclassificados para o custo das propriedades para investimento qualificaveis financiadas. Devido ao fato de
as propriedades para investimentos serem mensuradas ao valor justo, os referidos custos sdo alocados ao
resultado deduzindo-os do calculo da equivaléncia patrimonial das investidas (demonstracdes individuais) e
do célculo da variagdo do valor justo (demonstragées consolidadas).

Plano de opcbes de compra de acdes

A Companhia possui plano de remuneragao baseado em ag¢des, pelo qual recebe servigos de determinados
colaboradores em contrapartida a instrumentos patrimoniais (op¢des de compra de agdes). A Companhia
reconhece os custos de remuneragao no resultado pelo método linear durante o periodo de servigo requerido
(vesting period), compreendido entre a data de outorga até a data em que o beneficiario adquire o direito ao
exercicio da opgao, com um correspondente aumento no patriménio liquido. Os custos de remuneragdo sao
mensurados pelo valor justo na data de outorga das opgdes de compra de a¢Ges e foram estimados com base
no modelo de valorizagdo de opgdes denominado Black & Scholes, vide nota 14 (f).

Tributacao

O imposto de renda, a contribuicdo social e os impostos sobre vendas, correntes e diferidos, sdo reconhecidos
como despesa ou receita no resultado do exercicio, exceto quando estdo relacionados com itens registrados
em outros resultados abrangentes ou diretamente no patrimonio liquido, caso em que os impostos correntes
e diferidos também sdo reconhecidos em outros resultados abrangentes ou diretamente no patriménio
liquido, respectivamente, quando aplicavel.

Imposto de renda e contribuicdo social

A Companbhia e algumas controladas apuram o imposto de renda e a contribui¢cdo social com base no lucro
real. Conforme facultado pela legislagdo tributaria, as controladas e controladas em conjunto, em sua maioria,
optaram pelo regime de tributagdo com base no lucro presumido, cuja base de cdlculo do imposto de renda
e da contribuigdo social é calculada a razdo de 32% sobre as receitas brutas provenientes da prestagdo de
servicos de locagdo acrescido das receitas financeiras. Sobre o lucro tributavel se aplica a aliquota regular de
15% acrescida do adicional de 10% - para lucros superiores a R$240 anuais para imposto de renda - e de 9%
para a contribuigao social.
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As empresas controladas e controladas em conjunto, que optaram pelo lucro presumido como regime de
tributagdo, adotam, como facultado pela legislagdao fiscal vigente, o regime de caixa para apuragao do
resultado de prestacdo de servigos de locagdo de imdveis comerciais e para tributagdo de receitas financeiras.

Impostos diferidos

O imposto de renda e contribuigdo social diferidos (“impostos diferidos”) sdo reconhecidos em sua totalidade,
conforme descrito no CPC 32 e IAS 12 - Tributos sobre o Lucro, sobre as diferengas entre ativos e passivos
reconhecidos para fins fiscais e os correspondentes valores compreendidos nas demonstragées financeiras e
sdo determinados considerando as aliquotas (e leis) vigentes na data de preparagdo das demonstragdes
financeiras e aplicaveis quando o respectivo imposto de renda e contribuicdo social forem realizados.

Os impostos diferidos ativos sdo reconhecidos somente na extensdao em que seja provavel que existird base
tributavel positiva para a qual as diferengas tempordarias possam ser utilizadas e os prejuizos fiscais possam
ser compensados. A recuperacdo do saldo dos impostos diferidos ativos é revisada no final de cada exercicio
e, quando ndo for provavel que lucros tributarios futuros estardo disponiveis para permitir a recuperagdo de
todo o ativo, ou parte dele, o saldo do ativo é ajustado de forma a refletir o montante que se espera que seja
recuperado.

Impostos sobre as receitas

A receita é apresentada liquida de PIS e COFINS, incidentes sobre as receitas de aluguéis e receitas financeiras,
e PIS, COFINS e ISS (Imposto sobre Servigos) incidentes sobre a receita de administragdo de condominios. Para
fins de cdlculo do Programa de Integragdo Social - PIS e da Contribui¢do para o Financiamento da Seguridade
Social - COFINS, a aliquota total é de 9,25% no lucro real (regime de ndo cumulatividade) para as receitas de
aluguéis e receitas de administracdo de condominios e 4,65% para as receitas financeiras, enquanto que ,no
lucro presumido (regime cumulativo), a aliquota de PIS e COFINS é de 3,65% para a totalidade das receitas,
exceto receitas financeiras que sao isentas da tributagcdo do PIS e COFINS.

Apuracdo do resultado

As receitas de aluguéis sdo reconhecidas pelo método linear durante o periodo de vigéncia dos contratos, na
extensdo em que for provavel que beneficios econdmicos serdo gerados para a Companhia e quando possam
ser mensuradas de forma confidvel. As receitas estdo sendo apresentadas liquidas dos impostos sobre as
mesmas.

As outras receitas e despesas sdo apropriadas ao resultado de acordo com o regime de competéncia.

Instrumentos financeiros

Os ativos e passivos financeiros sdao reconhecidos quando o Grupo for parte das disposi¢cdes contratuais do
instrumento e sdo inicialmente mensurados pelo valor justo.

Os custos das transacGes diretamente atribuiveis a aquisicdo ou emissdo de ativos e passivos financeiros
(exceto por ativos e passivos financeiros reconhecidos ao valor justo no resultado) sdo acrescidos ou
deduzidos do valor justo dos ativos ou passivos financeiros, se aplicavel, apds o reconhecimento inicial. Os
custos das transagGes diretamente atribuiveis a aquisicdo de ativos e passivos financeiros ao valor justo por
meio do resultado sdo reconhecidos imediatamente no resultado.

Ativos e passivos financeiros sdo apresentados liquidos no balango patrimonial se, e somente se, houver um

direito legal corrente e executdvel de compensar os montantes reconhecidos e se houver a intengdo de
compensacgao, ou de realizar o ativo e liquidar o passivo simultaneamente.
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Ativos financeiros

A classificacdo de ativos financeiros é baseada no modelo de negdcios no qual o ativo é gerenciado e em suas
caracteristicas de fluxos de caixa contratuais (bindmio fluxo de caixa contratual e modelo de negdcios),
conforme resumo demonstrado abaixo:

Categorias / mensuragio Condigdes para defini¢do da categoria
Os ativos financeiros (AF) mantidos para receber os fluxos de caixa
Custo amortizado contratuais nas datas especificas, de acordo com o modelo de negdcios

(MN) da empresa.

N3do ha definicdo especifica quanto a manutengdo dos AF para receber os
fluxos de caixa contratuais nas datas especificas ou realizar as vendas dos
AF no MN da empresa.

Avalor justo por meio de resultado ("VJR") Todos os outros ativos financeiros.

Avalor justo por meio de resultados abrangentes
("VJORA")

A seguir sdo demonstrados os principais ativos financeiros do Grupo, sendo a classificacdo destes ativos entre
custo amortizado, VIR e VJORA apresentada na nota 19 (a):

e (Caixa e equivalentes de caixa: Inclui caixa, contas bancarias, aplicagOes financeiras de alta liquidez,
resgatdveis no prazo de até noventa dias da data de contratagdo e com risco insignificante de mudanca
de valor de mercado.

e Titulos e valores mobilidrios: Os saldos representam substancialmente aplicagGes em fundos de
investimentos que incluem na sua carteira titulos publicos e privados (ambos pés fixados), com alta
liguidez em mercados ativos.

e Instrumentos financeiros derivativos: Instrumentos financeiros para prote¢dao patrimonial, conforme
descrito na nota 19 (a).

e Contas a receber: Representado substancialmente por aluguéis a receber de ativos locados e venda de
ativos e participagdes societarias, conforme descrito no item 2.2 (a).

Todas as aquisi¢cdes ou alienagbes regulares de ativos financeiros sdo reconhecidas ou baixadas com base na
data de negociagao. As aquisi¢cdes ou alienagdes regulares correspondem a aquisicdes ou alienagdes de ativos
financeiros que requerem a entrega de ativos dentro do prazo estabelecido por meio de norma ou pratica de
mercado.

O Grupo baixa um ativo financeiro apenas quando os direitos contratuais aos fluxos de caixa provenientes
desse ativo expiram ou transferem o ativo e substancialmente todos os riscos e beneficios da propriedade
para outra empresa. Na baixa de um ativo financeiro em sua totalidade, a diferenga entre o valor contabil do
ativo e a soma da contrapartida recebida e a receber é reconhecida no resultado.

Passivos financeiros

Sao classificados no reconhecimento inicial ao: (i) custo amortizado; ou (ii) mensurado ao valor justo por meio
do resultado.

Os passivos financeiros do Grupo estdo classificados como mensurados pelo custo amortizado, utilizando o
método de juros efetivos, e incluem contas a pagar por aquisicdo de terrenos e empréstimos, financiamentos
e debéntures, com excegao de alguns financiamentos, que se encontram mensurados ao valor justo por meio
do resultado, uma vez que foram designadas como itens protegidos, conforme a metodologia da contabilidade
de hedge.

Os empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures sdo reconhecidos inicialmente no recebimento dos recursos,
liguidos dos custos das transagGes, quando aplicavel. Na data do balanco, estdo apresentados pelos seus
reconhecimentos iniciais, deduzidos das amortizacGes das parcelas de principal, quando aplicavel, e acrescidos
dos correspondentes encargos incorridos. Os custos de transagGes estdo apresentados como redutores do
passivo circulante e ndo circulante, sendo apropriados ao resultado no mesmo prazo de pagamento do
financiamento que o originou, com base na taxa efetiva de cada transagdo. O Grupo optou por apresentar os
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juros pagos relacionados aos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures como atividades de financiamento
nas demonstragdes dos fluxos de caixa, uma vez que representam custos dos recursos captados.

A baixa de passivos financeiros ocorre somente quando as obriga¢des sdo extintas e canceladas, ou quando
vencem. A diferencga entre o valor contabil do passivo financeiro baixado e a soma da contrapartida paga e a
pagar é reconhecida no resultado.

Instrumentos financeiros derivativos e contabilidade de hedge

A Companbhia contrata instrumentos financeiros derivativos (swaps) para protegdo da sua exposi¢do a variagdo
de indices ou taxas de juros decorrentes de certos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures ou com o
objetivo de nao ficar exposto a variagdao do valor justo de determinados instrumentos financeiros.

Os derivativos sao reconhecidos inicialmente pelo seu valor justo. Posteriormente ao reconhecimento inicial,
os derivativos continuam a serem mensurados pelo valor justo e as variagGes no valor justo sdo registradas no
resultado.

Para se proteger da variacdo do valor justo de certas dividas, a Companhia contratou instrumentos financeiros
derivativos e, para evitar o descasamento contabil na mensuragdo destes instrumentos, optou pela
contabilidade de hedge (designagdes classificadas com hedge de valor justo). Desta forma, as variagdes dos
valores justos dos instrumentos de hedge (derivativos) e dos itens protegidos (dividas contratadas) sdo
reconhecidas no resultado.

No inicio da relagdo de hedge, a Companhia avalia se a relagdo de protecdo se qualifica para a contabilizacdo
de hedge; caso positivo, documenta a relagdo entre o instrumento de hedge e o item protegido. A avaliagdo
sobre se a relagdo atende aos requisitos de efetividade de hedge é efetuada e documentada no inicio da
relacdo de protegdo, em cada data de relatério e eventualmente por ocasido de alteragao significativa nas
circunstancias que afetam os requisitos de efetividade. Sdo permitidos ajustes a relagbes de hedge,
subsequentemente a designagao, sem que seja considerado “descontinuidade” da relagao de hedge original.

O Grupo descontinua a contabilidade de hedge somente quando a relagdo de hedge (ou parte dela) deixar de
atender a critérios de qualificagdo. Isso inclui casos em que o instrumento de hedge expira, é vendido,
rescindido ou exercido. A descontinuagdo é contabilizada prospectivamente.

Redugdo ao valor recuperdvel de instrumentos financeiros

O Grupo constitui provisdo para perda esperada de crédito para todas as receitas de aluguéis boletadas para
os clientes, com base em dados histdricos. Adicionalmente, efetua uma analise individualizada dos titulos
vencidos ha mais de noventa dias e nos casos em que ndo haja perspectivas de recuperagdo, todo o saldo em
aberto de tal contrato é provisionado. Esta abordagem simplificada esta em linha com o item 5.5.15 do CPC
48 — Instrumentos Financeiros.

O Grupo revisa periodicamente suas premissas para constituicdo da provisdo para risco de crédito, face a
revisdo dos histdricos de suas operagdes correntes e melhoria de suas estimativas.

Ajuste a valor presente

Sdo ajustados a seu valor presente com base em taxa efetiva de juros os itens monetarios integrantes do ativo
e passivo, quando decorrentes de operagdes de curto prazo, se relevantes, e longo prazo, sem a previsdo de
remunerac¢do ou sujeitas a: (i) juros pré-fixados embutidos; (ii) juros notoriamente abaixo do mercado para
transagGes semelhantes; e (iii) reajustes somente por inflagdo, sem juros. O Grupo avalia periodicamente o
efeito deste procedimento.
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(k) Uso de estimativas e julgamentos

()
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A preparagdo das demonstragdes financeiras requer a adog¢do de julgamentos e estimativas por parte da
Administracdao da Companhia, que impactam certos ativos e passivos, receitas e despesas nos exercicios
demonstrados. Ativos e passivos sujeitos a estes julgamentos e estimativas incluem o valor justo de
propriedades para investimento (através da aplicagdo das premissas utilizadas para sua determinagdo) e de
instrumentos financeiros derivativos, realizagdo de impostos diferidos ativos, permutas e provisdes para
riscos trabalhistas, fiscais e civeis. Uma vez que o julgamento da Administracdo envolve estimativas referentes
a probabilidade de ocorréncia de eventos futuros, os montantes reais podem divergir dessas estimativas.

A Companhia revisa suas estimativas e premissas, pelo menos, anualmente. Os efeitos decorrentes dessas
revisdes sao reconhecidos no exercicio em que as estimativas sdo revisadas se a revisdo afetar apenas aquele
exercicio, ou também em exercicios posteriores se a revisdo afetar tanto o periodo presente como exercicios
futuros.

Moeda funcional e de apresentacdo

A moeda funcional do Grupo e a moeda de apresentagao das demonstragGes financeiras consolidadas e
individuais é o Real brasileiro. As informagdes financeiras sdo apresentadas em milhares de reais, exceto
guando indicado de outra forma.

Demonstracdo do valor adicionado (DVA)

A Companhia elabora demonstra¢des do valor adicionado (DVA), Consolidado e Individual, nos termos do
pronunciamento técnico CPC 09 - Demonstragdo do Valor Adicionado, as quais sdo apresentadas como parte
integrante das demonstragdes financeiras, conforme as praticas contabeis adotadas no Brasil aplicavel para
companhias abertas, enquanto para IFRS representam informagao financeira adicional.

Arrendamentos
Arrendamentos em que o Grupo é um arrendador

O Grupo classifica os arrendamentos em financeiros ou operacionais. O arrendamento é classificado como
arrendamento financeiro se transferir substancialmente todos os riscos e beneficios inerentes a propriedade
do ativo subjacente e classificado como operacional se ndo transferir substancialmente todos os riscos e
beneficios inerentes a propriedade do ativo subjacente.

O Grupo ndo possui contratos de arrendamentos nos quais é arrendador financeiro, classificando todos seus
arrendamentos como operacionais (contratos de locacdo das propriedades para investimento). As receitas
dos arrendamentos operacionais das propriedades para investimento sdo reconhecidas no resultado pelo
método linear, durante o periodo de locagéo.

Arrendamentos em que o Grupo é arrendatdrio

O Grupo avalia se um contrato é ou contém arrendamento se ele transmite o direito de controlar o uso do
ativo identificado por um periodo de tempo, em troca de contraprestacdes. Tal avaliagdo é realizada no
momento inicial. Isengdes sdo aplicadas para arrendamentos de curto prazo e itens de baixo valor.

O custo do ativo de direto de uso compreende: (i) o valor da mensuragao inicial do passivo de arrendamento;
(i) quaisquer pagamentos de arrendamentos efetuados até a data; (iii) custos diretos incorridos; e (iv)
estimava de custos a serem incorridos na desmontagem e remoc¢do do ativo, quando aplicavel e estdo
reconhecidos nas rubricas “Imobilizado” e “Propriedades para investimento”.

O passivo de arrendamento é mensurado pelos pagamentos de arrendamento, descontados ao valor presente
pela taxa implicita, taxa incremental sobre empréstimos do arrendatario ou taxa de desconto utilizada na
mensurac¢do do valor justo da propriedade para investimento conforme item 2.2 (c) e representa a obrigacdo
de efetuar os pagamentos.
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Como arrendatdrio, o Grupo identificou contratos que contém arrendamentos, referente aos aluguéis de suas
sedes e terrenos de projetos. Para fins de estimativa do reconhecimento inicial do passivo de arrendamento
e do direito de uso, considerou-se uma prorrogacao do prazo do arrendamento por igual periodo para as
sedes e o prazo contratual para os terrenos.

Ao determinar o prazo de arrendamento, o Grupo considera todos os fatos e circunstancias que criam um
incentivo econémico para exercer a opgao de extensdo, ou ndo exercer uma opgao de rescisdo. As opgdes de
extensdo (ou periodos apds as opgbes de rescisdo) sdo incluidas no prazo de arrendamento apenas se o prazo
de arrendamento for razoavelmente certo de ser estendido (ou ndo rescindido). A avaliagdo é revista se
ocorrer um evento significativo ou uma alteragao significativa nas circunstancias que afete essa avaliagdo e
que esteja dentro do controle do Grupo. A avaliagdo de extensdo dos contratos afeta o valor dos passivos de
arrendamentos e dos ativos de direito de uso reconhecidos.

No resultado é reconhecida uma despesa de depreciacdo do ativo de direito de uso e uma despesa de juros
do passivo de arrendamento.

(o) Resultado por acdo

O resultado por agdo bdsico é calculado por meio da divisdo do lucro liquido do exercicio atribuido aos
detentores de agbes ordindrias da controladora pela quantidade média ponderada de ag¢des ordindrias
disponiveis durante o exercicio, excluidas as a¢des em tesouraria, se houver.

O resultado por ac¢do diluido é calculado por meio da divisdo do lucro liquido do exercicio atribuido aos
detentores de agbes ordinarias da controladora pela quantidade média ponderada de ag¢des ordindrias
disponiveis durante o exercicio, excluidas as agcdes em tesouraria, se houver, mais a quantidade de agGes
ordindrias que seriam emitidas no pressuposto do exercicio das opgdes de compra de agdes com valor de
exercicio inferior ao valor de mercado.

(p) Informacdo por segmento

Um segmento operacional desenvolve atividades de negdcio para obter receitas e incorrer despesas. Os
segmentos operacionais refletem a forma como a Administragdo toma decisdes e aloca recursos. A
Administragdao da Companhia identificou um segmento operacional, que atende aos parametros quantitativos
e qualitativos para divulgacdo, representado por locagdes de galpdes industriais e eventual venda destes
ativos.

Adocdo de novos pronunciamentos contabeis

N&o ha nenhuma nova norma ou alteragdo, valida para periodos anuais iniciados em 12 de janeiro de 2024 ou apds
essa data, que afete materialmente as demonstragées financeiras da Companhia. O Grupo decidiu ndo adotar
antecipadamente nenhuma outra norma, interpretac¢do ou alteragao que tenha sido emitida, mas ainda nao esteja
vigente.

Novos pronunciamentos emitidos e ainda ndo adotados

Na data de emissdo das demonstracgdes financeiras, o Grupo ndo adotou as IFRS (CPCs) a seguir, ja emitidas e ainda
nao aplicaveis:

e |IFRS 18: Apresentacdo e divulgacdo nas demonstragdes financeiras

e AlteracGes ao CPC 18 (R3) - Investimento em coligada, em Controlada e empreendimento controlado em
conjunto e a ICPC 09 - Demonstragdes contdbeis individuais, demonstracdes separadas, demonstracGes
consolidadas e aplicagdo do método da equivaléncia patrimonial

e AlteragGes ao CPC 02 (R2) — Efeitos nas mudangas nas taxas de cambio e conversdo de demonstragdes
contabeis e CPC 37 (R1) — Adogdo inicial das normas internacionais de contabilidade

e |FRS 19 — Subsidiarias sem Obrigagdo Publica: Divulgacdo
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A administracdao ndo espera que a adog¢do das normas listadas acima tenha um impacto relevante sobre as
demonstragGes financeiras do Grupo em periodos futuros, exceto a norma a seguir:

IFRS 18: Apresentacdo e divulgagdo nas demonstrages financeiras

Em abril de 2024, o IASB emitiu o IFRS 18, que substitui o IAS 1 (equivalente ao CPC 26 (R1) - Apresentagdo das
Demonstragdes Contabeis. O IFRS 18 introduz novos requisitos para apresenta¢do dentro da demonstragdo do
resultado do exercicio, incluindo totais e subtotais especificados. Além disso, as entidades sdo obrigadas a
classificar todas as receitas e despesas dentro da demonstragdo do resultado do exercicio em uma das cinco
categorias: operacional, investimento, financiamento, impostos de renda e operag¢des descontinuadas, das quais
as trés primeiras sdo novas.

A norma também exige a divulga¢do de medidas de desempenho definidas pela administragdo, subtotais de
receitas e despesas, e inclui novos requisitos para a agregacao e desagregacao de informagdes financeiras com
base nas “fungdes” identificadas das demonstragdes financeiras primdrias (primary financial statements (PFS)) e
das notas explicativas.

A entidade deve aplicar o IFRS 18 para periodos de relatério anuais iniciados em ou apds 12 de janeiro de 2027,
sendo permitida a adogdo antecipada, porém com o aval do érgao local. A norma exige aplicagdo retrospectiva
com disposi¢cdes de transicdo especificas. Os impactos da adog¢do da norma ainda estdo sendo avaliados pela
Administragao.

3. Caixa e equivalentes de caixa e titulos e valores mobiliarios

A composicdo é como segue:

Consolidado | imdividual
31/12/24 | 31/12/23 | 31/12/24 | 31/12/23

Caixa e equivalentes de caixa:

Caixa 1.670 31 1.670 31
Bancos -conta movimento 409 1.492 342 924
Aplicagdes financeiras:
Certificados de depdsitos bancarios (CDB) 8.042 6.890 8.042 -
Fundos de investimento ndo restrito 186.857 388.102 186.857 388.102
Operagdes compromissadas com lastro em debéntures 29.259 - 27.596 -
Total de caixa e equivalentes de caixa 226.237 396.515 224.507 389.057

Consolidado | Individual |
31/12/24 | 31/12/23 | 31/12/24 | 31/12/23

Titulos e valores mobiliarios:

Fundos de investimento restrito [1] 525.283 357.073 424.920 316.019
Fundo de investimento nao restrito [2] 9.750 - - -
Total de titulos e valores mobilidrios 535.033 357.073 424.920 316.019
Circulante 297.358 127.721 188.831 87.438
N3o circulante 237.675 229.352 236.089 228.581

535.033 357.073 424.920 316.019

[1] O Grupo possui fundos de investimento restritos, administrados por instituigdes bancérias responséveis pela custddia dos ativos e
liquidagdo financeira de suas operagdes. Os fundos constituidos tém como objetivo acompanhar a variagdo da taxa DI e possuem aplicagcdes
em titulos publicos, de outras instituigdes financeiras e em fundos de investimentos abertos, que, por sua vez, aplicam principalmente em
titulos de renda fixa.

[2] O Grupo possui cotas de fundo de investimento ndo restritos bloqueados como garantia de pagamento de terreno.

As aplicagdes financeiras e titulos e valores mobiliarios incluem retornos médios equivalentes a 93,85% da taxa DI
no Consolidado e 94,66% do DI no Individual no exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024 (90,87% da taxa DI
no Consolidado e 90,67% do DI no Individual para o mesmo periodo de 2023).
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A composi¢do da carteira dos fundos de investimento restritos, na propor¢do das cotas detidas pela Companhia e
controladas, é demonstrada conforme segue:

Consolidado | ndividual
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Operagbes compromissadas 923 3.013 173 1.491
Certificados de depédsitos bancarios (CDB) 37.469 1.645 34.669 814
Fundos de investimento 39.618 16.583 37.137 13.402
Debéntures 33.568 24.331 6.291 13.473
Letras financeiras privadas 76.366 27.028 39.880 16.113
Titulos publicos:

Letras Financeiras do Tesouro (LFT) 63.640 14.040 53.120 6.949

Notas do Tesouro Nacional - B (NTN-B) 237.675 229.352 236.088 228.582

Letras do Tesouro Nacional (LTN) 22.227 11.760 4.166 5.821
Outros 13.797 29.321 13.396 29.374
Total 525.283 357.073 424.920 316.019

A Companhia avaliou o risco de crédito da contraparte das suas aplicagdes financeiras conforme descrito na nota
19(b).

4. Contas a receber

A composicdo das contas a receber, liquido de ajuste a valor presente, é como segue:

Consolidado | individual |
31/12/23 31/12/23

Venda de participagdo societaria / ativos 905.419 648.504 79.696 153.781
Locagdo 68.646 57.086 15.538 14.725
Administracdo de condominio 2.269 1.260 2.269 1.260
Outros (*) 13.501 17.173 17.433 15.548
989.835 724.023 114.936 185.314
Provisdo para risco de crédito (12.202) (11.415) (3.598) (3.464)
Total 977.633 712.608 111.338 181.850
Circulante 449.769 349.756 89.445 108.812
Ndo circulante 527.864 362.852 21.893 73.038

977.633 712.608 111.338 181.850

(*) Outros refere-se substancialmente a reembolsos de condominio e saldo de muituo com parceiro em empreendimento.

A locacgdo refere-se a aluguéis de galpdes industriais firmados mediante arrendamento operacional, sujeitos a Lei
8.245/91 (“Lei de Locagdo”) que inclui, dentre outros, procedimentos relativos a cancelamento dos contratos de
locagdo e respectivas multas rescisdrias, que sdo acordadas comercialmente com cada locatdrio. Os contratos sdo
reajustados anualmente predominantemente pelo indice de Pregos ao Consumidor Amplo (IPCA), sujeito a
negociagdes entre as partes.

A administracdo de condominio refere-se a prestac¢édo de servico de administracdo de seus préprios condominios.
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A composicdo das contas a receber pela venda de participagdo societaria e ativos é como segue:

Consolidado
31/12/24 | 31/12/23 | 31/12/24 | 31/12/23

Seattle I (*) 223,883 350,847 37,314 58,475
Seattle Il (*) 62,547 98,051 - -
Seattle 111 (*) 220,203 - - -
Seattle IV (*) 223,475 - - -
LGCP11 (*) 80,064 64,023 27,283 15,556
Roma (*) 80,148 - - -
Toronto (*) - 48,680 - 31,555
SPE LOG PIB Meli - 38,708 - -
Torino - 27,196 - 27,196
SPELOG SJC Sony (nota 18 [5]) 11,146 12,700 11,146 12,700
Plaza Top Life 3,953 8,299 3,953 8,299

905,419 648,504 79,696 153,781
Circulante 416,056 315,178 70,036 94,708
Ndo circulante 489,363 333,326 9,660 59,073

905,419 648,504 79,696 153,781

(*) Atualizadas pelo IPCA.

Segue abaixo o escalonamento do vencimento das contas a receber:

Consolidado | Individual |
31/12/24 | 31/12/23 | 31/12/24 | 31/12/23

Avencer:
Até 1ano 446.426 347.712 85.005 106.449
Acimade 1ano 527.864 362.852 21.893 73.038
974.290 710.564 106.898 179.487

Vencido:
Até 30dias 1.626 2.458 2.885 2.934
De 31 a90dias 783 135 621 174
Acima de 90 dias 13.136 10.866 4.532 2.719
15.545 13.459 8.038 5.827
Total 989.835 724.023 114.936 185.314

Segue abaixo a movimentac¢do da provisdo para risco de crédito para os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de
2024 e de 2023, efetuada sobre os saldos a receber de clientes por locacdo:

Saldo inicial (11.415) (10.694) (3.464) (3.276)
AdigGes (787) (870) (134) (337)
Recebimentos/reversdes - 149 - 149
Saldo final (12.202) (11.415) (3.598) (3.464)

Os recebimentos minimos futuros garantidos contratualmente, escalonados por vencimento, sdo como segue:

31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

lano 226.609 234.413 50.581 48.011
2 anos 214.829 234.899 40.056 42.106
3 anos 184.318 211.176 25.829 33.093
4 anos 157.076 176.656 15.308 19.862
5anos 124.870 137.303 8.759 12.568
Apds 5 anos 288.509 413.609 10.744 31.550
Total 1.196.211 1.408.056 151.277 187.190
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5. Investimento em controladas e controladas em conjunto

a) As principais informagdes de cada investimento estdo resumidas a seguir:

Informagdes das investidas Resultado de

Participagdo societaria A . Resultado do equivaléncia
Patrimonio liquido n ] .

exercicio patrimonial

51712723 31712723 | 31732728 | 33/32/3 | 2v2a | 2033 | 31/az/za | 31/1afas | 202a | 2023 ]

Controladas em Conjunto:

Loteamento Betim 50,00% 50,00% 151.862 144.745 12.501 14.205 75.931 72.373 6.251 7.103

LOG SJC Sony 64,97% 64,97% 111.599 109.636 1.861 387 72.506 71.231 1.209 251

Outros 16,67% 16,67% 480 2.231 (1.008) 2.511 204 372 (169) 419

Juros capitalizados (a) - - 9.930 10.242 (312) (666)
Total das controladas em conjunto - Consolidado 263.941 256.612 13.354 17.103 158.571 154.218 6.979 7.107

Controladas:

LOG | 100,00% 100,00% 142.204 147.289 11.797 12.838 142.204 147.289 11.797 12.838

LOG II 100,00% 100,00% 60.805 59.222 4.440 2.496 60.805 59.222 4.440 2.496

LOG Jundiai 100,00% 100,00% 96.262 95.777 4.647 4.286 96.262 95.777 4.647 4.286

LOG Goiania 100,00% 100,00% 122.547 144.785 986 12.404 122.547 144.785 986 12.404

LOG Hortolandia 100,00% 100,00% 141.675 139.458 7.595 13.495 141.675 139.458 7.595 13.495

LOG SJP 100,00% 100,00% 19.609 18.323 1.286 (4.659) 19.609 18.323 1.286 (4.659)
LOG Juizde Fora 100,00% 100,00% 136.842 120.887 (1.246) 15.084 136.842 120.887 (1.246) 15.084

LOG Feira de Santana 100,00% 100,00% 41.601 40.839 3.088 1.667 41.601 40.839 3.088 1.667

LOG Fortaleza 100,00% 100,00% 157.217 150.928 14.194 9.723 157.217 150.927 14.194 9.723

LOG Via Expressa 100,00% 100,00% 140.136 176.019 (15.107) 7.310 140.136 176.019 (15.107) 7.310

LOG Viana 100,00% 100,00% 127.174 135.867 2.616 8.724 127.174 135.867 2.616 8.724

LOG Londrina 100,00% 100,00% 34.046 61.847 559 (22.552) 34.046 61.847 559 (22.552)
LOG ltatiaia 100,00% 100,00% 68.534 65.431 5.401 3.022 68.534 65.431 5.401 3.022

LOG Aracaju 100,00% 100,00% 17.823 30.421 (636) (12.095) 17.823 30.421 (636) (12.095)
LOG Extrema 97,48% 97,48% 670 1.713  (1.043)  1.075 653 1.670  (1.017) 1.048

LOG Uberaba 100,00% 100,00% 50.525 47.380 5.835 3.299 50.525 47.380 5.835 3.299

LOG ltaitinga | 100,00% 100,00% 115.361 113.941 1.155 (33.565) 115.361 113.940 1.155 (33.565)
LOG Recife 100,00% 100,00% 176.789 299.535 1.521 (16.012) 176.789 299.535 1.521 (18.095)
LOG Itapeva 100,00% 100,00% 122.010 122.121 6.386 17.041 122.010 122.121 6.386 17.041

LOG PIB Meli 100,00% 100,00% 4.469 36.454 320 (4.981) 4.469 36.454 320 (4.981)
LOG Salvador 100,00% 100,00% 213.497 283.506 (15.787) 26.657 213.497 283.506 (15.787) 26.657

LOG Maceid 100,00% 100,00% 117.554 107.315 9.289 4.963 117.554 107.315 9.289 4.964

LOG Sumaré 100,00% 100,00% 35 34 1 1 35 34 1 1

LOG SJIRP 100,00% 100,00% 41.810 23.400 17.794 (745) 41.810 23.400 17.794 (745)
LOG Macaé 100,00% 100,00% 14.158 14.138 (254) (219) 14.158 14.138 (254) (219)
LOG RP 100,00% 100,00% 123.687 56.186 6.740 (2.349) 123.687 56.186 6.740 (2.349)
LOG Viana ll 100,00% 100,00% 137.366 179.181 (9.494) 3.596 137.366 179.181 (9.494) 3.596

LOG Natal 100,00% 100,00% 102.375 57.278 5.014 (1.986) 102.375 57.278 5.014 (1.986)
LOG Contagem IV 100,00% 100,00%  133.331  106.020 (90) (14.886) 133.331 106.020 (90) (14.886)
LOG Teresina 0,00% 0,00% - - - - - - - (61)
LOG Campo Grande 100,00% 100,00% 155.972 45.249 45.812 18.629 155.972 45.249 45.812 18.629

LOG Brasilia 100,00% 100,00% 164.845 148.169 (1.404) 5.963 164.845 148.169 (1.404) 5.963

LOG Cuiaba 100,00% 100,00% 63.323 18.467 (3.433) 17.316 63.323 18.467 (3.433) 17.316

LOG Joinville 100,00% 100,00% 39.157 1.349 35.829 (78) 39.157 1.349 35.829 (78)
LOG ltaitinga Il 100,00% 100,00% 194.915 272.928 595 81.274 194.915 272.928 595 81.274

LOG Goiania lll 100,00% 100,00% 83.210 1.259 60.610 (3) 83.210 1.259 60.610 (3)
LOG Betim Il 100,00% 100,00% 1 - (2) 3) 1 - (2) (3)
LOG Gravatai Il 100,00% 100,00% 28.896 2 28.043 (3) 28.896 2 28.043 (3)
LOG Sdo Bernardodo Campo 100,00% 100,00% 2.174 70.313 3.766 58.033 2.174 70.313 3.766 58.033

LOG Contagem V 100,00%  100,00% 528 43 (2) (2) 528 48 (2) (2)
LOG Sdo José dos Pinhais Il 100,00% 100,00% 76.165 24.078 (2.071) 21.948 76.165 24.078 (2.071) 21.948

LOG Recife Il 100,00% 100,00% 201.838 46.246 69.840 44.905 201.838 46.246 69.840 44.905

LOG Jodo Pessoa 100,00% 0,00% 72.065 - 54.666 - 72.065 - 54.666 -
LOG Salvador Il 100,00% 0,00% 9.753 = (115) = 9.753 o (115) =
LOG Cariacica 100,00% 0,00% 98.628 - 98.625 - 98.628 - 98.625 -
LDI 100,00% 100,00% 1.389 1.333 56 102 1.389 1.333 56 102

LE Empreendimentos 86,03% 98,08% 138.484 116.260 7.715 31.055 119.138 114.028 6.701 30.450

Juros capitalizados (a) - - - - 7.462 - (63.825) (84.460)
Total das controladas 3.991.455 3.580.996 465.537 312.768 3.979.554 3.578.719 400.724  225.533

Total do Individual 4.255.396 3.837.608 478.891 329.871 4.138.125 3.732.937 407.703  232.640

(a) Valor referente aos encargos financeiros capitalizados provenientes dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures, tomados pela Companhia para aquisi¢do/desenvolvimento de
propriedades para investimento e loteamento industrial nas investidas (nota 2.2 (e)).
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b) Controladas em conjunto:

e A Betim | Incorporagdes SPE Ltda. (“Loteamento Betim”) tem como principal objetivo o loteamento
industrial destinado a venda e desenvolvimento, construgdo e locagdo de ativos comerciais,

principalmente galpdes logisticos.

e A MRV LOG MDI SJC I Incorporagdes SPE Ltda. (“LOG SJC Sony”) tem como principal objetivo a atividade
de aluguel de imdveis préprios, construcdo de edificios e incorporagdo de empreendimentos imobiliarios.

O

Os riscos e beneficios decorrentes dos resultados liquidos gerados por essas empresas sao assumidos por cada

acionista, conforme seu percentual de participagao.

As controladas em conjunto ndo apresentam restricdes contratuais de distribuicdes de recursos provenientes

de suas operagdes para seus controladores.

As principais informagGes financeiras sdo como seguem:

31/12/24 | 31/12/23 | 31/12/24

31/12/23
3

Caixa e equivalentes de caixa e TVM 834 4.524 3

Contas a receber 12.153 4.801 - -
Estoque 42.501 39.901 - -
Outros ativos circulantes 4 24 - -
Total do circulante 55.492 49.250 3 3
Contas a receber 10.208 7.056 - -
Estoque 94.238 95.596 - -
Propriedades para investimento (PPI) - - 115.700 113.601
Outros ativos ndo circulantes 2 - - -
Total do ndo circulante 104.448 102.652 115.700 113.601
Total do ativo 159.940 151.902 115.703 113.604
Passivo circulante 7.951 6.908 9 14
Passivo ndo circulante 127 249 4.095 3.954
Patrimonio liquido 151.862 144.745 111.599 109.636
Passivo e patriménio liquido 159.940 151.902 115.703 113.604

Receita operacional 20.900 24.713 - -
Custo das merc. vendidas /servigos prestados (7.343) (9.784) - -
Outras despesas operacionais (a74) (42) 1.927 (78)
Resultado financeiro (1) (2)
Variagdo do valorjusto de

propriedades para investimento - - - 482
Imposto de renda e contribuigdo social (651) (811) (65) (15)
Resultado do exercicio 12.501 14.205 1.861 387
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¢) As movimentagdes dos saldos de investimentos em controladas e controladas em conjunto para os exercicios
findos em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 s3ao como seguem:

Aportes

(reversc.>es) patrimonial | de dividendos S LESUIES
de capital

Inicio da Saldos
operagao iniciais

Equivaléncia | Recebimentos

Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024:
Controladas em conjunto:

Loteamento Betim 03/18 72.373 557 6.251 (3.250) - 75.931
LOG SJC Sony - 71.231 66 1.209 - - 72.506
Outros - 372 1 (169) - - 204
Juros capitalizados (a) 10.242 - (312) - - 9.930
Total das controladas em conjunto - Consolidado 154.218 624 6.979 (3.250) - 158.571
Controladas:

LOGI 02/09 147.289 3.535 11.797 (20.417) - 142.204
LOG I 03/11 59.222 1.507 4.440 (4.364) - 60.805
LOG Jundiai 04/11 95.777 1.220 4.647 (5.382) - 96.262
LOG Goiéania 04/12 144.785 3.462 986 (26.686) - 122.547
LOG Hortolandia 09/12 139.458 3.806 7.595 (9.184) - 141.675
LOG SJP 04/13 18.323 - 1.286 - - 19.609
LOG Juizde Fora 06/13 120.887 22.129 (1.246) (4.928) - 136.842
LOG Feira de Santana 06/13 40.839 744 3.088 (3.070) - 41.601
LOG Fortaleza 08/13 150.927 3.677 14.194 (11.581) - 157.217
LOG Via Expressa 11/13 176.019 1.048 (15.107) (21.824) - 140.136
LOG Viana 04/14 135.867 (2.569) 2.616 (8.740) - 127.174
LOG Londrina 06/14 61.847 40 559 (28.400) - 34.046
LOG ltatiaia 07/14 65.431 1.687 5.401 (3.985) - 68.534
LOG Aracaju 10/18 30.421 (11.962) (636) - - 17.823
LOG Extrema 10/19 1.670 - (1.017) - - 653
LOG Uberaba 09/20 47.380 1.025 5.835 (3.715) - 50.525
LOG ltaitinga | 09/21 113.940 266 1.155 - - 115.361
LOG Recife 05/22 299.535 (124.267) 1.521 - - 176.789
LOG Itapeva 08/22 122.121 1.534 6.386 (8.031) - 122.010
LOG PIB Meli 08/22 36.454 (32.305) 320 - - 4.469
LOG Salvador 06/23 283.506 22.522 (15.787) (76.744) - 213.497
LOG Maceid 06/23 107.315 11.223 9.289 (10.273) - 117.554
LOG Sumaré - 34 - 1 - - 35
LOG SJIRP - 23.400 639 17.794 (23) - 41.810
LOG Macaé - 14.138 274 (254) - - 14.158
LOG RP 12/24 56.186 64.138 6.740 (3.377) - 123.687
LOG Viana ll 04/23 179.181 6.842 (9.494) (39.163) - 137.366
LOG Natal 02/24 57.278 42.752 5.014 (2.669) - 102.375
LOG Contagem IV 06/24 106.020 28.617 (90) (1.216) - 133.331
LOG Campo Grande 09/24 45.249 65.155 45.812 (244) - 155.972
LOG Brasilia 12/23 148.169 24.714 (1.404) (6.634) - 164.845
LOG Cuiaba - 18.467 48.289 (3.433) - - 63.323
LOG Joinville - 1.349 2.590 35.829 (611) - 39.157
LOG ltaitinga Il 07/23 272.928 (78.601) 595 (7) - 194.915
LOG Goiania lll - 1.259 186.453 60.610 (165.112) - 83.210
LOG Betim IlI - - 210 (2) (207) - 1
LOG Gravatai ll - 2 851 28.043 - - 28.896
LOG S3o Bernardo do Campo 12/24 70.313 (71.903) 3.766 (2) - 2.174
LOG Contagem V - 48 60.110 (2) (59.628) - 528
LOG S3o José dos Pinhais Il - 24.078 54.158 (2.071) - - 76.165
LOG Recife Il 12/24 46.246 85.752 69.840 - - 201.838
LOG Jodo Pessoa - - 17.399 54.666 - - 72.065
LOG Salvador I - - 9.868 (115) - - 9.753
LOG Cariacica - - 3 98.625 - - 98.628
LDI - 1.333 - 56 - - 1.389
LE Empreendimentos 03/24 114.028 (1.591) 6.701 - - 119.138
Juros capitalizados (a) - - (63.825) - 71.287 7.462
Total das controladas 3.578.719 455.041 400.724 (526.217) 71.287 3.979.554
Total do Individual 3.732.937 455.665 407.703 (529.467) 71.287 4.138.125
Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2023:

Total do Consolidado 148.084 2.027 7.107 (3.000) - 154.218
Total do Individual 3.335.020 548.835 232.640 (457.663) 74.105 3.732.937

(a) Valor referente aos encargos financeiros capitalizados provenientes dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures, tomados pela Companhia para aquisi¢do/desenvolvimento de
propriedades para investimento e loteamento industrial nas investidas (nota 2.2 (e))
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6. Propriedades para investimento

(a) Saldos e movimentacdo

As propriedades para investimento (PPls), referem-se a galpdes industriais que sdo mantidos para obter renda
com aluguéis ou para valorizagdo do capital (incluindo imobilizagdes em andamento para tal propdsito), cujos
saldos e respectivas movimentagdes em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 sdao demonstrados como segue:

Saldo inicial 4.308.118 4.878.721 964.667 1.285.418
Adigdes 947.768 497.094 228.737 21.616
Direito de uso de terreno, liquido [1] 57.401 6.139 - -
Juros capitalizados (nota 8 (d)) 63.825 84.460 - -
Venda de ativos [2] (510.100) (1.159.870) (2.106) (156.069)
Transferéncia para estoques (189.901) - - -
Transferéncia para ativos ndo circulantes mantidos para venda (744.395) (165.000) (39.782) (106.620)
Baixa por cisdo em controlada - (92.022) - -
Transferéncia de PPls para SPE - - (147.341) (81.538)
Variagdo do valorjusto [3] 439.298 258.596 16.133 1.860
Saldo final 4.372.014 4.308.118 1.020.308 964.667

[1] Direito de uso de terrenos, que estdo sendo amortizados pelo método linear e remensurado anualmente, vide nota 13.
[2] Baixa por venda de ativos conforme divulgado no quadro “Venda de ativos” desta nota
[3] Refere-se a avaliagdo a valor justo de todos os ativos LOG.

Os efeitos da variagdo do valor justo das propriedades para investimento (PPI), liquidos de PIS/COFINS
diferidos, no resultado é conforme segue:

Variagdo do valor justo de PPI 439.298 258.596 16.133 1.860
PIS/COFINS diferido (1.297) (798) - -
Variagdo do valor justo de PPl no resultado 438.001 257.798 16.133 1.860

(b) Venda de ativos

No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, foram alienados ativos, conforme demonstrado abaixo:

E total da transagdo
[ seowem | tGopit | toms | semwew |
Plaza
R LOG Via LOG LOG LOG LOG
Tapajos

Expressa Salvador [clJELIE] Vianall |Fortalezalll
Receita de venda de ativos e outras receitas relacionadas 1.950 176.403 341.489 39.562 76.755 135.017 183.789 327.085 1.282.050
Baixa de PPI (2.106)  (181.366) (326.628) (39.782) (76.963) (135.133) (176.717) (315.800) (1.254.495)
PIS e COFINS (180) (6.439) (12.464) (3.659) (2.802) (4.928)  (6.708)  (11.939) (49.119)
Demais custos [1] (13) (10.440) (27.563)  (2.815) (2.304) (2.743) (15.576)  (27.514) (88.968)
Outras receitas (despesas) operacionais, liquidas (349) (21.842) (25.166) (6.694) (5.314) (7.787) (15.212) (28.168) (110.532)
Imposto de renda e contribuicdo social (467) (2.282) (6.953) - (1.197) (1.863) (4.494) (6.538) (23.794)
PIS e COFINS (Valor justo) - 3.735 4.225 - 1.383 2.720 1.382 4.190 17.635
Resultado liquido da venda (816) (20.389) (27.894) (6.694) (5.128) (6.930) (18.324) (30.516) (116.691)

[1] Inclui ajuste a valor presente para as parcelas ndo recebidas.

29



O

(c) _Ativos ndo circulantes mantidos para venda

Saldoinicial - - - -
Transferéncia de propriedades para investimento 744.395 165.000 39.782 106.620
Venda de ativos (744.395) (165.000) (39.782) (106.620)
Saldo final - - - -

No exercicio de 2024, o Grupo transferiu ativo da LOG Gaiolli, LOG Viana, LOG Goidnia, LOG Viana Il e LOG
Fortaleza Il para a rubrica “ativos ndo circulantes mantidos para a venda”, concluindo a venda destes ativos
no mesmo periodo.

(d) Estoques

Saldoinicial

Transferéncia de propriedades para investimento 189.901 - - -
Juros capitalizados (nota 8 (d)) 7.462 - - -
Saldo final 197.363 - - -

Em 27 de setembro de 2024, a LOG Sao Bernardo do Campo celebrou um contrato de compra e venda para a
alienac3o da totalidade da sua participagdo neste ativo. O preco da transag¢3o é de RS 250.000, e foi recebido
a vista no seu fechamento e esta registrado na rubrica “Adiantamentos de Clientes”. O ativo foi transferido
de “Propriedade para Investimento” para “Estoques”, uma vez que ainda se encontra em fase de construgao.

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, do total de propriedades para investimento, R$412.798 foram dados em

garantia de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures firmados pela Companhia e suas controladas
(R$930.358 em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

7. Imobilizado

A movimentac¢do do imobilizado para os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 é como segue:

Consolidado Saldo inicial Saldo final

Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024:

Custo:
Direito de uso [1] 11.297 354 11.651
Outros [2] 9.520 89 9.609
Total Custo 20.817 443 21.260
Depreciacdo acumulada:
Direito de uso [1] 2.345 942 3.287
Outros [2] 1.918 701 2.619
Total da depreciagdo acumulada 4.263 1.643 5.906
Total do imobilizado liquido 16.554 (1.200) 15.354
Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2023:
Total do imobilizado liquido 15.416 1.138 16.554

[1] Contratos de aluguel de escritérios da Companhia.
[2] Essencialmente benfeitorias em imdveis de terceiros.
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Saldo inicial Saldo final

Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024:

Custo:
Direito de uso [1] 11.297 354 11.651
Outros [2] 9.253 88 9.341
Total Custo 20.550 442 20.992
Depreciacdoacumulada:
Direito de uso [1] 2.346 942 3.288
Outros [2] 1.712 687 2.399
Total da depreciagdo acumulada 4.058 1.629 5.687
Total do imobilizado liquido 16.492 (1.187) 15.305
Exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2023:
Total do imobilizado liquido 15.408 1.084 16.492

[1] Contratos de aluguel de escritdrios da Companhia.
[2] Essencialmente benfeitorias em imdveis de terceiros.

8. Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures

(a) Posicdo

A posicdo dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures, Consolidado e Individual em 31 de dezembro de
2024 e de 2023 é como segue:

. 31/12/24 31/12/23
Modalidade - —

Debénture 152 emissao (CRI) - 35.068

Debénture 162 emissao (CRI) 9.370 - 9.370 28.182

Debénture 172emissdo - - - 79.382

Debénture 182emissdo - - - 259.334

Debénture 192emissdo (CRI) (*) 144.391 368.876 513.267 512.552

Debéntures 202 emissdo - 12série (CRI) 48.001 86.900 134.901 135.261

Debéntures 202 emissdo -22série (CRI) (*) 3.540 178.260 181.800 186.646

Debéntures 212 emissdo 23.288 400.000 423.288 426.345

Debéntures 222 emissdo (CRI) 654 249.999 250.653 250.631

Debéntures 232 emissdo 8.819 100.000 108.819 -
Debéntures 242emissdo - 12série (CRI) (*) 4.037 174.522 178.559 -
Debéntures 242emissdo -22série (CRI) 1.179 59.550 60.729 -
Debéntures 242 emissdo - 32série (CRI) (*) 616 47.451 48.067 -
(-) Custo de captacgdo (7.117) (15.262) (22.379) (21.359)
Total de debéntures e CRI 236.778 1.650.296 1.887.074 1.892.042

Financiamento a construgédo - - - 5.783

Nota comercial 4.167 100.000 104.167 -
(-) Custo de captacdo (149) (401) (550) (88)
Total financiamentos 4.018 99.599 103.617 5.695

Total Individual 240.796 1.749.895 1.990.691 1.897.737

Controladas:

Financiamento a construgdo 2.649 75.050 77.699 -
(-) Custo de captacdo (403) (1.785) (2.188) -
Total financiamentos - Controladas 2.246 73.265 75.511 -
Total Consolidado 243.042 1.823.160 2.066.202 1.897.737

(*) Mensurado ao valor justo por meio de resultado, conforme metodologia de contabilidade de hedge, ver nota 19 (a).

31



O

Em outubro de 2024, a Companhia quitou antecipadamente a 152 e a 182 emissdo de debéntures, no valor de
R$29.233 e R$168.842, respectivamente, que apresentavam vencimentos entre novembro de 2024 a
dezembro de 2028, sujeitos a taxas contratuais de DI + 1,35% e DI + 2,00%, respectivamente.

As principais caracteristicas dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures da Companhia sdo como segue:

= on Funding | Repayment of Interest Maturity of Contractual rate {p.a.) - te (p.a)
ype Yy date principal p— principal ontractual rate (p.a. ective rate (p.a.

Debenture - 15" issue (CRI) 70.000 12/18 Monthly Monthly 1/19t012/28 DI+1.35% DI+1.71%
Debenture - 16M issue (CRI) 100.000 3/19 Semiannual Semiannual 3/20to 3/25 108% DI 108% DI +0.34%
Debenture -17thissue 230.000 9/19 Annual Semiannual 9/22to09/24 116.5% DI 116.5% DI +0.18%
Debenture - 18" issue 250.000  3/21 Annual Semiannual  3/24t03/26 DI +2.00% DI +2.21%
Debenture - 19" issue (CRI) 450.000 9/21 Annual Semiannual  9/25t09/28 IPCA+ 5.52% IPCA+6.07%
Debenture - 20" issue - 1% series (CRI) 130.350  4/22 Annual Semiannual  3/26to03/27 DI+1.10% DI+1.61%
Debenture - 20" issue - 2" series (CRI) 169.650  4/22 Annual Semiannual  3/27to03/29 IPCA+ 6.30% IPCA+ 6.87%
Debenture -21%issue 400.000 7/22 Annual Semiannual  7/26t07/27 DI+1.65% DI+1.79%
Debenture - 22" issue (CRI) 250.000 6/23 Annual Quarterly 6/26t06/28 DI +1.70% DI +2.55%
Debenture - 23" issue 100.000 3/24 Annual Semiannual 8/26to 8/30 DI +0.95% DI+1.12%
Debenture - 24" issue - 1*'series (CRI) 191.297 10/24 Bullet payment Semiannual 10/29 13.02% 13.78%
Debenture - 24" issue - 2" series (CRI) 59.550 10/24 Bullet payment Semiannual 10/29 DI+0.30% DI+0.81%
Debenture - 24" issue -3 series (CRI) 49.153 10/24 Annual Semiannual 10/30to 10/31 IPCA+7.1512% IPCA+7.67%
Construction financing - 12/12 Monthly Monthly 12/13t010/24 DI+1.65% DI+1.92%
Commercial notes 100.000 3/24 Annual Semiannual 8/26to 8/30 DI +0.95% DI+1.11%
Construction financing - 6/24 Monthly Monthly 10/25to04/34  Savings deposits +3.93% Savings deposits+4.57%

As debéntures emitidas pela Companhia sdo simples, ndo conversiveis em a¢des, nominativas e escriturais.

As captacgGes de recursos durante o exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024 sdo como segue:

. . | Pagamento Pagamento de Vencimentos de Valor
Modalidade Captagdo .. . .. Taxa contratual (a.a.)
de principal juros principal captado (*)

Debénture -232emissdo 100.000 03/24 Anual Semestral 08/26 e 08/30 DI +0,95% 100.000
Debéntures 242emissdo-12 191.297 10/24 Parcela Semestral 10/29 13,02% 191.297
Debéntures 242emissdo-22 59.550 10/24 Parcela Semestral 10/29 DI+0,30% 59.550
Debéntures 242 emiss3do - 32 49.153 10/24 Anual Semestral 10/30e10/31 IPCA+7,15% 49.153
Nota Comercial 100.000 03/24 Anual Semestral 08/26 e 08/30 DI +0,95% 100.000
Total - Individual 500.000
Financiamento a construgdo 06/24 Mensal Mensal 10/25 a 04/34 Poupanca +3,93% 75.620
Total - Controladas 75.620

Total - Consolidado 575.620

(*) N&o sdo considerados os custos de captagdo.

A movimentac¢do dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures é como segue:

Saldoinicial 1.897.737 1.774.084 1.897.737 1.757.023
Captacgdes 575.620 250.000 500.000 250.000
Encargos financeiros provisionados 230.790 236.806 226.790 235.896
Ajuste aovalor justo (57.920) 26.552 (57.920) 25.512
Custo de captagdo de recursos (11.417) (7.989) (9.001) (7.989)
Amortizacdo do custo de captagdo de recursos 7.747 7.066 7.519 6.781
Pagamento de principal (385.618) (176.282) (385.618) (157.954)
Pagamento de encargos financeiros (190.737) (212.500) (188.816) (211.532)
Saldo final 2.066.202 1.897.737 1.990.691 1.897.737
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(b) Garantias

Os tipos de garantia dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures em 31 de dezembro de 2024 sdo como

segue:
Consolidado
F|‘nanC|ame[\to Debéntures CRI Nota. Total
aconstrugao Comercial
Real /direitos creditérios 77.699 359.472 9.370 104.167 550.708
Sem garantia - 423.288 1.117.323 - 1.540.611
Total (*) 77.699 782.760 1.126.693 104.167 2.091.319

(*) Valor de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures, ndo considerados os custos de captagdo.

As garantias reais sdo representadas pelos terrenos, benfeitorias e imdveis dos respectivos projetos
financiados (ver nota 6).

Os direitos creditorios sdao representados pelo fluxo de recebimento futuro dos empreendimentos
financiados, dados em garantia no eventual inadimplemento junto as institui¢cdes financeiras.

(c) Vencimentos

A composi¢do por vencimentos do total dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures é como segue:

Consolidado | indivioual
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Periodo apds a data do balanco:

lano 250.711 247.285 248.062 247.285
2 anos 571.432 228.814 562.426 228.814
3 anos 535.743 568.232 526.737 568.232
4 anos 254.240 546.244 245.234 546.244
Apds 4 anos 479.193 328.609 431.161 328.609
Total 2.091.319 1.919.184 2.013.620 1.919.184

(d) Alocacdo dos encargos financeiros

Os encargos financeiros sao capitalizados conforme demonstrado abaixo:

Encargos financeiros provenientes de:

Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures (238.537) (243.872) (234.309) (242.677)
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 1.513 (16.562) 1.513 (16.562)
Total dos encargos financeiros (237.024) (260.434) (232.796) (259.239)
Juros capitalizados em:
Propriedade para investimento 63.825 84.460 - -
Investimento (nota 5 (c)) - - 71.287 84.460
Estoques 7.462 - - -
Encargos financeiros registrados no resultado (nota 17) (165.737) (175.974) (161.509) (174.779)

No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, o total de encargos capitalizados sobre os empréstimos,
financiamentos e debéntures representou uma taxa média de encargos de 12,77% a.a. no Consolidado

(15,28% a.a. no mesmo periodo de 2023).
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Obrigacdes contratuais

A, 193,208, 212, 228,232 e 242 emissGes publicas de debéntures e nota comercial contemplam a manutengao
de indices financeiros, apurados e revisados pelo Agente Fiduciario trimestralmente e anualmente, conforme
segue:

Descrigao indice requerido Exercicio social

Divida bruta / PPI até 60% 2021 em diante

Divida bruta corresponde a: (+) empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures de curto e longo prazo.

PPl corresponde a: (+) propriedades para investimento; (+) ativos ndo circulantes mantidos para venda; (+) terrenos e imdveis a
comercializar no curto e longo prazo.

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, a Companhia se encontrava em conformidade com as clausulas restritivas dos
seus contratos de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures.

Outras obrigacdes contratuais:

A Companhia possui certas obrigacGes contratuais que devem ser cumpridas durante o periodo da divida, tais
como: prestar informagdes nos prazos solicitados; ndo realizar operagGes estranhas ao seu objeto social,
observadas as disposi¢Oes estatutdrias, legais e regulamentares em vigor; garantir a contratacdo dos devidos
seguros obrigatdrios dos projetos, dentro das politicas definidas pela Companhia; cumprir os pagamentos
previstos em contrato; garantir o cumprimento de todas as leis, regras e regulamentos em qualquer jurisdigcao
na qual realize negdcios ou possua ativos; manter validas as licengas pertinentes ao funcionamento do
negdcio; honrar com as garantias apresentadas nos contratos; prestar informagGes sobre atos e fatos
relevantes que venham afetar a sua condicdo financeira ou a capacidade de cumprimento de suas obrigacoes;
comprovar a destinagdo imobilidria dos recursos captados nos projetos descritos em contrato; itens
relacionados a continuidade das atividades, faléncia ou insolvéncia; garantir a integridade dos dados
fornecidos aos agentes financeiros; nao realizar cessdao de direitos dos contratos sem anuéncia do agente
financeiro; ndo ter alteragdes significativas na composicao societaria, sem a observancia das respectivas leis,
e no controle aciondrio; dentre outras. A falta de cumprimento dos itens citados podera ocasionar o
acionamento dos agentes financeiros que podera resultar em vencimento antecipado dos contratos.

9. Contas a pagar por aquisicao de terrenos

Consolidado | incividual
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

IPCA 72.418 12.585 18.070 -
DI 14.933 - 14.933 -
Ndo remunerados 1.900 - - -
Ajuste a valor presente (1.836) - - -
Total 87.415 12.585 33.003 -
Circulante 84.035 9.689 32.160 -
N&o circulante 3.380 2.896 843 -
Total 87.415 12.585 33.003 -

A composicdo por vencimento das contas a pagar por aquisicdo de terrenos é como segue:

Consolidado | ndividual |
31/12/23 31/12/23

Periodo apds a data do balanco:

lano 84.035 9.689 32.160 -
2 anos 3.380 2.896 843 -
Total 87.415 12.585 33.003 -
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10. Permutas

O saldo é referente a compromissos decorrentes de permutas fisicas efetuadas para aquisi¢do de terrenos através
da troca por galpdes industriais. Os saldos foram registrados pelos seus valores justos nas datas das transagdes,
mensurado através do valor de mercado dos terrenos, apurados por laudos técnicos internos e externos. Os
compromissos serao liquidados pela entrega dos galpGes industriais concluidos e a segregagao entre o circulante
e ndo circulante é efetuada considerando a previsdo de conclusdo da construgdo dos galpdes relacionados.

A composicdo das permutas, por expectativa de realizagdo, é como segue:

Consolidado | Individual |
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Periodo apds a data do balanco:

1ano 65.471 100.567 2.841 4.924
2 anos 113.017 17.874 47.909 6.776
3anos 15.059 24.589 2.063 -
Apds 3 anos 1.353 11.135 1.166 -
Total 194.900 154.165 53.979 11.700
Circulante 65.471 100.567 2.841 4.924
N3o circulante 129.429 53.598 51.138 6.776

194.900 154.165 53.979 11.700

11. Imposto de renda e contribui¢ao social

(a) Areconciliagdo entre a receita (despesa) de imposto de renda (IRPJ) e contribuicdo social (CSLL) pela aliquota
efetiva estd demonstrada a seguir:

Lucro antes do imposto de renda e da contribuigdo social 396.838 184.497 343.389 126.023
Aliquota vigente -imposto de renda e contribui¢do social 34% 34% 34% 34%
Despesa nominal (134.925) (62.729) (116.752) (42.848)

Efeito do IRPJ e da CSLL sobre as diferengas permanentes:
Resultado de equivaléncia patrimonial bruto de juros

capitalizados baixados 2.373 2.643 160.319 108.040
Crédito tributario ndo constituido (41.982) - (41.982) -
Depreciagdo de propriedades para investimento (712) - -

Efeito reflexo referente ao valor justo em controladas - (28.716) - (28.716)
Baixa dos juros capitalizados referente aos ativos

alienados por controladas - 25.930 - 25.930
Diferencga de base de calculo para empresas tributadas

no lucro presumido 117.537 69.585 - -

Outros 5.249 3.750 (1.585) 3.747
Crédito (débito) do IRPJ e da CSLL no resultado (52.460) 10.463 - 66.153

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, ha crédito tributario referente a prejuizo fiscal, base negativa e diferencas
tempordérias ndo constituido no valor de R$41.982 (RS0 em 31 de dezembro de 2023).
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A composicdo dos impostos diferidos ativos (passivos) apresentados nos balangos patrimoniais é

demonstrada como segue:

Consolidado | Individual |
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Ativo ndo circulante:

Imposto de renda e contribui¢do social 114.024 114.024 114.024 114.024
Passivo:
Imposto de renda e contribuigdo social (74.967) (64.155) - -
PIS/COFINS (96.847) (93.557) (6.492) (10.592)
(171.814) (157.712) (6.492) (10.592)
Circulante (15.845) (13.194) (1.076) (3.597)
Nao circulante (155.969)  (144.518) (5.416) (6.995)
Total (171.814) (157.712) (6.492) (10.592)

A composi¢do dos saldos do imposto de renda e da contribui¢do social diferidos é como segue:

Consolidado | ncividual |
31/12/24 31/12/23 31/12/24 31/12/23

Efeito tributério sobre:
Ativo diferido:

Prejuizo fiscal e base negativa 197.525 174.861 196.489 174.790
Juros capitalizados baixados (*) 83.206 114.560 83.206 114.560
Diferencas tempordrias (26.333) (26.999) (29.416) (30.280)
254.398 262.422 250.279 259.070
Passivos diferidos reclassificados (140.374) (148.398) (136.255) (145.046)
Ativo diferido 114.024 114.024 114.024 114.024
Passivo diferido:
Mais valia do valor justo sobre propriedades para investimento (182.949) (192.616) (136.255) (145.046)
Aluguéis a receber e outros (4.144) (2.207) - -
Venda de PPI (28.248) (17.730) - -
(215.341) (212.553) (136.255) (145.046)
Passivos diferidos reclassificados 140.374 148.398 136.255 145.046
Imposto diferido passivo (74.967) (64.155) - -

(*) Conforme nota 2.2 (e), em decorréncia das atividades de financiamento serem coordenadas de forma centralizada na Companbhia, os juros incorridos na referida
empresa, referentes ao financiamento de ativos qualificdveis de suas investidas, sdo capitalizados e apresentados na rubrica de investimento (demonstragdes
individuais). Devido ao fato de as propriedades para investimentos serem mensuradas ao valor justo, os referidos custos sdo alocados ao resultado deduzindo-os do
calculo da equivaléncia patrimonial das investidas (demonstragdes individuais). Neste processo, é reconhecido ativo fiscal diferido, tendo em vista que estes valores

serdo dedutiveis fiscalmente quando da realizagdo dos respectivos investimentos.

Os saldos dos impostos diferidos, reclassificados para fins de apresentacdo, estdo relacionados com tributos
sobre o lucro langados pela mesma autoridade tributaria, foram feitos individualmente por entidade possuem

a mesma natureza e serdo realizados simultaneamente.

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, a estimativa de realizagdo dos impostos diferidos ativos, mediante projecdo de

geracgado de lucro tributavel futuro elaborada pela Administragdo da Companhia, é como segue:

IRPJ e CSLL

Consolidado e
Individual

Expectativa de realizagdo:

2025 1.405
2026 2.634
2027 4.837
2028 4.447
2029 4.481
2030 4.374
2031a2034 20.170
2035a 2039 46.479
2040a 2053 25.197
Total 114.024
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A proje¢do acima mencionada esta baseada em projetos que atualmente ja se encontram em operagao, na
construcdo e na entrada em operagdo de novos galpdes no portfélio da Companhia. A receita projetada
advinda da locagdo dos referidos ativos e a venda de ativos que atualmente se encontram em operagdo
contribui para a geracgdo de lucro tributavel compativel a realizagdo dos impostos diferidos ativos referentes
a prejuizo fiscal e base negativa. A realizacdo dos referidos ativos oriundos da diferenga temporaria referente
aos juros capitalizados considera o mesmo periodo de dedutibilidade fiscal de 25 anos aplicavel aos custos
histéricos das respectivas propriedades para investimento, a partir da respectiva entrada em operacao.

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, o saldo passivo de PIS/COFINS diferido refere-se a efeito tributério sobre: (i)
mais valia do valor justo sobre propriedades para investimento; e (ii) aluguéis a receber para o saldo
remanescente.

A movimentac¢do do IRPJ e CSLL ativo e passivo diferidos para os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de
2024 e de 2023 é como segue:

s [ som |
Ativo | Passvo | Liquido | Liquido | Ativo | Passivo | Liauido

Saldo inicial 262.422 (212.553) 49.869 (5.345) 259.070 (145.046) 114.024 47.871
Efeito no IRPJ e CSLL diferidos pelo (a):
Cisdo em controlada - - - 748 - - - -
Resultado do periodo (8.024) (2.788) (10.812) 54.466 (8.791) 8.791 - 66.153
Saldo final 254.398 (215.341) 39.057 49.869 250.279 (136.255) 114.024 114.024

12. ProvisOes para riscos trabalhistas, fiscais e civeis

O Grupo constituiu provisGes para riscos para as agoes cuja expectativa de perda é considerada provavel, baseada
na avaliagdo de seus assessores legais, que se espera ser necessaria a saida de recursos financeiros para liquidar
as respectivas obrigacdes. A natureza dessas a¢des é essencialmente referente a reclamagdes trabalhistas. A
movimentag¢do para os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 é como segue:

Consolidado | Individual |
(2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023

Saldoinicial 1.325 2.345 285 144
Adi¢Ges e atualizacdo 854 1.471 161 297
Pagamento (708) (2.020) (76) (66)
Reversdo (353) (471) (48) (90)
Saldo final 1.118 1.325 322 285

Os processos classificados com probabilidade de perda possivel pelos consultores juridicos montam em R$9.902
no Consolidado e R$1.711 no Individual em 31 de dezembro de 2024 (R$4.741 no Consolidado e R$4.126 no
Individual em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

13. Arrendamentos

O Grupo ndo possui contratos de arrendamentos nos quais é arrendador financeiro, classificando todos seus
arrendamentos como operacionais, integralmente representados pelos contratos de loca¢des das propriedades
para investimento.

Como arrendatario, o Grupo identificou contratos que contém arrendamentos referentes aos aluguéis de seus
escritérios e dos terrenos dos ativos da LOG Brasilia, LE Empreendimentos (fase 1 e 4) e LOG Goiania Ill.
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A movimentagdo do passivo de arrendamento para os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 é
como segue:

Saldoinicial 118.719 101.715 9.653 8.437
Adicdes (*) 50.327 - - -
Remensuragao 10.144 9.941 354 1.884
Despesas de juros 10.732 8.377 623 646
Pagamento de principal (2.259) (668) (736) (668)
Pagamento de juros (623) (646) (623) (646)
Saldo final 187.040 118.719 9.271 9.653
Circulante 812 765 812 765
N3o circulante 186.228 117.954 8.459 8.888

187.040 118.719 9.271 9.653

(*) Valor referente ao direito de uso de terrenos do ativo LOG Goiania Ill.

Os fluxos de caixa contratuais ndo descontados (passivos brutos de arrendamentos) representam desembolsos
anuais de caixa que se encerram em dezembro de 2073 e sdo como segue:

) Dela2 De2a3 | Acimade3
Em até 1 ano Total
anos anos anos

Consolidado:

Passivos de arrendamento 9.740 13.403 14.061 630.633 667.838
Total 9.740 13.403 14.061 630.633 667.838
Individual:

Passivos de arrendamento 1.396 1.396 1.396 8.138 12.325
Total 1.396 1.396 1.396 8.138 12.325

Arrendamentos que representam isences no reconhecimento

O Grupo aplica isen¢des de reconhecimento para arrendamentos de curto prazo e arrendamentos para os quais

0os

ativos subjacentes sdo de baixo valor. Estes arrendamentos incluem essencialmente aluguel de imdveis e

veiculos de curto prazo. Para estes arrendamentos, as despesas de locagdo sdo reconhecidas de forma linear,
quando incorridas.

No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, estes arrendamentos representam R$221 no Consolidado e
Individual (R$84 no Consolidado e R$83 no Individual no mesmo periodo de 2023).

14. Patrimonio liquido

(a)

Capital social
Consolidado e Individual
31/12/24 31/12/23
Capital social subscrito 2.753.976 2.753.976
Quantidades de ag¢des ordinarias, sem valor nominal (em milhares) 87.859 102.159

O capital social autorizado da Companhia em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 é de R$3.700.000 (trés
bilhdes e setecentos milhdes de reais), representado exclusivamente por acdes ordindrias e cada acdo
ordinaria nominativa da direito a um voto nas deliberacdes da Assembleia Geral.

No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, foi aprovado pelo Conselho de Administragdo, o

cancelamento de 14.300 (quatorze milhdes e trezentas mil) a¢des ordinarias de emissdo da Companhia, que
estavam mantidas em tesouraria, no valor de R$326.886 sem alteracdo do valor do capital social.
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(b) Acdes em tesouraria

Em 17 de julho de 2024, foi aprovado pelo Conselho de Administragdo, o Programa de Recompra de A¢Ges
da Companhia com validade de 18 meses a partir de 17 de julho de 2024, na quantidade mdaxima de 5,0
milhdes de agdes ordindrias, respeitados os limites legais, para manutengdo em tesouraria, cancelamento,
recolocagao no mercado, ou destinagao aos Planos de Opgdo de compra de Agdes.

Em 21 de outubro de 2024, foi aprovado pelo Conselho de Administracdo o Programa de Recompra de A¢des
da Companhia com validade de 18 meses a partir da aprovagao, na quantidade maxima de 4,8 milhGes de
acGes ordinarias, respeitados os limites legais, para manutengdo em tesouraria, cancelamento, recolocagao
no mercado, ou destinacdo aos Planos de Opgdo de compra de Agdes.

Durante o exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, foram adquiridas 13.841 mil a¢des no valor de
R$314.945 mil através do Programa de Recompra de A¢des da Companhia, conforme demonstrado abaixo:

usto em reais (por agdo) das agcoes
Quantidade (mil) adc(:::irid;s ) ¢ -

Saldo o Alienadas/ . Média Valor de
... Adquiridas Transferidas | Saldo final
inicial canceladas ponderada mercado (*)

Exercicio 2024:

Agdes ordinarias 1.719 13.841 (14.300) (432) 828 22,74 24,25 18,69 14.912
Exercicio 2023:
Agles ordinarias 2.252 236 (47) (722) 1.719 20,49 23,71 15,01 49.495

(*) Valor de mercado das agdes remanescentes em tesouraria em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023.

(c) Reserva de capital

Os saldos de reservas de capital sdo decorrentes de opg¢des de agles outorgadas a executivos e empregados
da Companhia, conforme item (f) abaixo. Nos termos do art. 200 da Lei das Sociedades por Acdes, a
Companhia podera utilizar as reservas de capital para absorcdo de prejuizos, resgate, reembolso ou compra
de agdes e incorporagdo ao capital social.

(d) Reserva de lucro
Reserva legal

A reserva legal é constituida com base em 5% do lucro de cada exercicio, e ndo deve exceder 20% do capital
social. No exercicio em que o saldo da reserva legal, acrescido do montante das reservas de capital, exceder
30% do capital social, ndo é obrigatério a destinagdo de parte do lucro liquido do exercicio para esta rubrica.
A reserva legal tem por fim assegurar a integridade do capital social e somente podera ser utilizada para
compensar prejuizos ou aumentar o capital. A memoaria de célculo referente a constituicdo da reserva legal
para os exercicios de 2024 e de 2023 esta detalhada no item (e) abaixo.

Reserva de retengdo de lucros

A reserva de retencdo de lucros refere-se aos lucros ndo distribuidos aos acionistas em fungdo, basicamente,
do atendimento as necessidades de recursos da Companhia para aplicagdo em investimentos conforme
orcamento de capital. Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, foi proposta a constituicdo de reserva de retencdo de
lucros, no valor de R$244.664 (R$112.567 em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

(e) Dividendos
Minimo obrigatdrio e adicional proposto

De acordo com o Estatuto Social da Companhia, por deliberagao do Conselho de Administracdo, a Companhia
podera (i) levantar balancos semestrais, trimestrais ou periodos menores, e declarar dividendos ou juros
sobre capital préprio dos lucros verificados em tais balangos; ou (ii) declarar dividendos ou juros sobre o
capital préprio intermedidrios, a conta de lucros acumulados ou de reservas de lucro existentes no ultimo
balanco anual ou semestral. Os dividendos intermediarios ou intercalares distribuidos e os juros sobre capital
préprio poderdo ser imputados ao dividendo obrigatério. Aos acionistas é assegurado o direito ao
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recebimento de um dividendo obrigatdrio anual ndo inferior a 25% do lucro liquido do exercicio, diminuido
ou acrescido os seguintes valores: (i) importancia destinada a constituigdo de reserva legal; (ii) importancia
destinada a formagdo de reserva para contingéncias e reversdo das mesmas reservas formadas em exercicios
anteriores; e (iii) importancia decorrente da reversao da reserva de lucros a realizar formada em exercicios
anteriores, nos termos do artigo 202, inciso Il da Lei das Sociedades por A¢oes. O pagamento do dividendo
obrigatério podera ser limitado ao montante do lucro liquido realizado, nos termos da Lei.

Conforme proposta da Administragdo da Companhia ad referendum da Assembleia Geral Ordinaria (AGO), os
dividendos de 2024, pagos em 17 de dezembro de 2024, sdo como segue (os de 2023 sdo apresentados para
fins comparativos):

Lucro do exercicio 343.389 192.176
Reserva legal —5% do lucro do exercicio (17.169) (9.609)
Lucro disponivel para distribuicdo 326.220 182.567
Dividendos propostos:

Minimo obrigatério —25% do lucro disponivel para distribuigao 81.556 45.642

Adicional 68.444 24.358
Totais 150.000 70.000
Dividendos propostos por agdo:

Minimo obrigatério - RS 0,9371 0,4544

Adicional -RS$ 0,7864 0,2425
Totais -RS 1,7235 0,6969

Os dividendos de 2023, no valor de R$70.000, foram aprovados em Reuni3o do Conselho de Administracdo
(RCA) no dia 06 de fevereiro de 2024 e pagos em 21 de fevereiro de 2024.

Os dividendos de 2022, no valor de R$91.692, foram aprovados em Reunido do Conselho de Administracdo
(RCA) no dia 08 de fevereiro de 2023 e pagos em 23 de fevereiro de 2023.

Plano de opcdes de acdes

O Conselho de Administragdao da Companhia cria periodicamente programas de opgdes de agdes, onde sdo
definidos o nimero de ag¢Ges que os beneficiarios terdo direito de receber ou subscrever com o exercicio da
opcao, precgo de subscricdo, prazo maximo para exercicio da op¢do, normas sobre transferéncia de opgdes e
quaisquer restricGes as agles recebidas pelo exercicio da op¢ao, inclusive regras em caso de desligamento,
término de mandato, ou falecimento do beneficiario. O preco de emissdo das a¢des a serem subscritas pelos
integrantes dos planos de opgGes, em decorréncia do exercicio da opgao, é equivalente a média dos 30
(trinta) pregbes anteriores a data da concessdo (“prego de exercicio”).

Os acionistas da Companhia, nos termos do art. 171, § 32, da Lei das Sociedades por Ac¢des, ndo tém
preferéncia no exercicio da op¢do de compra de agdes.

O plano de outorga de opg¢do de compra de agGes aprovado pela Assembleia Geral Ordinaria e Extraordinaria,
conforme respectivo regulamento corresponderd a, no maximo, 3.092.149 ac¢des, equivalentes a 5% do total
das agdes da Companhia em novembro de 2010.

Em 09 de setembro de 2024, foi aprovado pelo Conselho de Administragdo, a emissdo do programa 13 do
plano de op¢des de agdes, outorgando para diretores e gestores, até 555 mil op¢des com vesting period de
até 5 anos e prazo final de exercicio em dezembro de 2031. O valor justo das op¢des é de R$9,24 cada,
totalizando por estimativa de cancelamento, custo de remuneracdo de R$4.611 que sera reconhecido no
resultado ao longo do vesting period.
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Na tabela a seguir estdo detalhadas as caracteristicas e condi¢des dos programas de outorga de opgbes de

acdes:
_ “dototsl ) Preco de Pre;o’d.e o . I.’r.azo Prazo final de
Programa | Aprovagao aprovado Vesting .. exercicio Participantes inicial de -
exercicio ) o exercicio (¥*)
no plano ajustado exercicio
4 11/14 31.835 1,03% Até 5 anos R$ 30,04 RS$19,34 Diretores e gestores 12/14 12/24
5 12/15 27.710 0,90% Até 5 anos R$30,04 RS$S19,41 Diretores e gestores 12/15 12/25
7 09/19 226.251 7,32% Até 5 anos R$23,42 R$ 14,25 Diretores e gestores 12/19 12/26
8 06/20  653.216 21,12% Até5el10anos R$21,62 R$12,66  Diretores e gestores 12/20 12/27e12/32
10 12/21 338.074 10,93% Até 5 anos R$ 24,17 R$15,16 Diretores e gestores 12/21 12/28
11 07/22 401.761 12,99% Até 5 anos RS 18,99 R$ 17,64 Diretores e gestores 12/22 12/29
12 09/23 527.430 17,06% Até 5 anos R$ 16,85 R$ 16,47 Diretores e gestores 12/23 12/30
13 09/24  554.703 17,94% Até 5 anos R$21,02 R$21,02 Diretores e gestores 12/24 12/31

(*) Apds o ultimo vesting de cada plano, o beneficiario tem trés anos adicionais para exercicio. Os programas 4 e 5 tiveram prorrogado seu prazo final de exercicio em 3 anos,
conforme aprovado pelo Conselho de Administragdo.

A movimentagdo das acGes para os programas de opg¢des de agdes para os exercicios findos em 31 de
dezembro de 2024 e de 2023 e informagdes complementares sdo demonstradas como segue:

Movimentagdo 2024 (opgdes mil)

Programa Quantidade de colaboradores L. . Prescritas /
Saldo inicial | Concedidas

canceladas

21 - -

4 (21)
5 21 - - (6) 15
7 5 - - - 5
8 3 507 - (4) (195) 308
10 16 236 = (3) (31) 202
11 13 359 - (6) (76) 277
12 17 501 - (6) (70) 425
13 24 - 555 - (33) 522
1.650 555 (19) (432) 1.754
Preco de exercicio médio ponderado das opgdes 15,43 21,02 16,04 15,38 17,21
Movimentagdo 2023 (opgdes mil) 1.869 523 (20) (722) 1.650
Preco de exercicio médio ponderado das opgdes 14,47 16,47 15,65 13,69 15,43
Numero de agdes | Custo dasopgcdesno | Custo dasopgbdesaser | Periodo remanescente do
Programa il - a : -
exerciveis (mil) periodo reconhecido custo das op¢des (em anos)
4 21 - - =
5 21 - - -
7 172 - - -
8 339 927 1.626 5,1
10 134 453 369 1,0
11 121 644 936 2,0
12 105 1.036 1.868 3,0
13 55 890 3.721 4,1
2024 968 3.950 8.520 3,7
2023 863 3.320 7.858 4,3

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, caso todas as opgdes atualmente outorgadas fossem exercidas, a Companhia
emitiria 1.754 mil agBes, o que representaria uma diluicdo de 1,96% em relacdo ao total de agbes da
Companhia de 87.859 mil (1,59% em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 as opg¢Oes outorgadas correspondem a 96,85% do total aprovado no plano
(86,79% em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

O prego médio ponderado de mercado das agdes exercidas no exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024,

considerando a data de exercicio, foi de R$18,18 (R$24,17 para o exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de
2023).
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A Companbhia registra nas demonstragdes financeiras a remunerag¢do dos colaboradores baseada em agdes
com base no seu valor justo na data da outorga. O valor justo do programa foi estimado com base no modelo
de valorizagdo de opgGes Black & Scholes, tendo sido consideradas as seguintes premissas médias

ponderadas:
Programa

[ 32 | 4o [ se | e | 7o [ 8 [ 100 | 11e [ 122 | 132 |

521%e
Taxa livre de risco 10,86%  12,42%  16,20% 8,61% 6,43% 6,41%  11,19% 12,56% 11,29% 11,16%
Durag¢do do exercicio em anos (*) 7 7 7 7 7 7el2 7 7 5 7
Volatilidade anualizada esperada 36,56% 27,17% 26,73% 29,38% 30,86% 39,97% 37,48% 39,21% 38,14% 37,74%
Dividendos esperados 5,00% 5,00% 6,02% 5,00% 4,00% 4,00% 4,00% 4,00% 4,00% 4,00%

R$11,83 e

Valor justo da opgdo na data de outorga por agdo R$2,09 R$3,43 R$3,48 R$S4,66 RS4,76 RS12,66 R$S7,51 R$S8,61 R$S7,57 RS$S9,24
(*) Periodo de vesting de até 5 a 10 anos.

Para a taxa livre de risco foi considerado uma média das taxas DI futuras do prazo de exercicio maximo de
cada tranche dos planos, dado por proje¢do da B3.

A volatilidade esperada foi calculada com base na média histdrica da Companhia, de empresas do mesmo
setor de atuacgdo e dos dados da B3.

Participacdes ndo controladoras

Saldoinicial 2.276 79.185
Aportes (distribui¢Bes) liquidos a acionistas ndo controladores 7.824 35
Transacgdo de capital 8.277 (79.728)
Participac¢do nos lucros do periodo 989 2.784
Saldo final 19.366 2.276

(h) Lucro por acdo

O lucro e a quantidade média ponderada de a¢des ordinarias usadas no calculo do lucro basico e diluido por
acdo sdo os seguintes:

Lucro basico poracgdo:

Lucro do periodo 343.389 192.176
Quantidade média ponderada das ag8es ordindrias em circulagdo (milhares) 94.937 99.757
Lucro por acdo basico-em RS 3,61702 1,92644

Lucro diluido poracdo:

Lucro do periodo 343.389 192.176
Quantidade média ponderada das a¢Bes ordinarias em circulagdo (milhares) 94.937 99.757
Efeito diluidor das opgdes de agdes (milhares) 358 80
Quantidade média ponderada das agdes ordindrias em circulagdo (milhares) 95.295 99.837
Lucro por agdo diluido -em RS 3,60343 1,92490
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15. Receitas liquidas

Receita de aluguéis 216.292 220.383 63.962 70.583
Receita de servigos de administracdo de condominios 14.621 10.532 14.621 10.532
Receita de outros servigos 1.931 2.715 1.931 714
Tributos sobre receitas (13.102) (13.474) (7.965) (7.908)
Receita liquida 219.742 220.156 72.549 73.921

No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, a Companhia ndo possuia cliente cuja receita liquida representava
individualmente 10% ou mais do total (nenhum cliente cuja receita liquida representava acima de 10% no mesmo
periodo de 2023).

16. Custos e despesas por natureza

Custos dos servigos prestados -administragdo de condominios (5.334) (3.887) (5.334) (3.887)
Despesas operacionais:
Salarios, encargos e beneficios (19.091) (19.209) (18.878) (18.788)
Consultorias e servigos (9.832) (10.226) (5.538) (6.473)
Despesas gerais (5.019) (6.774) (4.776) (6.259)
Honorarios da administracdo (9.212) (7.856) (9.212) (7.856)
Despesa de vacancia (2.432) (2.318) (508) (640)
Opgdes de agdes (3.950) (3.320) (3.950) (3.320)
Publicidade (1.119) (1.027) (1.116) (1.026)
Depreciacdo e amortizagdo (5.671) (3.972) (2.946) (2.053)
Outras receitas (despesas) operacionais, liquidas:
Venda de ativos (*) (110.532) (159.287) (7.043) (48.780)
Outros (4.590) (6.078) (1.334) (639)
(171.448) (220.067) (55.301) (95.834)
Classificadas como:
Despesas comerciais (9.820) (9.455) (6.357) (6.251)
Despesas gerais e administrativas (37.294) (37.391) (31.355) (32.308)
Honorarios da administragdo (9.212) (7.856) (9.212) (7.856)
Outras receitas (despesas) operacionais, liquidas (115.122) (165.365) (8.377) (49.419)
(171.448) (220.067) (55.301) (95.834)

(*) Vide nota 6(b).

17. Despesas e receitas financeiras

Despesas financeiras

Juros de empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures (nota 8 (d)) (165.737) (175.974) (161.509) (174.779)
Marcacdo a mercado de instrumentos financeiros derivativos (inclui efeito hedge) (1.302) 17.845 (1.306) 18.883
Outras despesas financeiras [1] (30.868) (15.236) (5.403) (2.915)

(197.907) (173.365) (168.218) (158.811)

Receitas financeiras

Rendimento de aplica¢des financeiras 73.255 77.647 64.286 69.888
Ajuste a valor presente 28.882 16.391 6.478 4.393
Receitas de juros de contratos de mutuo 1.027 1.272 3.772 1.327
Outras receitas financeiras [2] 3.641 1.445 1.321 526
106.805 96.755 75.857 76.134

Resultado financeiro (91.102) (76.610) (92.361) (82.677)

[1] Inclui despesas com antecipagdo de recebiveis e juros de passivo de arrendamento.
[2] Inclui efeito tributério sobre receita financeira.
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18. Partes relacionadas

Os saldos e transagBes com partes relacionadas sao como seguem:

31/12/24(31/12/23 [31/12/24|31/12/23|31/12/24|31/12/23 [31/12/24|31/12/23

Aplicacdes financeirase TVM
Outras partes relacionadas:

Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [1] 289.571 275.919 - - 279.711 275.819 - -
Banco Bradesco S.A. [2] 76.145 170.708 - - 76.145 170.708 - -
Créditos com empresas ligadas
Investidas
SPEs [3] - - - - 3.709 - - -

Clientes por aluguéis
Outras partes relacionadas:
Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda. [4] 542 615 - - 29 28 - -
Contas areceber por venda de participacdo societdria
Outras partes relacionadas:
MRV MRL Camp Nou Incorporagdes e ParticipagGes Ltda. [5] 11.146 12.700 - - 11.146 12.700 - -
Fornecedor de servicos
Outras partes relacionadas:

Conedi Participagdes Ltda. e MA Cabaleiro ParticipagBes Ltda.  [6] - - 83 81 - - 83 81
Débitos com empresas ligadas
Investidas
SPEs [10] - - - - - - 465.141 136.205

Receita Despesa
2024 | 2023 | 2024 [ 2023 | 2024 | 2023 | 2024 |

Receitas financeiras
Aplicag¢bes financeiras e TVM
Outras partes relacionadas

Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [1] 29.013 27.829 - - 28.852 25.277 -
Banco Bradesco S.A. [2] 7.854 11.648 - - 7.465 11.257 -
Créditos com empresas ligadas
Investidas
SPEs [3] - - - - 2.516 55 -

Contas a receber por venda de participagdo societdria
Outras partes relacionadas:
MRV MRL Camp Nou Incorporac¢des e Participagdes Ltda [5] 655 405 - - 655 405 -
Receitade aluguéis
Clientes por aluguéis
Outras partes relacionadas:
Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda. [4] 7.955 7.017 - - 342 318 - -
Despesas gerais e administrativas
Outras partes relacionadas:
Conedi Participagdes Ltda. e MA Cabaleiro Participagdes Ltda. [6] - - 1.041 1.028 - - 1.041 1.028
MRV Engenharia e Participag¢des S.A. (MRV) [7] - - 4.796 4.016 - - 4.796 4.016
Outras receitas (despesas) operacionais, liquidas
Outras partes relacionadas:
Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [8] 116 272 - - 116 272 - -
Despesas financeiras
Outras partes relacionadas:
Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [9] - - - 2.174 - - - -

[1]  Refere-se a aplicagdes financeiras com o Banco Inter S.A. e/ou controladas (“Inter”), que é uma empresa controlada pelo acionista controlador
da Companhia. No exercicio findo em 31 de dezembro de 2024, as aplicagdes apresentam rendimento de 91,8% da taxa DI no Consolidado e
Individual (75,9% no mesmo periodo de 2023).

[2] Refere-se a transagdes com o Banco Bradesco S.A., controlador do Banco Bradesco Investimentos (BBI), que por sua vez é controlador da
2bCapital, atual gestor do Fundo de Investimento em ParticipagBes Multisetorial Plus, acionista da Companhia. No exercicio findo em 31 de
dezembro de 2024, as aplicagBes apresentam rendimento de 105,8% da taxa DI no Consolidado e Individual (104,7% no mesmo periodo de
2023).

[3] Refere-se a empréstimo concedido pela Companhia em maio de 2024, para a sua controlada LE Empreendimentos e Participagdes S.A.,
atualizado pela taxa DI + 3,00% a.a. O resultado em 30 de setembro de 2023 refere-se a um empréstimo entre a Companhia e sua controlada
LOG S&o José dos Pinhais, concedido em janeiro de 2018, atualizado pela taxa DI + 2,25% a.a., integralmente quitado em abril de 2023.

[4] Refere-se a contratos de aluguéis de galpdes firmados entre a Companhia e controladas com a empresa Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda.,
controlada por um acionista minoritario da Companhia.



[5]

[6]

[71

[8]

[9]
[10]

O

Em julho de 2018, a Companhia alienou participagdo societaria da subsidiaria MRV LOG MDI SJC | Incorporagbes SPE Ltda. (“LOG SJC Sony”)
para a MRV MRL CAMP NOU Incorporag&es e ParticipagSes Ltda, empresa controlada pela MRV Engenharia e Participagdes S.A. pelo valor total
de R$35.000. O contrato determina pagamentos em duas tranches conforme detalhado abaixo:

I. R$10.800 referentes a 10,81% da participagdo societaria, pagos em 24 parcelas mensais de R$450 cada, atualizados pelo INCC, sendo
a primeira paga ap0s a aprovacgao do loteamento pela prefeitura, evento ocorrido em julho de 2018; e

Il.  R$25.523 (R$24.200 mais atualizagdo pelo IPCA) referentes a 24,22% da participagdo societdria, que estdo sendo pagos em 48
parcelas mensais de R$532 cada, sendo a primeira paga apds aprovacdo da alteracdo do zoneamento de parte da area de industrial
para residencial pela prefeitura, evento ocorrido no quarto trimestre de 2019. Em dezembro de 2023 foi assinado aditivo
repactuando o pagamento para seis parcelas de R$250 de julho a dezembro de 2024 e oito parcelas de R$1.012 de janeiro de 2025
a agosto de 2025.

Nesta transacgdo, foi celebrado acordo de quotistas que passou a caracterizar o controle compartilhado desta empresa, até entdo controlada
pela Companhia. O montante das transagdes que afetam os fluxos de caixa oriundos da LOG SJC ndo sdo relevantes para apresentagdo separada
na demonstragdo dos fluxos de caixa.

Refere-se a contrato de arrendamento referente a fragdo do nono e décimo andar de prédio comercial da sede. A Conedi é acionista da
Companhia e a MA Cabaleiro tem como acionista controlador Marcos Alberto Cabaleiro Fernandez, acionista minoritario e conselheiro da
Companhia. O contrato tem vigéncia até 28 de fevereiro de 2035, incluindo prorrogacdo de contrato e é reajustavel anualmente pelo indice
Nacional de Pregos ao Consumidor Amplo (IPCA). Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 estabelece pagamento total mensal (bruto de tributos) de R$83
(R$81 em 31 de dezembro de 2023). Os valores apresentados no quadro sdo segregados entre despesas administrativas e financeiras quando
da sua contabilizagdo.

Valores referentes a despesas por prestacio de servicos administrativos. O contrato estabelece pagamento mensal de R$429 em 31 de
dezembro de 2024 (R$339 em 31 de dezembro de 2023). Este valor é atualizado semestralmente de acordo com o volume de servico prestado
pela MRV e, anualmente, pelo IPCA. Em 09 de dezembro de 2019, o contrato foi repactuado tornando o prazo de duragdo indeterminado, ndo
havendo oposigdo entre as partes.

Refere-se ao “prémio de preferéncia” pago a Companhia de 25% sobre a receita de crédito obtida pelo banco referente as faturas de
fornecedores descontadas junto ao mesmo. Nestas operagdes sdo mantidas as condigdes originais e substancia econémica das transagdes
realizadas junto aos respectivos fornecedores. Em 31 de dezembro de 2024, o saldo consolidado mantido neste tipo de operagdes encontra-
se apresentado na rubrica de fornecedores e monta em R$1.538 (R$3.369 em 31 de dezembro de 2023).

Refere-se ao desconto financeiro gerado pela antecipagdo de titulo recebivel efetuada no 12 trimestre de 2023.

Valores recebidos das SPEs LOG Recife e LOG Viana | oriundos das vendas dos seus ativos, conforme mencionado na nota 6. Estes saldos foram
eliminados no processo de consolidagdo e serdo compensados quando da distribuigdo dos respectivos lucros ou redugdo de capital destas
sociedades.

Remuneracdo de pessoal-chave

Com base no CPC 05 (IAS 24) — DivulgacGes sobre partes relacionadas, que trata das divulgacGes sobre partes
relacionadas, a Companhia considera pessoal-chave de sua Administragdo os membros do Conselho de
Administragdo e os administradores eleitos pelo Conselho de Administracdo, em consonancia com o Estatuto da
Companbhia, cujas atribui¢Ges envolvem o poder de decisdo e o controle das atividades da Companhia.

Beneficios de curto prazo a administradores:

Honorarios da administragdo 9.212 7.856
Participagdo nos lucros e resultados 3.277 2.577
Beneficios assistenciais 390 95
Beneficios de longo prazo a administradores:
Previdéncia privada (plano de contribui¢do definida) 172 140
Remuneragdo baseada em agdes:
Plano de opgdo de agbes 3.241 2.526
16.292 13.194

Em 19 de abril de 2024, foi aprovada em Assembleia Geral Ordinaria, a remuneragao anual global da Administragdo
no valor de R$16.894.

Além dos beneficios demonstrados acima, ndo sdo garantidos outros beneficios como pds-emprego e de rescisdo
de contrato de trabalho.
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19. Instrumentos financeiros e gerenciamento de riscos

(a) Categoria de instrumentos financeiros e valor justo

. 31/12/24 31/12/23
Consolidado -~ " oo =
Valor contabil | Valor justo |Valorcontabil| Valor justo

Ativos financeiros:

Custo amortizado 979.712 979.712 714.131 714.131
Caixa e bancos 2.079 2.079 1.523 1.523
Contas a receber 4 977.633 977.633 712.608 712.608

Valor justo por meio do resultado (obrigatoriamente mensurado) (*) 812.549 812.549 824.663 824.663
Fundo de investimento restrito 3 525.283 525.283 357.073 357.073
Fundo de investimento ndo restrito 3 196.607 196.607 388.102 388.102
Certificados de depdsitos bancarios (CDB) 3 8.042 8.042 6.890 6.890
Operagbes compromissadas com Istro em debéntures 3 29.259 29.259 - -
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 19 (a) 53.358 53.358 72.598 72.598

Passivos financeiros:

Custo amortizado 1.541.914 1.540.971 1.422.147 1.422.121
Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 1.144.509 1.143.566 1.198.539 1.198.513
Contas a pagar por aquisi¢do de terrenos 9 87.415 87.415 12.585 12.585
Fornecedores 70.243 70.243 58.418 58.418
Arrendamento 13 187.040 187.040 118.719 118.719
Outros passivos 52.707 52.707 33.886 33.886

Valor justo por meio do resultado (contabilidade de hedge ) (*) 921.693 921.693 699.198 699.198
Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 19 (a) 921.693 921.693 699.198 699.198

Valor justo por meio do resultado (obrigatoriamente mensurado) (*) 18.480 18.480 - -
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 19 (a) 18.480 18.480 - -

(*) Ativos e passivos financeiros reconhecidos pelo valor justo com mensuragdo de nivel 2, mediante a técnica de fluxos de caixa descontados.

O valor justo dos empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures foi estimado pela Administragdo do Grupo,
considerando o valor futuro destes na sua data de vencimento pela taxa contratada e descontada a valor
presente pela taxa de mercado em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023.

A Administracdo entende que o valor contdbil dos demais instrumentos financeiros, os quais sdo
reconhecidos nas demonstragdes financeiras pelos seus valores contdbeis ndo apresentam variagOes
significativas em relagdo aos respectivos valores justos.

A Companbhia contratou instrumentos financeiros derivativos para protecado de sua exposi¢cdo a taxas de juros.
Tais operagdes tém como objetivo a prote¢do patrimonial, minimizando os efeitos de tais mudangas através
da substituicdo das mesmas. Seguem abaixo principais condi¢des e efeitos:

Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023, a posicdo dos contratos de swap é como segue:

Efeito no resultado 31/12/24
Tipo de Valor Ponta Valor justo
s Contratagdo Ativo / Passivo Vencimento Pontapassiva | Ganho (perda) | Marcagdo a )

operagao nocional ativa o do
naoperagao mercado "
derivativo
Swap [1] 09/21 IPCA+5,52% /DI +1,23% 09/28 450.000 551.321 465.920 (3.163) (38.054) 47.347
Swap [2] 04/22 IPCA+6,30% /DI +1,47% 03/29 169.650 196.300 175.617 (8.063) (14.672) 6.011
Swap 10/24 Pré-fixado 13,018% /CDI +0,35% 10/29 191.297 195.334 194.950 384 (16.775) (16.391)
Swap 10/24 IPCA+7,1512%/CDI +0,5495% 10/31 49.153  50.235 50.109 126 (2.215) (2.089)
Swap [3] 01/23 LOGG3/CDI+1,84% 05/24 a 08/24 46.312 - - 15.365 - -
4.649 (71.716) 34.878
[1]Ovalorjusto inclui efeito de pagamento liquido de R$88.564.
[2] Ovalorjusto inclui efeito de pagamento liquido de R$28.746. Ativo ndo circulante 53.358

[3]Em junho de 2024, a Companhia liquidou antecipadamente este swap com ganho liquido de R$15.365
Passivo ndo circulante 18.480
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Efeito no resultado 31/12/23

o.:::)ajﬁeo Contratagao Ativo / Passivo Vencimento |Valor nocional | Ponta ativa | Ponta passiva |Ganho (perda)| Marcagdo a Valor justo
naoperagdo mercado do derivativo
Swap (*) 11/18 10,5% /108,95% DI 08/28 16.198 = = (329) = =
Swap 09/21 IPCA+5,52% /DI +1,23% 09/28 450.000 525.679 467.104 (4.013) (13.127) 45.448
Swap 04/22 IPCA+6,30% /DI +1,47% 03/29 169.650 187.178 176.026 (8.216) (678) 10.474
Swap 09/21 LOGG3 /DI +1,75% 01/23e03/23 74.468 - - (38.136) - -
Swap 01/23 LOGG3 /DI +1,84% 05/24 a2 08/24 46.312 69.396 52.236 - 16.676 16.676
50.694 2.871 72.598
(*) Em julho de 2023, a Companhia quitou antecipadamente este swap pelo montante de R$329.
Ativo ciculante 16.676
Ativo ndo ciculante 55.922
Total do Ativo 72.598

Efeito no resultado - Consolidado

Ganh a
_ raop (per:‘a)
na operagdo mercado

2024
Efeito no resultado
Swaps com hedge de valor justo 1.513 (57.911) (56.398)
Swaps sem hedge - (1.311) (1.311)
Efeito noresultado 1.513 (59.222) (57.709)
Efeito redutor do hedge - 57.920 57.920
Efeito Liquido no resultado 1.513 (1.302) 211
2023
Efeito no resultado
Swaps com hedge de valor justo (16.562) 26.722 10.160
Swaps sem hedge - 17.675 17.675
Efeito no resultado (16.562) 44.397 27.835
Efeito redutor do hedge - (26.552) (26.552)
Efeito Liquido no resultado (16.562) 17.845 1.283

Os efeitos no resultado referentes aos derivativos acima mencionados estdo registrados na rubrica despesas
financeiras, conforme sua natureza.

Contabilidade de hedge

Conforme detalhado na nota 2.2 (i), com o objetivo de representar nas demonstracgdes financeiras, os efeitos
das atividades de gerenciamento de riscos e eliminar o descasamento contabil e a volatilidade do resultado
decorrente de mensurar instrumentos financeiros em bases diferentes, o Grupo adotou a contabilidade de
hedge para certos casos.

Para avaliar se existe uma relagdo econémica entre o instrumento de hedge e o item protegido é realizada
uma avaliacdo qualitativa da efetividade do hedge através da comparacdo dos termos criticos de ambos os
instrumentos. Posteriormente, em cada data de relatério e apds eventual ocorréncia de alteracdo
significativa nas circunstancias da relagdo de hedge, é realizada uma avaliagcdo quantitativa, comparando as
mudangas, desde o inicio da relagdo de hedge, no valor justo do instrumento de hedge as mudancas no valor
justo do item protegido (avaliagdo quantitativa de efetividade), conforme abaixo:

Método da compensagdo = Somatodrio da variagdo do valor justo do instrumento de hedge /
Somatorio da variagdo do valor justo do item protegido.

O Grupo designou formalmente instrumentos financeiros derivativos do tipo swap como instrumento de
hedge e trés CRIs como itens protegidos, estabelecendo uma relagdo de protegdao econémica entre eles,
conforme metodologia da contabilidade de hedge. Estas designagGes foram classificadas como hedge de valor
justo, uma vez que reduz o risco de mercado decorrente da variacdo do valor justo do respectivo
financiamento. Desta forma, tanto os derivativos quanto os itens protegidos sdo mensurados ao valor justo
por meio de resultado, havendo a expectativa de que as mudancas nos valores justos se compensem
mutuamente. Seguem os termos criticos e efeitos no balanco patrimonial e a demonstragdo do resultado:
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. Efeito no ) Efeito no
Valor justo alor justo
. - . Valores resultado resultado
Hedge de valor justo Contratagdo | Vencimento nocionais
31/ 2024 m 31/12/2023 m

Financiamento a construgdo 11/18 08/28 - 10% - (1.039)
CRI-192emissdo de debéntures 09/21 09/28 450.000 IPCA+5,52% (513.267) 24.927 (512.552) (18.646)
CRI-202emissdo de debéntures -22série 04/22 03/29 169.650 IPCA+6,30% (181.800) 13.995 (186.646) (6.867)
CRI-242emissdo de debéntures -12série 10/24 10/31 191.297 Pré-fixado 13,018% (178.559) 16.775 - -
CRI-242emissdo de debéntures -32série 10/24 10/31 49.153 IPCA+7,15% (48.067) 2.223 - =
Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 860.100 (921.693) 57.920 (699.198) (26.552)

(Itens protegidos)
Pontas ativas

Operacdo de swap 11/18 08/28 - 10% - - - 1.039
Operagdo de swap 09/21 09/28 450.000 IPCA+5,52% 513.267 (24.927) 512.552 18.557
Operagdo de swap 04/22 03/29 169.650 IPCA+6,30% 181.628 (13.994) 186.500 6.867
Operacdo de swap 10/24 10/31 191.297  Pré-fixado 13,018% 178.559 (16.775) - -
Operagdo de swap 10/24 10/31 49.153 IPCA+7,15% 48.020 (2.215) - -
Instrumentos financeiros derivativos 860.100 921.474 (57.911) 699.052 26.463

(Instrumentos de hedge)
Pontas passivas

108,95% DI o - - 259
DI+1,23% (465.920) - (467.104) -
DI+1,47% (175.617) - (176.026) -
DI+0,35% (194.950) - - -

DI +0,5495% (50.109) - - -
(886.596) - (643.130) 259

Posigdo liquida swap 34.878 (57.911) 55.922 26.722
Posigdo liquida total (886.815) 9 (643.276) 170

(b) Gerenciamento de riscos

Risco de capital

O Grupo administra seu capital para assegurar que as empresas que pertencem a ele possam continuar com
suas atividades normais, ao mesmo tempo em que maximizam o retorno a todas as partes interessadas ou
envolvidas em suas operagdes, por meio da otimizagdo do saldo das dividas e do patrimonio.

A estrutura de capital do Grupo é formada pelo endividamento liquido (divida detalhada na nota 8, deduzidos
pelo caixa e equivalentes de caixa e titulos e valores mobilidrios — TVM, na nota 3) e pelo patrimonio liquido
do Grupo.

A Administracdo revisa, periodicamente, a estrutura de capital da Companhia. Como parte dessa revisdo, a
Administracdo considera o custo de capital, a liquidez dos ativos, os riscos associados a cada classe de capital
e o grau de endividamento do Grupo. Em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023, os indices de endividamento
eram conforme demonstrados a seguir:

Consolidado | individual |
31/12/23 31/12/23

Empréstimos, financiamentos e debéntures 2.066.202 1.897.737 1.990.691 1.897.737
Caixa e equivalentes de caixa e TVM (761.270) (753.588) (649.427) (705.076)
Divida liquida 1.304.932 1.144.149 1.341.264 1.192.661
Patrimonio liquido (PL) 3.605.375 3.732.221 3.586.009 3.729.945
Divida liquida / PL 36,2% 30,7% 37,4% 32,0%

O Grupo nao estd sujeito a nenhum requerimento externo sobre a divida, exceto pelas obrigacGes contratuais
descritas na nota 8 (e).

Risco de mercado

O Grupo realizou analise de sensibilidade para os instrumentos financeiros expostos a variagao de taxas de
juros e indicadores financeiros. A analise de sensibilidade foi desenvolvida considerando a exposicdo a
variacdo dos indexadores dos ativos e passivos financeiros, levando em consideragdo a exposicdo liquida
destes instrumentos financeiros mantidos em 31 de dezembro de 2024, como se os referidos saldos
estivessem em aberto durante todo o exercicio de 2024, conforme detalhado abaixo:
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Ativo financeiro exposto liquido e passivo financeiro exposto liquido: Considerou-se a variagdo entre a taxa
estimada para o ano de 2025 (“cenario provavel”) e a taxa efetiva verificada no ano de 2024, multiplicada
pelo saldo exposto liquido em 31 de dezembro de 2024 para calcular o efeito financeiro, caso o cenario
provavel se materializasse no ano de 2024. Para as estimativas dos efeitos considerou-se uma variagdo na
taxa estimada para 2025 em 25% no cenario possivel e 50% no cenario remoto.

- Efeito
Ativo (passivo) Taxa efetiva Taxa anual Variagdo entre

Ativo Passivo financeiro

Indicadores : X financeiro anualem estimadaparao | taxasparacada
financeiro financeiro iy . total
exposto liquido 2024 ano de 2025 cenario )
estimado

Cenario provavel:

DI/Selic 499.289 (1.966.960) (1.467.671) 10,78% 15,41% (i) 4,63% (67.953)
IPCA 1.807.944 (815.552) 992.392 4,83% 4,39% (i) -0,44% (4.367)
Poupanga - (77.699) (77.699) 6,43% 8,02% (i) 1,59% (1.235)
(73.555)

Cenario l:
Dl/Selic 499.289 (1.966.960) (1.467.671) 10,78% 19,26% 8,48% (124.459)
IPCA 1.807.944 (815.552) 992.392 4,83% 3,29% -1,54% (15.283)
Poupanga - (77.699) (77.699) 6,43% 10,03% 3,60% (2.797)
(142.539)

Cenarioll:
Dl/Selic 499.289 (1.966.960) (1.467.671) 10,78% 23,12% 12,34% (181.111)
IPCA 1.807.944 (815.552) 992.392 4,83% 2,20% -2,63% (26.100)
Poupanga - (77.699) (77.699) 6,43% 12,04% 5,61% (4.359)
(211.570)

(i) Dados obtidos no site da B3.
(ii) Dados obtidos no site do Banco Central.

Conforme requerido pelo IFRS 7 (CPC40) — Instrumentos Financeiros: Evidenciagdo, a Administragdo entende
que as taxas anuais estimadas apresentadas no cendrio provavel acima, refletem o cenario razoavelmente
possivel para o ano de 2025.

Risco de liquidez

A responsabilidade pelo gerenciamento do risco de liquidez é da Diretoria Executiva de Finangas, que revisa
periodicamente as projecGes de fluxo de caixa, através de estudo de cendrios de stress e avalia eventuais
captacGes necessarias, mantendo balanceado o perfil da divida, em linha com a estrutura de capital e nivel de
endividamento a serem mantidos pelo Grupo.

Os fluxos de caixa ndo descontados dos passivos financeiros com base na data mais préxima em que o Grupo
deve quitar as respectivas obrigagdes, com base na projecdo dos indicadores, de 31 de dezembro de 2024
até o vencimento contratual, sdo como seguem:

Em até 1 Dela2 De2a3 Acimade 3 ]
ano anos EN anos ote

Consolidado:

Passivos atrelados a taxas pos-fixadas 483.526 784.919 679.145 802.653 2.750.243
Taxas pré-fixadas 32.700 37.347 38.005 869.720 977.772
Passivos ndoremunerados 111.453 13.397 - - 124.850
Total 627.679 835.663 717.150 1.672.373 3.852.865
Individual:

Passivos atrelados a taxas pos-fixadas 419.296 765.177 663.103 724.662 2.572.238
Taxas pré-fixadas 24.356 25.340 25.340 247.223 322.259
Passivos ndoremunerados 476.083 2.443 - - 478.526
Total 919.735 792.960 688.443 971.885 3.373.023
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Risco de crédito

Refere-se ao risco de uma contraparte ndo cumprir com suas obriga¢des contratuais, levando o Grupo a
incorrer em perdas financeiras. O Grupo estd exposto a riscos de crédito em relagao a:

i)  Contas a receber de clientes: para mitigar este risco, o Grupo adota a politica de apenas negociar com
contrapartes que possuam capacidade de crédito e obter garantias suficientes. A companhia efetua
provisdo para o risco de crédito conforme mencionado na nota explicativa 2.2 (i).

ii) Aplicagdes financeiras: para mitigar o risco default, o Grupo mantém suas aplicagGes em instituicdes
financeiras com rating acima de ‘A’.

20. Garantias

Além das garantias descritas nas notas 6 e 8, o Grupo ndo possui ativos dados em garantia, bem como ndo é
garantidor de quaisquer outros tipos de operagdes de terceiros.

21. Transagoes que nao envolvem caixa ou equivalentes de caixa

Durante os exercicios findos em 31 de dezembro de 2024 e de 2023, a Companhia e suas controladas realizaram

as seguintes atividades de financiamento e investimento nao envolvendo caixa, portanto, ndo estao refletidas na
demonstracdo dos fluxos de caixa:

Capitalizagdo de juros (nota 8(d)) 71.287 84.460 71.287 84.460
Direito de uso (remensurag¢do do CPC 06 (R2)) (nota 13) 10.144 9.941 354 1.884
Direito de uso (adigbes) (nota 13) 50.327 - - -
AdigBes de Propriedades para Investimento (Permutas e contas a pagar de terrenos) 135.999 (48.300) 221.563 11.700
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22. Seguros

O Grupo adota uma politica de seguros que considera, principalmente, a concentragdo de riscos e sua relevancia,
levando-se em consideracdo a natureza de suas atividades e a orientagdo de seus consultores de seguros. A
cobertura dos seguros, em valores de 31 de dezembro de 2024, estd demonstrada a seguir:

Importancia
Tipo de cobertura P
segurada

Garante, durante o periodo de construcdo do empreendimento, indenizagdo
decorrente de danos causados a obra, tais como de incéndio, queda de raio,

Seguro Risco de Engenharia X K N 900.031
roubo, dentre outras coberturas especificas de instalagdes e montagens no
local objeto do seguro.
Responsabilidade Civil Garante a cobertura de danos morais aos administradores da Companhia 50.000
(Administradores) (D&O).
Responsabilidade Civil Garante a cobertura de danos morais aos administradores de condominio da 1.000
(Sindicos) Companhia (D&O).
Seguro de vida em grupo e Garante indenizagdo referente a danos corporais ocorridos involuntariamente
acidentes pessoais a funcionarios, empreiteiros, estagiarios e administradores. 55.067

Garante indenizagdo a Companhia referente aos eventos cobertos ocorridos
Seguro Empresarial nos imdveis comerciais locados, eventos tais como danos elétricos, incéndio, 120.000
queda de raio, vendaval e etc.

Garante ao beneficiario da apdlice o pagamento do valor total do débito em
Seguro garantia judicial discussdo, referente a agdo distribuida ou a ser distribuida perante uma das 4.062
Varas Judiciais. Garantia contratada em substituicdo ao depdsito judicial.

Garante o cumprimento da obrigagao, por parte da Companhia, seja financeira

Seguro Garantia Permuta (pagamento das parcelas devidas) ou de entrega de ABL apds a conclusdo da 77.889
obra acordada, para o permutante.

Seguro Garantia/Fianca Garante ao fornecedor de energia elétrica, o pagamento dos valores 756

Mercado Livre de Energia acordados em contratos anualmente.

23. Aprovagao das demonstragoes financeiras

Estas demonstragdes financeiras foram aprovadas pelo Conselho de administragdo, conforme recomendacdo do
comité de auditoria da companhia em 05 de fevereiro de 2025.
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A free translation from Portuguese into English of Independent Auditor’s Report on individual financial statements prepared in Brazilian currency in
accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil and consolidated financial statements prepared in Brazilian currency in accordance with accounting
practices adopted in Brazil and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB)(currently referred by the IFRS Foundation as “IFRS Accounting Standards”).

Independent auditor’s report on individual and consolidated financial statements

Shareholders, Board of Directors and Officers of
LOG Commercial Properties e Participa¢cdes S.A.
Belo Horizonte - MG

Opinion

We have audited the individual and consolidated financial statements of LOG Commercial
Properties e Participacées S.A. (“Company”), identified as Parent Company and Consolidated,
respectively, which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2024 and the
statements of profit or loss, of comprehensive income, of changes in equity, and of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Opinion on the individual financial statements

In our opinion, the individual financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the individual financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its individual
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
practices adopted in Brazil.

Opinion on the consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2024, and its
consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting practices adopted in Brazil and with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS), issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) (currently referred by the
IFRS Foundation as “IFRS Accounting Standards”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the ‘Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
audit of the individual and consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Company and its subsidiaries in accordance with the relevant ethical principles set
forth in the Code of Professional Ethics for Accountants, the professional standards issued by Brazil's
National Association of State Boards of Accountancy (“CFC”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the individual and consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter, including any commentary on the findings or
outcome of our procedures, is provided in the context of the financial statements as a whole.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
individual and consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

Evaluation of the investment properties fair value

As mentioned in Notes 2.2 (c) and 6 to the individual and consolidated financial statements, the
Company and its subsidiaries’ investment properties, in the amount of R$1.020.308 thousand and
R$4.372.014 thousand, individual and consolidated, respectively, on December 31, 2024, are
measured at fair value based on the discounted cash flows model, for projects in operation or in
construction phase, and direct market inputs comparative method, for land.

This matter was considered significant for our audit since the relevance of the investment properties’
amount in relation to the Company's total assets and the impact of changes in the fair value of
investment property in the statements of profit or loss for the year then ended, in addition to the
uncertainties inherent to the fair value’s estimate, judgment by executive board and main assumptions
determined for measuring at fair value. Changes in any of these assumptions could have a material
impact on the Company's individual and consolidated financial statements.

How our audit addressed this matter

Our audit procedures included, among others: (a) understanding the design of key internal controls
related to the determination of investment properties’ fair value; (b) use of specialists in valuation
models to help evaluate and test methodologies used to measure investment properties’ fair value for
a specific sample, including evaluating the significant assumptions used to estimate fair value and
completeness of data provided by Company’s executive board and Specialists; (c) evaluating the
assurance and completeness of the assumptions used to estimate fair value; (d) assessing historical
estimate cash flows to identify any potential inconsistencies in the future development of estimates
and; (e) performing sensitivity analysis to the significant assumptions used to estimate the investment
properties’ fair value considering other scenarios and assumptions, with comparable market data.
Additionally, we analyzed adequacy of Company’s disclosures on this matter.

Based on the result of the audit procedures performed, which are consistent with the executive
board’s assessment, we consider that the estimates prepared by the executive board to measure the
investment properties’ fair value, as well as respective disclosures in Notes 2.2 (c) and 6, are
acceptable in the context of the individual and consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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Realization of deferred income and social contribution tax assets

As mentioned in Note 11 to the individual and consolidated financial statements, the Company
presented deferred income and social contribution tax balance at December 31, 2024, in the amount
of R$114,024 thousand, both in the individual and consolidated financial statements, recognized on
temporary differences and income and social contribution tax losses.

This matter was considered significant for our audit since the relevance of the amounts involved, the
uncertainties inherent to the business that impact future taxable profit projections, and the judgment
associated with determining the assumptions to ascertain the recoverability of these deferred tax
assets and the impact that any changes in the assumptions could have on the value of these assets
in the Company’s individual and consolidated financial statements.

How our audit has addressed this matter

Our audit procedures included, among others: (a) understanding the design of key internal controls
related to the preparation of the Company’s future taxable profit projections; (b) analyzing the
reasonableness of the assumptions and evaluating the accuracy and integrity of the information used
by Company’s executive board in preparing the deferred tax asset realization analysis, by contrasting
it with business plans, budgets or projects already initiated and other market information; (c) use of
tax experts to assist us in reviewing the changes in temporary differences and the tax bases for
projected future taxable profit; (d) reviewing the historical changes in deferred tax assets; and (e)
conducting a sensitivity analysis of key assumptions, to assess the behavior of deferred tax asset
realization in projections and their fluctuations. Additionally, we analyzed adequacy of Company’s
disclosures on this matter.

Based on the result of the audit procedures performed, which are consistent with the executive
board’s assessment, we consider that the estimates prepared by the executive board to analyze the
realization of deferred tax credits, as well as the respective disclosures in Notes 2.2 (g) and 11, are
acceptable in the context of the individual and consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Other matters

Statements of value added

The individual and consolidated statements of value added for the year ended December 31, 2024,
prepared under the responsibility of Company’s executive board and presented as supplementary
information for IFRS purposes was submitted to audit procedures performed in conjunction with the
audit of the Company's financial statements. For the purpose of forming our opinion, we evaluate
whether these statements are reconciled with the financial statements and accounting records,
as applicable, and whether its form and content are in accordance with the criteria set forth
in Accounting Pronouncement CPC 09 - Statement of Value Added. In our opinion, these statements
of value added has been properly prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the criteria set
forth in this Accounting Pronouncement and are consistent with the overall individual and
consolidated financial statements.
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Other information accompanying the financial statements and the auditor’s report
Executive board is responsible for such other information, which comprises the Management Report.

Our opinion on the individual and consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Management Report and we do not express any form of audit conclusion on this report.

In connection with our audit of the individual and consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the Management Report and, in doing so, consider whether this report is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of the Management Report, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this respect.

Responsibilities of executive board and those charged with governance for the individual
and consolidated financial statements

The executive board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the individual financial
statements in accordance with the accounting practices adopted in Brazil and the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the accounting practices adopted in Brazil and with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
(currently referred by the IFRS Foundation as “IFRS Accounting Standards”), and for such internal control
as referred to board determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the individual and consolidated financial statements, executive board is responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless executive board either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
So.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s and its subsidiaries’
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the individual and consolidated financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the individual and consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Brazilian and
International Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Brazilian and International Standards on Auditing, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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e |dentified and assessed the risks of material misstatements of the individual and consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, designed and performed audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtained an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company and its subsidiaries' internal control.

¢ Evaluated the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the executive board.

e Concluded on the appropriateness of executive board's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the individual and consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our report. However, future events or
future conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluated the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the individual and consolidated financial statements represented the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements, including applicable independence requirements, and communicate all
potential relationships or matters that could materially affect our independence, including, where
applicable, the respective safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determined those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Belo Horizonte, February 05, 2025.
ERNST & YOUNG
Auditores Independentes S.S Ltda.
CRC-SP015199/0

Bruno Costa Oliveira
Accountant CRC-BA031359/0



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

O

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 3 226,237 396,515 224,507 389,057
Marketable securities 3 297,358 127,721 188,831 87,438
Receivables 4 449,769 349,756 89,445 108,812
Inventories 6(d) 197,363 - - -
Recoverable taxes 37,410 36,398 28,923 26,597
Prepaid expenses 8,242 3,756 7,578 2,648
Derivative financial instruments 19 (a) - 16,676 - 16,676
Other assets 2,280 2,195 970 1,026
Total current assets 1,218,659 933,017 540,254 632,254

Noncurrent assets

Marketable securities 3 237,675 229,352 236,089 228,581
Derivative financial instruments 19 (a) 53,358 55,922 53,358 55,922
Receivables 4 527,864 362,852 21,893 73,038
Receivables from related parties 18 - - 3,709 -
Prepaid expenses 11,295 8,934 750 1,256
Recoverable taxes 35,250 42,226 25,138 33,506
Deferred income tax and social contribution 11 (b) 114,024 114,024 114,024 114,024
Other assets 18,379 20,292 29,936 22,522
Total long-term realisable 997,845 833,602 484,897 528,849
Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures 5 158,571 154,218 4,138,125 3,732,937
Investment property 6(a) 4,372,014 4,308,118 1,020,308 964,667
Property and equipment 7 15,354 16,554 15,305 16,492
Intangible assets 11,758 8,936 11,757 8,936
Total noncurrent assets 5,555,542 5,321,428 5,670,392 5,251,881
Total assets 6,774,201 6,254,445 6,210,646 5,884,135

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities

Suppliers 70,243 58,418 8,409 8,627
Payables for investment acquisition 5 - - - -
Loans, financing and debentures 8 243,042 240,843 240,796 240,843
Land payables 9 84,035 9,689 32,160 -
Advances from customers 251,463 446 733 53
Labor and social liabilities 17,325 15,427 12,639 11,186
Tax liabilities 50,119 26,162 20,501 17,922
Barters 10 65,471 100,567 2,841 4,924
Deferred taxes 11 (b) 15,845 13,194 1,076 3,597
Lease liability 13 812 765 812 765
Dividend payable 14 (e) - 45,642 - 45,642
Intercompany payables 18 - - 465,141 136,205
Other liabilities 39,310 17,123 2,533 1,921
Total current liabilities 837,665 528,276 787,641 471,685
Noncurrent liabilities

Loans, financing and debentures 8 1,823,160 1,656,894 1,749,895 1,656,894
Derivative financial instruments 19 (a) 18,480 - 18,480 -
Barters 10 129,429 53,598 51,138 6,776
Deferred taxes 11 (b) 155,969 144,518 5,416 6,995
Land payables 9 3,380 2,896 843 -
Provisions for labor, tax and civil risks 12 1,118 1,325 322 285
Lease liability 13 186,228 117,954 8,459 8,888
Other liabilities 13,397 16,763 2,443 2,667
Total noncurrent liabilities 2,331,161 1,993,948 1,836,996 1,682,505
Total liabilities 3,168,826 2,522,224 2,624,637 2,154,190
Equity

Paid-in capital 2,735,382 2,735,382 2,735,382 2,735,382
Treasury shares (17,756) (38,946) (17,756) (38,946)
Capital reserves 17,240 13,290 17,240 13,290
Earnings reserve 851,143 995,861 851,143 995,861
Proposed additional dividends - 24,358 - 24,358
Equity attributable to Company shareholders 3,586,009 3,729,945 3,586,009 3,729,945
Noncontrolling interests 14 (g) 19,366 2,276 - -
Total equity 3,605,375 3,732,221 3,586,009 3,729,945
Total liabilities and equity 6,774,201 6,254,445 6,210,646 5,884,135

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(In thousands of Brazilian reais - RS, except earnings per share)

Net revenue from lease and services provided 15
Costs of services provided - condominium management 16
Gross profit

Operating income (expenses)

Selling expenses 16

General and administrative expenses 16

Management compensation 16

Changes in the fair value of investment property 6(a)

Other operating expenses, net 16

Results from equity participation 5
I before fi ial i and taxes

Financial income (expenses)
Financial expenses 17
Financial income 17
Income before taxes

Income tax and social contribution

Current
Deferred 11
11

Net income for the period
Net income attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company

Noncontrolling interests 14 (g)
Earnings per share (In Reais - R$):

Basic 14 (h)

Diluted 14 (h)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Parent Company

219,742 220,156 72,549 73,921
(5,334) (3,887) (5,334) (3,887)
214,408 216,269 67,215 70,034
(9,820) (9,455) (6,357) (6,251)
(37,294) (37,391) (31,355) (32,308)
(9,212) (7,856) (9,212) (7,856)
438,001 257,798 16,133 1,860
(115,122) (165,365) (8,377) (49,419)
6,979 7,107 407,703 232,640
487,940 261,107 435,750 208,700
(197,907) (173,365) (168,218) (158,811)
106,805 96,755 75,857 76,134
396,838 184,497 343,389 126,023
(41,648) (44,003) = s
(10,812) 54,466 - 66,153
(52,460) 10,463 = 66,153
344,378 194,960 343,389 192,176
343,389 192,176
989 2,784
344,378 194,960
3.61702 1.92644 3.61702 1.92644
3.60343 1.92490 3.60343 1.92490




LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

O

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023
(In thousands of Brazilian reais - RS)

Net income for the exercice 344,378 194,960 343,389 192,176
Other components of comprehensive income - - - -
Total comprehensive income for the exercice 344,378 194,960 343,389 192,176

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Shareholders of the Company 343,389 192,176
Noncontrolling interests 989 2,784
344,378 194,960

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPACOES S.A.

O

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(In thousands of Brazilian reais - RS)

Proposed .
. ) o Company Noncontrolling Total
Treasury shares . . Earnings Retained earnings additional N )
Recognized options granted Legal — dividends shareholders (Parent interests (Consolidated)
Company)

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31, 2022 2,753,976 (18,594) (51,552) 9,970 71,935 818,918 - - 3,584,653 79,185 3,663,838
Net contributions from noncontrolling shareholders - - - - - - - - - 35 35
Treasury shares:

Purchased - - (4,825) - - - - - (4,825) - (4,825)

Sold - - 1,063 - - (231) - - 832 - 832

Transferred - - - - - - - - - = =

Disposed to beneficiaries of stock option plan - - 16,368 - - (6,582) - - 9,786 - 9,786
Stock options - - - 3,320 - - - - 3,320 - 3,320
Capital transaction - - - - - (10,355) - - (10,355) (79,728) (90,083)
Income of the period - - - - - - 192,176 - 192,176 2,784 194,960
Allocation of net income: - - - - - - - - - - -

Recognition of legal reserve - - - - 9,609 - (9,609) - - - -

Mandatory minimum dividends - - - - - - (45,642) - (45,642) - (45,642)

Proposed additional dividends - - - - - - (24,358) 24,358 - - -

Earnings retention - - - - - 112,567 (112,567) - - - -
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 2,753,976 (18,594) (38,946) 13,290 81,544 914,317 - 24,358 3,729,945 2,276 3,732,221
Net contributions from noncontrolling shareholders - - - - - - - - 7,824 7,824
Treasury shares:

Purchased - - (314,945) - - - - - (314,945) = (314,945)

Sold - - 326,886 - - (326,886) - - - - -

Disposed to beneficiaries of stock option plan - - 9,249 - - (2,944) - - 6,305 - 6,305
Stock options - - - 3,950 - - - - 3,950 - 3,950
Capital transaction - - - - - (8,277) - - (8,277) 8,277 -
Net income for the period - - - - - - 343,389 - 343,389 989 344,378
Allocation of net income:

Recognition of legal reserve - - - - 17,169 - (17,169) - - - -

Proposed dividends - - - - - - (81,556) - (81,556) - (81,556)

Proposed additional dividends - - - - - (68,444) - (24,358) (92,802) - (92,802)

Earnings retention - - - - - 244,664 (244,664) - - - -
BALANCE AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 2,753,976 (18,594) (17,756) 17,240 98,713 752,430 - - 3,586,009 19,366 3,605,375

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPACOES S.A.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023 - INDIRECT METHOD

(In thousands of Brazilian reais - RS)

O

Cash flows from operating activities
Net Income for the exercice

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash generated by (used in)

operating activities:
Depreciation
Results from equity participation
Amortization of prepaid expenses
Allowance for expected credit loss
Provisions for labor, tax and civil risks
Financial result

Results on sale of partial equity interest in subsidiary

Deferred taxes
Changes in the fair value of investment property
Stock options

(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Trade accounts receivable
Recoverable taxes
Prepaid expenses
Other assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Suppliers
Labor and social liabilities
Tax liabilities

Intercompany payables

Other liabilities

Amounts paid for civil, labor and tax risks
Income tax and social contribution paid
Cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Increase in marketable securities
Decrease in marketable securities
Increase in / acquisition of investments
Dividends received from subsidiaries
Aquisition of investment properties
Receipt for the sale of subsidiaries / assets
Advances to related companies
Receipts from related companies
Other
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from loans, financing and debentures, net
Amortization of loans, financing and debentures
Interest paid
Capital transactions
Lease payments
Dividend paid
(Payment) receipt on derivative financial instrument
Disposal (acquisition) of treasury shares
Proceeds from exercised stock options
Contributions from noncontrolling shareholders
Net cash used in financing activities

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
At the beginning of the exercice
At the end of the exercice
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated

Parent Company

344,378 194,960 343,389 192,176

16 5,671 3,972 2,946 2,053
5 (6,979) (7,107) (407,703) (232,640)
1,467 1,731 316 479

787 721 134 188

501 1,000 113 207

130,930 133,262 118,280 125,251

110,532 159,287 7,043 48,780

(11,528) (56,962) (6,593) (67,115)

6(a) (439,298) (258,596) (16,133) (1,860)
16 3,950 3,320 3,950 3,320
140,411 175,588 45,742 70,839

3,563 51,980 111,890 33,717

5,964 (9,350) 6,042 5,461

(8,314) 1,883 (4,740) (1,688)

1,828 (5,800) (7,358) (4,907)

11,825 15,053 (218) 1,797

1,898 1,713 1,453 465

33,968 19,159 998 (7,641)

- - 328,936 -

(88,525) (44,108) (1,512) 114,614

(708) (2,020) (76) (66)

(33,500) (46,868) - -

68,410 157,230 481,157 212,591
(1,232,879) (764,425) (927,036) (522,391)

1,104,126 875,355 861,585 650,663
(624) (2,027) (455,665) (548,835)

5 (c) 3,250 3,000 529,467 457,663
(811,769) (545,394) (7,174) (9,916)

1,262,675 706,404 - 156,773

- - (79,019) -

- - 78,061 -

(6,939) (6,484) (4,226) 890

317,840 266,429 (4,007) 184,847

564,203 242,011 490,999 242,011

8 (a) (385,618) (176,282) (385,618) (157,954)
(192,049) (214,540) (189,439) (212,178)

- - (8,277) -

13 (2,259) (668) (736) (668)
14 (e) (220,000) (91,692) (220,000) (91,692)
(19,989) (89,534) (19,989) (89,534)

14 (b) (314,945) (3,993) (314,945) (3,993)
6,305 9,786 6,305 9,786

14 (g) 7,824 35 - .
(556,528) (324,877) (641,700) (304,222)

(170,278) 98,782 (164,550) 93,216

396,515 297,733 389,057 295,841

3 226,237 396,515 224,507 389,057
(170,278) 98,782 (164,550) 93,216
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LOG COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES E PARTICIPAGOES S.A.

STATEMENTS OF VALUE ADDED FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2024 AND 2023

(In thousands of Brazilian reais - R$)

Revenue:
Revenues from lease and services provided 232,844 233,630 80,514 81,829
Other revenue (60,545) (92,732) (3,197) (13,771)
Changes in the fair value of investment property 6(a) 439,298 258,596 16,133 1,860
Revenue from construction of own assets 893,762 630,814 7,175 9,428
Allowance for expected credit loss (787) (721) (134) (188)
1,504,572 1,029,587 100,491 79,158
Inputs purchased from third-parties (includes the taxes ICMS, IPI, PIS AND COFINS)
Supplies, power, outside services and other items (725,445) (472,552) (38,854) (47,447)
(725,445) (472,552) (38,854) (47,447)
Gross added value 779,127 557,035 61,637 31,711
Depreciation 16 (5,671) (3,972) (2,946) (2,053)
Net wealth created 773,456 553,063 58,691 29,658
Added value received in transfer
Results from equity interest in investees 5 6,979 7,107 407,703 232,640
Financial income 110,211 100,254 79,169 79,612
117,190 107,361 486,872 312,252
Total wealth for distribution 890,646 660,424 545,563 341,910
Wealth distributed
Personnel: 83,662 67,562 36,286 32,870
Salaries and wages 64,490 52,382 28,766 26,130
Benefits 15,517 12,247 6,209 5,499
Severance pay fund (FGTS) 3,655 2,933 1,311 1,241
Taxes and fares: 138,648 94,688 22,554 (23,348)
Federal 135,142 91,807 22,355 (23,841)
State 1 - - -
Municipal 3,505 2,881 199 493
Lenders and lessors: 323,958 303,214 143,334 140,212
Interest 242,606 244,954 139,883 136,180
Rentals / Leases 81,064 57,813 3,392 3,949
Other 288 447 59 83
Shareholders: 344,378 194,960 343,389 192,176
Dividends 14 (e) 81,556 70,000 81,556 70,000
Retained earnings 261,833 122,176 261,833 122,176
Noncontrolling interests 14 (g) 989 2,784 - -
Wealth distributed 890,646 660,424 545,563 341,910

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



LOG Commercial Properties e Participagoes S.A.

[OG

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year ended December 31, 2024
In thousands of Brazilian reais - RS, except if otherwise stated.

1. General information

LOG Commercial Properties e Participagdes S.A. (“Company”) is a publicly traded corporation listed in B3 S.A (B3),
with its head office at 621 Professor Mario Werneck Ave., 10" floor, Belo Horizonte city, Minas Gerais, by CNPJ
(taxpayer identification number) 09.041.168/0001-10. The Company was incorporated on September 10, 2008
and is engaged in the following activities: (i) management of own and third party assets; (ii) rendering engineering
and construction services for residential and/or commercial properties; (iii) development, construction, rent and
related services, including real estate consulting, on own or third-party residential and/or commercial buildings,
mainly warehouses; and (iv) holding interests in other entities, either as partner or shareholder.

Projects are developed by LOG Commercial Properties e Participagdes S.A., its subsidiaries and joint ventures
(“Group”), which are primarily engaged in the construction and rent (operating leases) of industrial warehouses
and, to a lesser extent: development and sale of industrial lots and management services for its own and third-
party condominiums. Delivered and managed projects are located in the States of Minas Gerais, Sdo Paulo, Espirito
Santo, Paran3, Rio de Janeiro, Goias, Ceard, Par3, Sergipe, Bahia, Alagoas, Rio Grande do Norte, Pernambuco, Mato
Grosso do Sul and Distrito Federal.

The Group maintains strong planning for expansion of its activities and, therefore, keep constant assessment of
the financial market aiming at the best opportunities to obtain resources to execute its business plan.

2. Presentation of financial statements, material accounting policies and new
accounting standards

2.1 Presentation of condensed financial statements

Statement of compliance

The Company’s Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting
practices adopted in Brazil and in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”),
asissued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The Parent Company financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with accounting practices adopted in Brazil and are not considered in
conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) because it considers the borrowing cost’s
capitalization on its investees’ qualifying assets, as stated by CPC 20 — Borrowing costs.

The accounting practices adopted in Brazil comprise the policies set out in Brazilian Corporate Law, the
Brazilian Securities and Exchange Commission (CVM) rules and the pronouncements, guidance and
interpretations issued by the Accounting Pronouncements Committee (CPC), approved by the CVM and the
Federal Accounting Council (CFC).

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the balances of ‘Cash and
cash equivalents’, ‘Marketable securities’, ‘Derivative financial instrument’, ‘Investment property’, ‘Barters’
and several financings (hedge accounting), which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
assets.

12
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Basis of consolidation

The Consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled directly by the Company or indirectly through its subsidiaries. The Company's subsidiaries included
in consolidation are listed in Note 5.

In order to determine whether the Company has control over the investees, Management used contractual
agreements to evaluate the existing rights that give the Company the ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investees, as well as exposure to, or rights to, variable returns from its involvement with them and the
ability to use its power to affect the amount of returns.

On consolidation, the assets, liabilities and profits or losses balances of subsidiaries are combined with the
corresponding line items of the Company’s financial statements, on a per line item basis, and the parent
company’s interests in the subsidiaries’ equity, as well as all intragroup transactions, balances, revenue and
expenses are eliminated.

Noncontrolling interest (NCI) are measured initially at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets at the date of acquisition. Changes in the Group's interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as capital transactions in equity.

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary,
and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when the control is lost.

2.2 Material accounting policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables include receivables from asset rentals, net of the allowance for expected credit loss and
receivables from investment properties sales and equity interests in companies that had investment
properties as their main assets, net of the present value adjustment. Rental receivables are not adjusted to
present value since they have mainly short-term maturities and/or have an immaterial impact on the financial
statement. Noncurrent trade receivable balances refer to the straight-line recognition of non-uniform
contractual payments as required in item 81 of CPC 06 R2 (IFRS 16) - Leases (Note 2.2 (n)) and installments
receivable over twelve months from the sale of assets and equity interests.

Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures

In the Company’s Consolidated and Parent Company financial statements, investments in joint ventures are
recorded using the equity method, based on the related investees’ financial statements as of the Company’s
reporting period and using the same accounting policies used in the Company’s financial statements.

Investments in subsidiaries are recorded in the Company’s Parent Company financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, based on the subsidiaries’ financial statements as of the Company’s reporting

period and prepared using the same accounting policies used in the Company’s financial statements.

Profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions are recognized in the financial statements only to
the extent of the interest in the investee held by third parties.

Investment property

Investment property is measured initially at cost or at fair value for land acquired in barter and subsequently
at fair value, with level 3 measurement (assumptions described below). Gains and losses resulting from
changes in the fair value of investment property are recognized in profit or loss for the year.

13
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As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, fair values of investment property were determined based on valuations
performed by external appraisers, with the required qualifications and recent experience in the valuation of
real estate properties in similar locations, as follows:

e Land: use of the Direct Market Inputs Comparative Method, under which fair value is determined by
directly comparing the value of other similar properties, located within the same geo-economic
region.

e Projects in operation or in construction phase: use the discounted cash flows model for a ten-year
period, when the disposal of the investment (divesture) is considered based on a hypothetical sale
of the property simulating the perpetuity principle.

Among the assumptions considered, the main ones were:

e The discount rates used consider the characteristics of the properties being valued and
range from 8.00% to 9.00% p.a. as of December 31, 2024 (8.00% to 9.75% p.a. at December
31, 2023).

e The divesture has been calculated using rates that range from 7.50% to 8.25% p.a. as of
December 31, 2024 (7.50% to 9.00% p.a. at December 31, 2023).

e Projected expenses corresponding to a 1.0 rental revenue as at December 31, 2024 and
2023, for commissions paid to the real estate consultant responsible for the rent of the
property. As of December 31, 2024, and 2023, rates of 1.5% and 2.0% of the residual sale
price for commissions paid to the real estate consultant responsible for the sale of the
property at the end of horizon.

An investment property is derecognized on disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal, where applicable. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property is recognized in line item “Other operating expenses,
net” in profit or loss in the period in which the property is derecognized.

Noncurrent assets held for sale
Noncurrent assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held-for-sale if it is

highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of price carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale and subsequent gains or losses on
remeasurements are recognized in profit or loss.

Inventories

When the disposal of a property occurs while it is still substantially under construction, the asset is transferred
from the "Investment Property" line item to the "Inventories" on the balance sheet, due to its use change.
According to paragraph 60 of IAS 40 (CPC 28) — Investment Property, the cost considered for subsequent
accounting of the property, in accordance with IAS 02 (CPC 16) — Inventories, is its fair value at the date of
the change.

Any gain or loss resulting from the property sale is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which the
property is disposed of underline item "Other operating income and expenses."

(d) Provisions

A provision is recognized a result of a past event, when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation that
can be reliably estimated, and it is probable that a disbursement will be required to settle the obligation.
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When a provision is measured based on the estimated future cash flows required to settle the obligation, the
provision is recorded for an amount representing the present value of such cash flows.

(e) Borrowing costs

(f)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalized, until the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Since financing activities are centrally managed by the Company, interest incurred by the Company on the
financing of its investees’ qualifying assets are capitalized and presented in line item “Investments in
subsidiaries and joint ventures” in the Parent Company financial statements, net of gains obtained on the
temporary investment of funds obtained from specific borrowings that have not yet been spent on the
qualifying assets. In the Consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries’ capitalized borrowing cost are
reclassified to cost of the qualifying financed investment properties. Due to the fact that investment
properties are measured at fair value, the related costs are allocated to profit or loss by deducting the “Results
from equity participation” line item in Parent Company financial statements and “Changes in fair value of
investment properties” line item in consolidated financial statements.

Stock option plan

The Company has a share-based compensation plan under which certain employee’s services are
compensated through the grant of stock options. The Company recognizes compensation cost in profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, from grant date to the date the options become exercisable,
with a corresponding adjustment in equity. Compensation cost was determined based on the fair value of
the options on the grant date using the Black & Scholes pricing model. See Note 14 (f).

(g) Taxes

Current and deferred income tax (IRPJ), social contribution (CSLL), and taxes on revenue are recognized in
profit or loss, except when they correspond to items recognized in ‘Other comprehensive income’, or are
directly recognized in equity, in which case current and deferred taxes are also recognized in ‘Other
comprehensive income’ or directly in equity, respectively.

Income taxes: Income tax (IRPJ) and social contribution (CSLL)

The Company and some subsidiaries calculate income tax and social contribution based on actual taxable
income. As permitted by the Brazilian tax law, the subsidiaries and most joint ventures opted for taxation
based on deemed income, where the income tax and social contribution taxable base is calculated as 32% of
gross revenues from rental services plus financial income. The regular 15% income tax rate is levied on
deemed taxable income, plus a 10% surtax on income exceeding R$240 per annum, and for social contribution
the rate is 9%.

As permitted by the prevailing tax law, the subsidiaries and the joint ventures that elected the deemed
income taxation regime calculate rental revenues, and financial income on a cash basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred income tax and social contribution (“deferred taxes”) are recognized, as prescribed by CPC 32 and
IAS 12 Income Tax, on tax loss carryforwards and the temporary differences between assets and liabilities
recognized for tax purposes and the related amounts recognized in the financial statements by applying the
statutory tax rates in effect on the date the financial statements were prepared and applicable when such
temporary differences reverse.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income will be
generated to realize such deferred tax assets. The realization of deferred tax assets is assessed at the end of
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each annual reporting period and, when it is no longer probable that future taxable income will be available
to recover of all or part of the assets, they are adjusted to the expected recoverable amount.

Taxes on revenue

Revenue is recorded net of PIS and COFINS levied on rental revenue and financial income, and PIS, COFINS
and ISS (Services Tax) on condominium management revenue. The aggregate tax rate of the Social Integration
Program Tax on Revenue (PIS) and the Social Security Funding Tax on Revenue (COFINS) is 9.25%, levied on
actual income (noncumulative regime) for rent revenues and condominium management services and 4.65%
for financial income, while in the deemed income (cumulative regime), the rate of PIS and COFINS is 3.65%
for all income, except financial income which is exempt from taxation of the PIS and COFINS.

Income and expense recognition

Revenue arises from the rental contracts and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of contract.
Rental revenue is recognized to the extent it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and
the amount can be reliably measured. Revenues are being presented net of taxes.

Other income and expenses are recorded on the accrual basis.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instruments and are initially measured at fair value.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance of the financial assets and
liabilities (other than financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are stated at their net amounts in the statement of financial position
if, and only if, the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognized and if there is
intent to simultaneously realize the asset and settle the liability.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified based on the business model under which the asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics, as summarized below:

Financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold
financial assets to collect contractual cash flows on specific dates.

There is not a specific definition within the business model about holding
financial asset to collect contractual cash flows on specific dates orselling
financial assets.

Amortized cost

Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI)

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) All other financial assets.

The Group's main financial assets are shown below, classified as amortized cost, FVTPL and FVTOCI and
presented in Note 19 (b):

e (Cash and cash equivalents: Include amounts held as cash, bank accounts, and highly liquid short-term
investments, redeemable within ninety days or less as of the acquisition date, and subject to insignificant
risk of change in fair value.

e Marketable securities: The balance is primarily composed of investment funds that include public and
private securities (both post fixed), with high liquidity in active markets.
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e Derivative financial instruments: Derivative financial instruments for exposure management, as
described in Note 19 (a).

e Trade receivables: Represented substantially by rental receivables from rental assets and sale of
investment properties and equity interest, as described in item 2.2 (a).

Ordinary purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis.
Ordinary purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets in
accordance with regulation or market practice.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expires,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another party. Upon full derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Classified at initial recognition as: (i) amortized cost; or (ii) measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate
method and include land payables, loans, financing and debentures, except for financings which are
measured at fair value through profit or loss, as they were designated as hedged items, according to the
hedge accounting policy.

Loans, financing and debentures are initially recognized when funds are received, net of transaction costs,
when applicable. At the end of the reporting period, they are carried at their initial recognition amount, less
amortization of installments of principal, when applicable, plus accrued interest. Transaction costs are
presented as a reduction of current and noncurrent liabilities and are recognized in profit or loss over the
same repayment term of the financing from which they were originated based on the effective interest rate
of each transaction. The Group opted to present the interest paid on loans, financing and debentures as
financing activities in the statements of cash flows, since they represent costs of obtaining the referred funds.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and sum of the consideration

paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group entered derivative financial instruments (swaps) to hedge its exposure to changes in indexes and
interest rates in several loans, financing and debentures or hedge against changes in the fair value of certain
financial instruments.

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. After initial recognition, derivatives are still measured at fair
value and changes in fair value are recorded in profit or loss.

To hedge against changes in fair value of certain debts, the Company contracted derivative financial
instruments and, for avoiding accounting mismatch in the measurement of these instruments, opted for
hedge accounting (designations classified as fair value hedge). Accordingly, changes in fair values of hedging
instruments (derivatives) and hedged items (contracted debts) are recognized in profit or loss.

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Company assesses whether the hedge relationship qualifies
for hedge accounting; if positive, it formally documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and
the hedged item. The assessment of whether the relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements
is made and documented at the inception of the hedge relationship, on each reporting date and potentially
on a relevant change in circumstances that affect the effectiveness requirements. Adjustments to hedge
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relationships are permitted after designation, without being considered a "discontinuity" of the original
hedge relationship.

The Group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedge relationship (or part thereof) no longer meets
the qualifying criteria. This includes cases where the hedging instrument expires, is sold, terminated or

exercised. Discontinuation is accounted for prospectively.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognize allowance for expected credit loss for all rental revenue recorded for customers, based
on historical data. Additionally, it performs individualized analysis of balances overdue for more than ninety
days and in cases which there is no prospect of recovery, the entire outstanding balance of such contract is
considered for provision. This simplified approach is in accordance with item 5.5.15 of CPC 48 — Instrumentos
Financeiros (IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments).

The Group periodically reviews its assumptions to recognize allowance for expected credit loss considering
revision of historical transactions and improvement of its estimates.

Discount to present value

Monetary assets and liabilities are adjusted to their present value based on an effective interest rate resulting
from short- (if material) and long-term transactions, without yield or subject to: (i) embedded fixed interest;
(i) interest rates clearly below market rates for similar transactions; and (iii) inflation adjustment only, with
no interest. The Group periodically assesses the effect of this standard.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities, and revenues and expenses in the reporting periods.
Assets and liabilities which are subject to these estimates and assumptions include the fair value of
investment property, and derivative financial instruments, use of deferred tax assets, barters and provisions
for labor, tax, and civil risks. Since management’s judgment involves estimates related to the probability of
future events, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The Company revises its estimates and assumptions at least annually. The effects arising from these revisions
are recognized in the year when the estimates are revised if such revision impacts only that year, or also in

subsequent years if the revision impacts both the current period and future years.

Functional and reporting currency

The Group's functional and presentation currency used in the Consolidated and Parent Company financial
statements is the Brazilian real. The financial statements are presented in thousands of Brazilian reais, unless
otherwise stated.

Statement of added value

The Company prepares consolidated and parent company statements of added value in accordance with
Brazilian Accounting Standard CPC 09 - Demonstrag¢do do Valor Adicionado (Statement of Added Value),
which are presented as an integral part of the financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting
practices adopted in Brazil applicable to publicly held companies, while for IFRS purposes they are presented
as supplemental information.

Leases

The Group as a lessor

The Group classifies leases as financial or operational. The lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as
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operating if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the
underlying asset.

The Group does not have lease agreements in which it is a finance lessor, classifying all its leases as operating
(rental contracts of investment properties). Revenues from operating leases of investment properties are

recognized in profit or loss by the straight-line method during the lease period.

The Group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of the
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Such assessment is performed at inception.
Exemptions are applied for short-term leases and low-value items.

The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
(ii) any lease payments made until the commencement date; (iii) direct costs incurred; and (iv) estimated costs
to be incurred in dismantling and removing the asset, when applicable and are recognized under “Property
and equipment” and “Investment Property”.

Lease liability is measured by the lease payments, discounted at present value at the implicit interest rate,
incremental borrowing rate or discount rate used in measuring the fair value of investment property pursuant
to item 2.2 (c) and represents the obligation to make payments.

As a lessee, the Group identified contracts that contain leases, referring to the rents of its headquarters and
project land. For purposes of estimating the initial recognition of the lease liability and the right of use, an
extension of the lease term for the same period for the headquarters and the contractual term for the land
was considered.

In determining the lease term, the Group considers all the facts and circumstances that create an economic
incentive to exercise the option of extension, or not exercise a termination option. Extension options (or
periods after the termination options) are included in the lease term only if the lease term is reasonably
certain to be extended (or not terminated). The assessment is reviewed if there is a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that affects that assessment and is within the control of the Group. The
contracts extension assessment affects the amounts of the recognized lease liabilities and rights-of-use assets.

In the statement of profit or loss for the period, an expense for depreciation of the right-of-use asset and an
interest expense for the lease liability are recognized.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income attributed to the holders of common shares of
the parent entity by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, less
treasury shares, if any.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing net income attributed to the holders of common shares
of the parent entity by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the year, less
treasury shares, if any, plus the number of common shares that would be issued assuming that the stock
options would be exercised at a price lower than the market price.

Segment information

An operating segment carries out business activities to earn revenue and incur expenses. Operating segments
reflect the way Management makes decisions and allocate resources. The Company's Management identified
an operational segment that meets the quantitative and qualitative parameters, for disclosure, represented
by leases of industrial warehouses and eventual sale of these assets.
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There are no new standards or interpretations, valid for the annual periods beginning on or after January 1st, 2024,
which had material effects on the Group's financial statements. The Group decided not to adopt anticipatedly any
other standard, interpretation or amendment that have been issued, but are not yet in force.

2.3 Adoption of new standards

2.4 New standards issued and not yet adopted

On the date of issue of the financial statements, the Group did not adopt the following IFRS (CPCs), already issued
and not yet applicable:

IFRS 18: Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

e Amendments to CPC 18 (R3) - Investment in associates, subsidiaries and controlled enterprises
jointly and ICPC 09 - Individual financial statements, separate statements, consolidated statements and
application of the equity equivalence method

e Amendments to CPC 02 (R2) - Effects on changes in exchange rates and conversion of financial statements and
CPC 37 (R1) — Initial adoption of international accounting standards.

e IFRS 19 — Subsidiaries without Public Obligation: Disclosure

Management does not expect the adoption of the standards listed above to have a material impact on the Group's
financial statements in future periods, except for the following standards:

IFRS 18: Presentation and disclosure of financial statements

In April 2024, the IASB issued IFRS 18, which replaces IAS 1 (equivalent to CPC 26 (R1) - Presentation of Financial
Statements. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements for presentation within the income statement, including totals
and specified subtotals. In addition, entities are required to classify all revenues and expenses within the income
statement into one of five categories: operating, investment, financing, income taxes and discontinued operations,
of which the first three are new.

The standard also requires the disclosure of management-defined performance measures, subtotals of revenues
and expenses, and includes new requirements for the aggregation and disaggregation of financial information
based on the identified “functions” of the primary financial statements and explanatory notes.

The entity must apply IFRS 18 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2027, with early

adoption permitted, subject to approval by the local authority. The standard requires retrospective application
with specific transition provisions. The impacts of adopting the standard are still being assessed by management.

3. Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities

Breakdown is as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash 1,670 31 1,670 31
Bank accounts 409 1,492 342 924
Short-term investments:
Bank certificates of deposit (CDB) 8,042 6,890 8,042 -
Unrestricted investment funds 186,857 388,102 186,857 388,102
Securities with repurchase agreement backed by debentures 29,259 - 27,596 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 226,237 396,515 224,507 389,057
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Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Marketable securities:

Restricted investment funds [1] 525,283 357,073 424,920 316,019
Unrestricted investment funds [2] 9,750 o - -
Total marketable securities 535,033 357,073 424,920 316,019
Current 297,358 127,721 188,831 87,438
Noncurrent 237,675 229,352 236,089 228,581

535,033 357,073 424,920 316,019

[1] The Group established restricted investment funds, managed by banks, responsible for the custody of the assets and financial settlement of its
transactions. The established funds aim at yielding interest equivalent to DI rate and invest in government and other banks securities, which in turn
invest primarily in fixed-income securities.

[2] The Group holds unrestricted investment fund shares locked as collateral for the payment of land.

Short-term investments and marketable securities yielded interest equivalent to 93.85% of DI rate in Consolidated
and 94.66% Dl rate in Parent Company for the year ended December 31, 2024 (90.87% of DI rate in Consolidated
and 90.67% of DI rate in Parent Company at December 31, 2023).

The breakdown of the restricted investment fund’s portfolio, proportionately to the units held by the Company
and subsidiaries is as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Securities with repurchase agreement 923 3,013 173 1,491
Bank certificates of deposit (CDB) 37,469 1,645 34,669 814
Investment funds 39,618 16,583 37,137 13,402
Debentures 33,568 24,331 6,291 13,473
Private bonds 76,366 27,028 39,880 16,113
Public securities:

Financial Treasury Bills (LFT) 63,640 14,040 53,120 6,949

National Treasury Notes - B (NTN-B) 237,675 229,352 236,088 228,582

National Treasury Bills (LTN) 22,227 11,760 4,166 5,821
Others 13,797 29,321 13,396 29,374
Total 525,283 357,073 424,920 316,019

The Company assessed the credit risk of the counterparty of its financial investments as described in Note 19(b).

4. Trade receivables

Trade receivables, net of adjustment to present value, are broken down as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

Sale of equity interest /assets 905,419 648,504 79,696 153,781
Rentals 68,646 57,086 15,538 14,725
Condominium administration 2,269 1,260 2,269 1,260
Others (*) 13,501 17,173 17,433 15,548
989,835 724,023 114,936 185,314
Allowance for expected credit loss (12,202) (11,415) (3,598) (3,464)
Total 977,633 712,608 111,338 181,850
Current 449,769 349,756 89,445 108,812
Noncurrent 527,864 362,852 21,893 73,038

977,633 712,608 111,338 181,850

(*) Others refer substantially to condominium reimbursements and accounts receivable from partners in projects.

The rentals trade receivables balance refers to the lease of industrial warehouses, under operating leases subject
to Law 8245/91 ("Lease Law"), which provisions include, among other, procedures for cancellation of lease
agreements and their termination penalties, which are commercially agreed with each tenant. The lease
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agreements are adjusted on an annual basis predominantly by the Broad Consumer Price Index (IPCA), subject to
negotiations between the parties.

Condominium administration refers to the provision of management services for its own condominiums.

Trade receivables from the sale of equity interest and assets are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Seattle I (*) 223,883 350,847 37,314 58,475
Seattle Il (*) 62,547 98,051 - -
Seattle 111 (*) 220,203 - - -
Seattle IV (¥) 223,475 - - -
LGCP11 (*) 80,064 64,023 27,283 15,556
Roma (*) 80,148 - - -
Toronto (*) - 48,680 - 31,555
SPELOG PIB Meli - 38,708 - -
Torino - 27,196 - 27,196
SPE LOG SJC Sony (Note 18 [5]) 11,146 12,700 11,146 12,700
Plaza Top Life 3,953 8,299 3,953 8,299

905,419 648,504 79,696 153,781
Current 416,056 315,178 70,036 94,708
Noncurrent 489,363 333,326 9,660 59,073

905,419 648,504 79,696 153,781

(*) Updated by IPCA.

The table below shows the aging list of trade receivables:

12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

Indue:

Upto 1lyear 446,426 347,712 85,005 106,449
After 1 year 527,864 362,852 21,893 73,038
974,290 710,564 106,898 179,487

Pastdue:
Up to 30 days 1,626 2,458 2,885 2,934
31to90days 783 135 621 174
More than 90 days 13,136 10,866 4,532 2,719
15,545 13,459 8,038 5,827
Total 989,835 724,023 114,936 185,314

Changes in the allowance for expected credit loss for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows,
carried out on the balances of trade receivable from rentals:

Openingbalance (11,415) (10,694) (3,464) (3,276)
Additions (787) (870) (134) (337)
Reversals - 149 - 149
Closing balance (12,202) (11,415) (3,598) (3,464)
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Future minimum rental receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

1lyear 226,609 234,413 50,581 48,011
2 years 214,829 234,899 40,056 42,106
3years 184,318 211,176 25,829 33,093
4 years 157,076 176,656 15,308 19,862
5years 124,870 137,303 8,759 12,568
After 5 years 288,509 413,609 10,744 31,550
Total 1,196,211 1,408,056 151,277 187,190
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5. Investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

a)

Main information on each investment is summarized below:
Results from
equity

Informati ninvestees
Equit Net income (loss) for
AUV the year interestin investees

(12731723 12731733 | 12/31/2a | 13/31/3 | 202s | 20m | a/aijaa | ma/ajas | zo2a | zom |

Equity interest

Joint ventures:

Loteamento Betim 50.00% 50.00% 151,862 144,745 12,501 14,205 75,931 72,373 6,251 7,103
LOG SJC Sony 64.97% 64.97% 111,599 109,636 1,861 387 72,506 71,231 1,209 251
Others 16.67% 16.67% 480 2,231 (1,008) 2,511 204 372 (169) 419
Capitalized interest (a) - - - - 9,930 10,242 (312) (666)
Total joint ventures - Consolidated 263,941 256,612 13,354 17,103 158,571 154,218 6,979 7,107
Subsidiaries:

LOG | 100.00% 100.00% 142,204 147,289 11,797 12,838 142,204 147,289 11,797 12,838
LOG I 100.00% 100.00% 60,805 59,222 4,440 2,496 60,805 59,222 4,440 2,496
LOG Jundiai 100.00% 100.00% 96,262 95,777 4,647 4,286 96,262 95,777 4,647 4,286
LOG Goiania 100.00% 100.00% 122,547 144,785 986 12,404 122,547 144,785 986 12,404
LOG Hortoldndia 100.00% 100.00% 141,675 139,458 7,595 13,495 141,675 139,458 7,595 13,495
LOG SIP 100.00% 100.00% 19,609 18,323 1,286 (4,659) 19,609 18,323 1,286 (4,659)
LOG Juizde Fora 100.00% 100.00% 136,842 120,887 (1,246) 15,084 136,842 120,887 (1,246) 15,084
LOG Feira de Santana 100.00% 100.00% 41,601 40,839 3,088 1,667 41,601 40,839 3,088 1,667
LOG Fortaleza 100.00% 100.00% 157,217 150,928 14,194 9,723 157,217 150,927 14,194 9,723
LOG Via Expressa 100.00% 100.00% 140,136 176,019 (15,107) 7,310 140,136 176,019 (15,107) 7,310
LOG Viana 100.00% 100.00% 127,174 135,867 2,616 8,724 127,174 135,867 2,616 8,724
LOG Londrina 100.00% 100.00% 34,046 61,847 559 (22,552) 34,046 61,847 559 (22,552)
LOG Itatiaia 100.00% 100.00% 68,534 65,431 5,401 3,022 68,534 65,431 5,401 3,022
LOG Aracaju 100.00% 100.00% 17,823 30,421 (636) (12,095) 17,823 30,421 (636) (12,095)
LOG Extrema 97.48%  97.48% 670 1,713 (1,043) 1,075 653 1,670 (1,017) 1,048
LOG Uberaba 100.00% 100.00% 50,525 47,380 5,835 3,299 50,525 47,380 5,835 3,299
LOG ltaitinga | 100.00% 100.00% 115,361 113,941 1,155 (33,565) 115,361 113,940 1,155 (33,565)
LOG Recife 100.00% 100.00% 176,789 299,535 1,521 (16,012) 176,789 299,535 1,521 (18,095)
LOG Itapeva 100.00% 100.00% 122,010 122,121 6,386 17,041 122,010 122,121 6,386 17,041
LOG PIB Meli 100.00% 100.00% 4,469 36,454 320 (4,981) 4,469 36,454 320 (4,981)
LOG Salvador 100.00% 100.00% 213,497 283,506 (15,787) 26,657 213,497 283,506 (15,787) 26,657
LOG Maceid 100.00% 100.00% 117,554 107,315 9,289 4,963 117,554 107,315 9,289 4,964
LOG Sumaré 100.00% 100.00% 35 34 1 1 35 34 1 1
LOG SJRP 100.00% 100.00% 41,810 23,400 17,794 (745) 41,810 23,400 17,794 (745)
LOG Macaé 100.00% 100.00% 14,158 14,138 (254) (219) 14,158 14,138 (254) (219)
LOG RP 100.00% 100.00% 123,687 56,186 6,740 (2,349) 123,687 56,186 6,740 (2,349)
LOG Viana ll 100.00% 100.00% 137,366 179,181 (9,494) 3,596 137,366 179,181 (9,494) 3,596
LOG Natal 100.00% 100.00% 102,375 57,278 5,014 (1,986) 102,375 57,278 5,014 (1,986)
LOG Contagem IV 100.00% 100.00% 133,331 106,020 (90) (14,886) 133,331 106,020 (90) (14,886)
LOG Teresina 0.00% 0.00% - - - - - - - (61)
LOG Campo Grande 100.00% 100.00% 155,972 45,249 45,812 18,629 155,972 45,249 45,812 18,629
LOG Brasilia 100.00% 100.00% 164,845 148,169 (1,404) 5,963 164,845 148,169 (1,404) 5,963
LOG Cuiaba 100.00% 100.00% 63,323 18,467 (3,433) 17,316 63,323 18,467 (3,433) 17,316
LOG Joinville 100.00% 100.00% 39,157 1,349 35,829 (78) 39,157 1,349 35,829 (78)
LOG Itaitinga Il 100.00% 100.00% 194,915 272,928 595 81,274 194,915 272,928 595 81,274
LOG Goiania lll 100.00% 100.00% 83,210 1,259 60,610 (3) 83,210 1,259 60,610 (3)
LOG Betim Il 100.00% 100.00% 1 - (2) (3) 1 - (2) (3)
LOG Gravatai ll 100.00% 100.00% 28,896 2 28,043 (3) 28,896 2 28,043 (3)
LOG Sdo Bernardodo Campo 100.00% 100.00% 2,174 70,313 3,766 58,033 2,174 70,313 3,766 58,033
LOG Contagem V 100.00% 100.00% 528 48 (2) (2) 528 48 (2) (2)
LOG S3o José dos Pinhais Il 100.00% 100.00% 76,165 24,078 (2,071) 21,948 76,165 24,078 (2,071) 21,948
LOG Recife Il 100.00% 100.00% 201,838 46,246 69,840 44,905 201,838 46,246 69,840 44,905
LOG Jodo Pessoa 100.00% 0.00% 72,065 - 54,666 - 72,065 - 54,666 -
LOG Salvador Il 100.00%  0.00% 9,753 - (115) - 9,753 - (115) -
LOG Cariacica 100.00% 0.00% 98,628 - 98,625 - 98,628 - 98,625 -
LDI 100.00% 100.00% 1,389 1,333 56 102 1,389 1,333 56 102
LE Empreendimentos 86.03%  98.08% 138,484 116,260 7,715 31,055 119,138 114,028 6,701 30,450
Capitalized interest (a) - - - - 7,462 - (63,825) (84,460)
Total subsidiaries 3,991,455 3,580,996 465,537 312,768 3,979,554 3,578,719 400,724 225,533
Total Parent Company 4,255,396 3,837,608 478,891 329,871 4,138,125 3,732,937 407,703 232,640

(a) Amount related to the capitalized financial charges on loans, financing, and debentures taken by the Company for the acquisition/development of its investees’ investment properties
and industrial subdivision (Note 2.2 (e)).
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Joint ventures:

e Betim | Incorporagdes SPE Ltda. (“Loteamento Betim”) is mainly engaged in the subdivision of industrial
land for sale and development, building and rental of business assets, primarily, logistics warehouses.

e MRV LOG MDI SIC | IncorporagBes SPE Ltda. (“LOG SJC Sony”) is mainly engaged in the rent of own
properties, construction, and development of real estate projects.

The net income or loss generated by these entities are assumed by each shareholder, according to the
percentage equity interest held.

There are no contractual restrictions on the distributions of funds generated by the operating activities from
the joint ventures to their controlling shareholders.

Summarized financial information of the joint ventures is as follows:

L0G sic sony
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23
834 3

Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities 4,524 3

Trade receivables 12,153 4,801 - -
Inventories 42,501 39,901 - -
Other current assets 4 24 - -
Total current 55,492 49,250 3 3
Trade receivables 10,208 7,056 - -
Inventories 94,238 95,596 - -
Investment property - - 115,700 113,601
Other noncurrent assets 2 - - -
Total noncurrent assets 104,448 102,652 115,700 113,601
Total assets 159,940 151,902 115,703 113,604
Current liabilities 7,951 6,908 9 14
Noncurrent liabilities 127 249 4,095 3,954
Equity 151,862 144,745 111,599 109,636
Liabilities and equity 159,940 151,902 115,703 113,604
N e e aw

2024 | 2023 | 2024 |

Operatingrevenue 20,900 24,713 - -
Cost of products and services (7,343) (9,784) - -
Other operating expenses (a74) (42) 1,927 (78)
Financial income (expenses) 69 129 (1) (2)

Changes in the fairvalue

ofinvestment property - - - 482
Income tax and social contribution (651) (811) (65) (15)
Net income (loss) for the year 12,501 14,205 1,861 387
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c) Changes in the balance of investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures in the years ended December 31,
2024, and 2023 are as follows:

- Results from
Startup Opening a.plta.l equity Dividends Closing
contributions ) ) )
date balances interestin received balances
(reversals) )
investees
Year ended December 31, 2024:
Joint ventures:
Loteamento Betim 3/18 72,373 557 6,251 (3,250) = 75,931
LOG SJC Sony - 71,231 66 1,209 - - 72,506
Others = 372 1 (169) = = 204
Capitalized interest (a) 10,242 - (312) - - 9,930
Total joint ventures - Consolidated 154,218 624 6,979 (3,250) - 158,571
Subsidiaries:
LOGI 2/09 147,289 3,535 11,797 (20,417) = 142,204
LOG I 3/11 59,222 1,507 4,440 (4,364) - 60,805
LOG Jundiai 4/11 95,777 1,220 4,647 (5,382) = 96,262
LOG Goiania 4/12 144,785 3,462 986 (26,686) - 122,547
LOG Hortolandia 9/12 139,458 3,806 7,595 (9,184) = 141,675
LOG SIP 4/13 18,323 - 1,286 - - 19,609
LOG Juizde Fora 6/13 120,887 22,129 (1,246) (4,928) = 136,842
LOG Feira de Santana 6/13 40,839 744 3,088 (3,070) - 41,601
LOG Fortaleza 8/13 150,927 3,677 14,194 (11,581) s 157,217
LOG Via Expressa 11/13 176,019 1,048 (15,107) (21,824) - 140,136
LOG Viana 4/14 135,867 (2,569) 2,616 (8,740) s 127,174
LOG Londrina 6/14 61,847 40 559 (28,400) - 34,046
LOG Itatiaia 7/14 65,431 1,687 5,401 (3,985) s 68,534
LOG Aracaju 10/18 30,421 (11,962) (636) - - 17,823
LOG Extrema 10/19 1,670 s (1,017) = s 653
LOG Uberaba 9/20 47,380 1,025 5,835 (3,715) - 50,525
LOG Itaitinga | 9/21 113,940 266 1,155 - - 115,361
LOG Recife 5/22 299,535 (124,267) 1,521 - - 176,789
LOG Itapeva 8/22 122,121 1,534 6,386 (8,031) - 122,010
LOG PIB Meli 8/22 36,454 (32,305) 320 - - 4,469
LOG Salvador 6/23 283,506 22,522 (15,787) (76,744) - 213,497
LOG Maceid 6/23 107,315 11,223 9,289 (10,273) - 117,554
LOG Sumaré - 34 - 1 - - 35
LOG SJIRP - 23,400 639 17,794 (23) - 41,810
LOG Macaé - 14,138 274 (254) - - 14,158
LOG RP 12/24 56,186 64,138 6,740 (3,377) - 123,687
LOG Viana ll 4/23 179,181 6,842 (9,494) (39,163) - 137,366
LOG Natal 2/24 57,278 42,752 5,014 (2,669) - 102,375
LOG Contagem IV 6/24 106,020 28,617 (90) (1,216) - 133,331
LOG Campo Grande 9/24 45,249 65,155 45,812 (244) - 155,972
LOG Brasilia 12/23 148,169 24,714 (1,404) (6,634) s 164,845
LOG Cuiaba - 18,467 48,289 (3,433) - - 63,323
LOG Joinville - 1,349 2,590 35,829 (611) - 39,157
LOG Itaitinga Il 7/23 272,928 (78,601) 595 (7) - 194,915
LOG Goiania Il - 1,259 186,453 60,610 (165,112) - 83,210
LOG Betim IlI - - 210 2) (207) - 1
LOG Gravatai Il - 2 851 28,043 - - 28,896
LOG Sédo Bernardo do Campo 12/24 70,313 (71,903) 3,766 (2) - 2,174
LOG Contagem V - 48 60,110 (2) (59,628) - 528
LOG S3o José dos Pinhais Il - 24,078 54,158 (2,071) - - 76,165
LOG Recife Il 12/24 46,246 85,752 69,840 - - 201,838
LOG Jodo Pessoa - - 17,399 54,666 - - 72,065
LOG Salvador I - - 9,868 (115) - - 9,753
LOG Cariacica - - 3 98,625 - - 98,628
LDI - 1,333 - 56 - - 1,389
LE Empreendimentos 3/24 114,028 (1,591) 6,701 - - 119,138
Capitalized interest (a) - - (63,825) - 71,287 7,462
Total subsidiaries 3,578,719 455,041 400,724  (526,217) 71,287 3,979,554
Total Parent Company 3,732,937 455,665 407,703 529,467 71,287 4,138,125
Year ended December 31, 2023:
Total Consolidated 148,084 2,027 7,107 (3,000) - 154,218
Total Parent Company __ 3,335,020 548,835 232,640 (457,663) 74,105 3,732,937

(a) Amount related to the capitalized financial charges on loans, financing, and debentures taken by the Company for the acquisition/development of its investees’ investment properties

and industrial subdivision (Note 2.2 (e)).
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6. Investment property

(a) Balances and transactions

Investment property refers to industrial warehouses that are held to produce rental income or for capital
appreciation (including assets under construction for this purpose), whose balances and respective transactions as
of December 31, 2024, and 2023 are shown as follows:

Openingbalance 4,308,118 4,878,721 964,667 1,285,418
Additions 947,768 497,094 228,737 21,616
Right-of-use of land [1] 57,401 6,139 - -
Capitalized interest (Note 8 (d)) 63,825 84,460 - -
Sale of assets [2] (510,100) (1,159,870) (2,106) (156,069)
Cancellation of land contracts (189,901) - - -
Transfer to noncurrent assets available for sale (744,395) (165,000) (39,782) (106,620)
Write-off due to spin-offin subsidiary - (92,022) - -
Transfer ofinvestment properties to SPE - - (147,341) (81,538)
Changes in fair value [3] 439,298 258,596 16,133 1,860
Closing balance 4,372,014 4,308,118 1,020,308 964,667

[1] Right-of-use of land, which will be amortized using the straight-line basis and remeasured at each reporting date, see Note 13.
[2] Write-off due to asset sale as disclosed in the “Sale of assets” table in this note.
[3] Refers to fair value valuation of all LOG assets.

Effects of changes in the fair value of investment property on profit or loss, net of PIS/COFINS deferred taxes are

as follows:
Changes in fair value ofinvestment property 439,298 258,596 16,133 1,860
Deferred PIS/COFINS (1,297) (798) - -
Changes in fair value ofinvestment property in profit or loss 438,001 257,798 16,133 1,860

(b) Sale of assets

In the year ended on December 31, 2024, assets were sold, as shown below:

Effect on results

Plaza
. LOG Via LOG LOG LOG LOG LOG Total
Tapajos
Expressa Salvador Gaiolli i Goiania Vianall |Fortalezalll

Sales revenue and other related revenue 1,950 176,403 341,489 39,562 76,755 135,017 183,789 327,085 1,282,050
Investment property write-off (2,106) (181,366) (326,628) (39,782) (76,963) (135,133) (176,717) (315,800) (1,254,495)
PIS and COFINS (180) (6,439) (12,464) (3,659) (2,802)  (4,928)  (6,708)  (11,939) (49,119)
Others costs [1] (13) (10,440) (27,563) (2,815) (2,304) (2,743) (15,576) (27,514) (88,968)
Other operatingincome (expenses), net (349) (21,842) (25,166) (6,694) (5,314) (7,787) (15,212) (28,168) (110,532)
Income tax and social contribution (467) (2,282) (6,953) - (1,197) (1,863) (4,494) (6,538) (23,794)
P1S and COFINS (Fair value) - 3,735 4,225 - 1,383 2,720 1,382 4,190 17,635
Gainonsale ofassets (816) (20,389) (27,894) (6,694) (5,128) (6,930) (18,324) (30,516) (116,691)

[1] Includes adjustment to present value for unpaid installments.

(c) _Noncurrent assets held for sale

_ TR = company

Openingbalance . - - _
Transfer ofinvestment property 744,395 165,000 39,782 106,620
Sale of assets (744,395) (165,000) (39,782)  (106,620)

Closing balance - _ - _
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In the 2024 year, the Group transferred assets OG Gaiolli, LOG Viana, LOG Goiania, LOG Viana Il and LOG Fortaleza
Il to line item “Noncurrent assets held for sale”, concluding the sale of these assets in the same period of 2024.

(d) Inventories

_ T T e company

Openingbalance

Transfer ofinvestment property 189,901 - - -
Capitalized interest (Note 8 (d)) 7,462 - - -
Closing balance 197,363 - - -

On September 27, 2024, LOG Sao Bernardo do Campo entered into sale agreement for the disposal of its entire
shareholding on this asset. The transaction price is R$250,000 and was received in cash at closing and is recorded
in line item “advances from customers”. The asset was transferred from Investment property to Inventories, as it
is still in the construction phase.

As of December 31, 2024, from the total amount of investment property, R$412,798 has been pledged as collateral

for loans, financing and debentures of the Company and its subsidiaries (R$930,358 as of December 31, 2023).
7. Property and equipment

Changes in property and equipment for the years ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 are as follows:

. Opening o Closing
Consolidated Addition
balance balance

Year ended December 31, 2024:

Cost:
Right-of-use [1] 11,297 354 11,651
Other [2] 9,520 89 9,609
Total cost 20,817 443 21,260
Accumulated depreciation:
Right-of-use [1] 2,345 942 3,287
Other[2] 1,918 701 2,619
Total accumulated depreciation 4,263 1,643 5,906
Total property and equipment, net 16,554 (1,200) 15,354
Year ended December 31, 2023:
Total property and equipment, net 15,416 1,138 16,554

[1] Company's office rental agreements.
[2] Primarily improvements in third party properties.

. v Opening Additi Closing
arent Company balance fHon balance

Year ended December 31, 2024:

Cost:
Right-of-use [1] 11,297 354 11,651
Other [2] 9,253 88 9,341
Total cost 20,550 442 20,992
Accumulated depreciation:
Right-of-use [1] 2,346 942 3,288
Other [2] 1,712 687 2,399
Total accumulated depreciation 4,058 1,629 5,687
Total property and equipment, net 16,492 (1,187) 15,305
Year ended December 31, 2023:
Total property and equipment, net 15,408 1,084 16,492

[1] Company's office rental agreements.
[2] Primarily improvements in third party properties.
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8. Loans, financing and debentures

a) Position

Loans, financing and debentures as at December 31, 2024, and 2023, are as follows:

12/31/24 12/31/23
Type
[ Current [Noncurrent] Total | Total

Debenture - 15" issue (CRI) - 35,068
Debenture - 16™ issue (CRI) 9,370 - 9,370 28,182
Debenture - 17" issue - - - 79,382
Debenture - 18" issue - - - 259,334
Debenture - 19" issue (CRI) (*) 144,391 368,876 513,267 512,552
Debenture - 20" issue - 1 series (CRI) 48,001 86,900 134,901 135,261
Debenture -20" issue - 2" series (CRI) (¥) 3,540 178,260 181,800 186,646
Debenture -21%issue 23,288 400,000 423,288 426,345
Debenture -22" issue (CRI) 654 249,999 250,653 250,631
Debenture -23"issue 8,819 100,000 108,819 -
Debenture -24" issue - 1" series (CRI) (*¥) 4,037 174,522 178,559 -
Debenture -24M issue - 2" series (CRI) 1,179 59,550 60,729 -
Debenture - 24" issue -3 series (CRI) (*) 616 47,451 48,067 B
(-) Funding cost (7,117) (15,262) (22,379) (21,359)
Total debentures and CRI 236,778 1,650,296 1,887,074 1,892,042
Construction financing - - - 5,783
Commercial notes 4,167 100,000 104,167 -
(-) Funding cost (149) (401) (550) (88)
Total financing 4,018 99,599 103,617 5,695
Total Parent Company 240,796 1,749,895 1,990,691 1,897,737
Subsidiaries:

Construction financing 2,649 75,050 77,699 -
(-) Funding cost (403) (1,785) (2,188) -
Total financing - Subsidiaries 2,246 73,265 75,511 -
Total Consolidated 243,042 1,823,160 2,066,202 1,897,737

(*) Measured at fair value through profit or loss, according to hedge accounting methodology, refer to Note 19 (a).

In October 2024, the Company paid in advance the 15th and 18th issue of debentures, in the amount of
R$29,233 and R$168,842, respectively, with maturities between November 2024 to December 2028, subjects
to contractual rates of DI + 1.35% and DI + 2.00%, respectively.

The main features of the Company’s loans, financing and debentures are as follows:

T at Funding | Repayment of Interest Maturity of Contractual rate (p.a.) - te (p.a)
ype y date principal pp— principal ontractual rate (p.a. ective rate (p.a.

Debenture - 15" issue (CRI) 70,000 12/18 Monthly Monthly 1/19t0 12/28 DI+1.35% DI+1.71%
Debenture - 16" issue (CRI) 100,000 3/19 Semiannual Semiannual  3/20to3/25 108% DI 108% DI +0.34%
Debenture -17thissue 230,000 9/19 Annual Semiannual 9/22t09/24 116.5% DI 116.5% DI +0.18%
Debenture - 18" issue 250,000 3/21 Annual Semiannual  3/24t03/26 DI +2.00% DI+2.21%
Debenture -19% issue (CRI) 450,000 9/21 Annual Semiannual  9/25t09/28 IPCA+ 5.52% IPCA+6.07%
Debenture - 20" issue - 1% series (CRI) 130,350  4/22 Annual Semiannual  3/26t03/27 DI +1.10% DI+1.61%
Debenture -20" issue -2"series (CRI) 169,650  4/22 Annual Semiannual  3/27t03/29 IPCA+ 6.30% IPCA+ 6.87%
Debenture -21%issue 400,000 7/22 Annual Semiannual  7/26t07/27 DI +1.65% DI +1.79%
Debenture -22" issue (CRI) 250,000 6/23 Annual Quarterly 6/26t06/28 DI +1.70% DI +2.55%
Debenture -23%issue 100,000 3/24 Annual Semiannual  8/26t08/30 DI +0.95% DI+1.12%
Debenture-24thi55ue-15(serie5 (CRI) 191,297 10/24 Bullet payment Semiannual 10/29 13.02% 13.78%
Debenture-24thissue-2nd series (CRI) 59,550 10/24 Bullet payment Semiannual 10/29 DI+0.30% DI+0.81%
D(.;Aber'|t|«|r.g-24thi55|«|e-3rd series (CRI) 49,153 10/24 Annual Semiannual 10/30to10/31 IPCA+7.15% IPCA+7.67%
Construction financing - 12/12 Monthly Monthly 12/13t010/24 DI+1.65% DI+1.92%
Commercial notes 100,000 3/24 Annual Semiannual 8/26t0 8/30 DI+0.95% DI+1.11%
Construction financing - 6/24 Monthly Monthly 10/25to04/34  Savings deposits +3.93% Savings deposits+4.57%

The debentures issued by the Company are simple, nonconvertible and registered.
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Funding during the year ended December 31, 2024, is as follows:

- at Funding | Repayment Int ' t Maturity of Contractual rate (p.a.)
ype y R nterest paymen el ontractual rate (p.a.

Debenture -23" issue 100,000 3/24 Annual Semiannual 8/26to 8/30 DI +0.95% 100,000
Debenture -24" issue - 1° 191,297 10/24 Semiannual 10/29 13.02% 191,297
Debenture - 24" issue - 2™ 59,550 10/24 Semiannual 10/29 DI +0.30% 59,550
Debenture -24" issue -3™ 49,153 10/24 Anual Semiannual 10/30to0 10/31 IPCA+7.15% 49,153
Commercial notes 100,000 3/24 Annual Semiannual 8/26t0 8/30 DI+0.95% 100,000
Total - Parent Company 500,000
Construction financing 6/24 Monthly Monthly 10/25t004/34  Savings deposits +3.93% 75,620
Total - Subsidiaries 75,620

Total - Consolidated

575,620

(*) Gross of funding cost.

Changes in loans, financing and debentures were as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company

Openingbalance 1,897,737 1,774,084 1,897,737 1,757,023
Funding 575,620 250,000 500,000 250,000
Interest expense 230,790 236,806 226,790 235,896
Fairvalue adjustment (57,920) 26,552 (57,920) 25,512
Funding cost (11,417) (7,989) (9,001) (7,989)
Amortization of funding costs 7,747 7,066 7,519 6,781
Repayment of principal (385,618) (176,282) (385,618) (157,954)
Payment ofinterest (190,737) (212,500) (188,816) (211,532)
Closingbalance 2,066,202 1,897,737 1,990,691 1,897,737

b) Guarantees

The types of guarantees for loans, financing and debentures as at December 31, 2024, are as follows:

Consolidated
Construction Commercial
) Debentures CRI Total
financing notes

Collateral /receivables 77,699 359,472 9,370 104,167 550,708
No guaranties - 423,288 1,117,323 - 1,540,611
Total (*) 77,699 782,760 1,126,693 104,167 2,091,319

(*) Amount of loans, financing and debentures, gross funding costs.
Collaterals consist of the land, improvements, and properties of the financed projects (see Note 6).

Receivables consist of future inflows generated by the financed projects, pledged as collateral in the event of
nonpayment to the financial institutions.
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c) Aging

Aging of loans, financing and debentures by maturity is as follow:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

After the reporting period:

1lyear 250,711 247,285 248,062 247,285
2 years 571,432 228,814 562,426 228,814
3 years 535,743 568,232 526,737 568,232
4 years 254,240 546,244 245,234 546,244
After 4 yeras 479,193 328,609 431,161 328,609
Total 2,091,319 1,919,184 2,013,620 1,919,184

d) Allocation of financial charges

Financial charges are capitalized as follows:

Financial charges on:

Loans, financingand debentures (238,537) (243,872) (234,309) (242,677)
Derivative financial instruments 1,513 (16,562) 1,513 (16,562)
Total financial charges (237,024) (260,434) (232,796) (259,239)
Interest capitalized on:

Investment property (Note 6) 63,825 84,460 - -

Investment (Note 5 (c)) - - 71,287 84,460
Inventories 7,462 - - -
Financial charges allocated to profit or loss (Note 17) (165,737) (175,974) (161,509) (174,779)

For the year ended December 31, 2024, total capitalized borrowing costs on loans, financing and debentures
represented an average rate of 12.77% p.a. in Consolidated (15.28% p.a. for the same period of 2023).

e) Contractual obligations

The 19, 20, 21%t, 22" 23, and 24" public issue of debentures and commercial notes provides for
compliance with certain financial ratios covenants, determined and review quarterly and annually by the
fiduciary agent, as follows:

Gross debt / Investment property Up to 60% 2021 onwards

Gross debt is: (+) loans, financing and debentures current and noncurrent.

Investment property is: Investment property (+) noncurrent assets held for sale; (+) lands and real state for sale current and noncurrent.

On December 31, 2024, the Company was in compliance with the restrictive clauses of its loan, financing and
debenture agreements.

Other contractual commitments:

The Company is subject to certain contractual requirements that must be complied throughout the debt period,
such as: providing information requested within contractual deadlines; do not perform operations that are not in
accordance with its corporate purpose, in compliance with the statutory, legal and regulatory provisions in force;
obtaining the mandatory project issuance, according to its defined policies; complying with the payments provided
for in the agreements; ensuring compliance with all laws, rules and regulations in any jurisdiction in which
conducts businesses or have assets; keeping licenses valid for the business operation; honoring the guarantees
provided in the agreements; providing information on material acts and facts that may affect its financial condition
or ability to fulfill its obligations; proving the allocation of funds raised in the projects described in the agreements;
items related to discontinuation of activities, bankruptcy or insolence; guarantee completeness of data provided

to financial agents; not to transfer rights on contracts without the consent of financial agents; not to have
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significant changes in statutory structure, without observance of the respective laws, and in the stock control,
among others. Failure to comply with the mentioned covenants could result in early maturity of the agreements.

9. Land payables

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

IPCA 72,418 12,585 18,070

DI 14,933 - 14,933 -
Non-interest bearing 1,900 - - -
Present value discount (1,836) - - -
Total 87,415 12,585 33,003 -
Current 84,035 9,689 32,160 -
Noncurrent 3,380 2,896 843 -
Total 87,415 12,585 33,003 -

Aging of ‘Land payables’ is as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

After the reporting period:

1year 84,035 9,689 32,160 -

2 years 3,380 2,896 843 -

Total 87,415 12,585 33,003 -
10.Barters

This balance refers to commitments arising from barter transactions for the acquisition of land in exchange of
industrial warehouses. The balances were recorded at fair value at the transactions’ dates, measured based on
the market price of the land obtained which was supported by internal technical reports. The commitments will
be discharged by handing over the completed industrial warehouses and the segregation between current and
non-current is made considering the forecast of completion of the construction of the related warehouses.

Barters' maturity is broken down as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

After the reporting period:

1year 65,471 100,567 2,841 4,924
2 years 113,017 17,874 47,909 6,776
3 years 15,059 24,589 2,063 -
After 3 years 1,353 11,135 1,166 -
Total 194,900 154,165 53,979 11,700
Current 65,471 100,567 2,841 4,924
Noncurrent 129,429 53,598 51,138 6,776

194,900 154,165 53,979 11,700
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11.Income tax and social contribution

(@) The income tax (IRPJ) and social contribution tax (CSLL) income (expenses) at the statutory tax rate are
reconciled as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company

Income before income tax and social contribution 396,838 184,497 343,389 126,023
Statutoryrate -income tax and social contribution 34% 34% 34% 34%
Nominal expense (134,925) (62,729) (116,752) (42,848)

Effect of IRPJ and CSLL on permanent differences:
Results from equity participation grossed of written-off

capitalized interest 2,373 2,643 160,319 108,040
Tax credit not recorded (41,982) - (41,982) -
Depreciation ofinvestment properties (712) - - -
Reflection of fair value in subsidiaries - (28,716) - (28,716)
Write-off of capitalized interest referring to assets sold by
subsidiaries - 25,930 - 25,930
Tax basis difference for companies taxes based on
deemedincome 117,537 69,585 - -
Other 5,249 3,750 (1,585) 3,747
IRPJ and CSLL credit (debit) in profit or loss (52,460) 10,463 - 66,153

On December 31, 2024, the Company did not recognize deferred taxes on tax losses carryforwards of
subsidiaries in the amount of R$41,982 (RSO as of December 31, 2023).

(b) Deferred tax balances

Breakdown of deferred tax assets (liabilities) disclosed in the statements of financial position is as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 | 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Noncurrent assets:

Income tax and social contribution 114,024 114,024 114,024 114,024
Liabilities:
Income tax and social contribution (74,967) (64,155) - -
PIS/COFINS (96,847) (93,557) (6,492) (10,592)
(171,814) (157,712) (6,492) (10,592)
Current (15,845) (13,194) (1,076) (3,597)
Noncurrent (155,969) (144,518) (5,416) (6,995)
Total (171,814) (157,712) (6,492) (10,592)
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Breakdown of the deferred income tax and social contribution is as follows:

Consolidated
12/31/24 12/31/23 12/31/24 12/31/23

Tax effect on:
Deferred assets:

Tax loss carryforwards 197,525 174,861 196,489 174,790
Capitalized interests written-off (¥) 83,206 114,560 83,206 114,560
Temporary differences (26,333) (26,999) (29,416) (30,280)
254,398 262,422 250,279 259,070
Reclassified deferred liabilities (140,374) (148,398) (136,255) (145,046)
Deferred tax assets 114,024 114,024 114,024 114,024
Deferred liabilities:
Fairvalue appreciation on investment property (182,949) (192,616) (136,255) (145,046)
Rental receivables and others (4,144) (2,207) - -
Sale of assets (28,248) (17,730) - -
(215,341)  (212,553) (136,255)  (145,046)
Reclassified deferred liabilities 140,374 148,398 136,255 145,046
Deferred tax liabilities (74,967) (64,155) - -

(*) According to Note 2.2 (e) to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023, since financing activities are centrally managed by the Company, interest
incurred by the Company on the financing of its investees’ qualifying assets are capitalized and presented in the investment line item (Parent Company financial
statements). Since investment properties are measured at fair value, the related costs are allocated to profit or loss by deducting such costs from equity participation
calculation (Parent Company financial statements). In this process, deferred tax assets are recognized since these amounts will be tax deductible upon disposal of the
respective investments.

Reclassified deferred tax balances are to offset amounts for presentation purposes. They are related to taxes
on income collected by the same tax authority and were individually made by each taxable entity, have the
same nature, and will be realized simultaneously.

As at December 31, 2024, the estimated use of deferred tax assets, based on the forecast of future taxable
income, prepared by the Company's Management, is as follows:

IRPJ and CSLL

Consolidated and
Parent Company

Expected realization:

2025 1,405
2026 2,634
2027 4,837
2028 4,447
2029 4,481
2030 4,374
2031to 2034 20,170
2035t0 2039 46,479
2040to 2053 25,197
Total 114,024

The above-mentioned projection is based on projects which are in operation, construction and start-up of
new industrial warehouse in the Company's portfolio. Projected revenue from these rented assets and the
sale of assets that are currently in operation contribute to produce taxable income compatible with the use
of deferred tax loss carryforwards. The use of referred assets arising from the temporary difference referring
to capitalized interest considers the same period of tax deductibility of 25 years applicable to historic costs
of the respective investment properties from the respective start of operation.

As of December 31, 2024, the balance of deferred PIS/COFINS liabilities refers to the tax effect on: (i) fair
value appreciation on investment property; and (ii) rental receivable for the remaining balance.
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Changes in deferred income tax (IRPJ) and social contribution (CSLL) assets and liabilities for the years ended
December 31, 2024, and 2023 are as follows:

Parent Company
| 2024 | 2023 | 2024 | 2023 |
[ Assets | iabilities| Net | et | Assets | Liabilities] et | Net |
Openingbalance 262,422 (212,553) 49,869 (5,345) 259,070 (145,046) 114,024 47,871
Effect on deferred IRPJ and CSLL from:
Spin-offin subsidiary - - - 748 - - - -
Net income for the period (8,024) (2,788) (10,812) 54,466 (8,791) 8,791 - 66,153
Closing balance 254,398 (215,341) 39,057 49,869 250,279 (136,255) 114,024 114,024

12.Provisions for labor, tax and civil risks

The Group recorded provisions for risks related to claims for which an unfavorable outcome is probable,

considering the assessment of its legal counsel. These claims consist primarily of labor claims. Changes for the
years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

Openingbalance 1,325 2,345 285 144
Additions and inflation adjustments 854 1,471 161 297
Payments (708) (2,020) (76) (66)
Reversals (353) (471) (48) (90)
Closing balance 1,118 1,325 322 285

The lawsuits assessed as possible losses by the legal counsel amounted to R$9,902 in Consolidated and R$1,711

in Parent Company as of December 31, 2024 (R$4,741 in Consolidated and R$4,126 in Parent Company as of
December 31, 2023).

13.Lease

The Group does not have lease agreements in which it is a financial lessor, classifying all its leases as operational,
fully represented by leases of investment properties.

As a lessee, the Group identified leases contracts, referring to the rental of its offices and land for LOG Brasilia,
LE Empreendimentos (phases 1 and 4) and LOG Goiania lll.

Changes in lease liability for the year ended December 31, 2024, and 2023 are as follows:

Openingbalance 118,719 101,715 9,653 8,437
Additions (*) 50,327 - - -
Remeasurement 10,144 9,941 354 1,884
Interest expenses 10,732 8,377 623 646
Repayment of principal (2,259) (668) (736) (668)
Payment ofinterest (623) (646) (623) (646)
Closing balance 187,040 118,719 9,271 9,653
Current 812 765 812 765
Noncurrent 186,228 117,954 8,459 8,888
187,040 118,719 9,271 9,653

(*) Refers to right of use of landing of LOG Goiania Ill asset.

The undiscounted contractual cash flows (gross lease liabilities) represent annual cash-outs, ending December
2073 and are as follows:

35



_ Up o il

Consolidated:

Lease liability 9,740 13,403 14,061 630,633 667,838
Total 9,740 13,403 14,061 630,633 667,838
Parent Company:

Lease liability 1,396 1,396 1,396 8,138 12,325
Total 1,396 1,396 1,396 8,138 12,325

Leases representing exemptions in recognition

The Group applies recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying assets are of
low value. These leases essentially include short-term property and vehicle rentals. For these leases, lease
expenses are recognized on a straight-line basis, when incurred.

In the year ended December 31, 2024, these leases represent R$221 in Consolidated and Parent Company (R$84
in Consolidated and RS83 in Parent Company for the same period of 2023).

14.Equity
(a) Shares and capital

Subscribed capital 2,753,976 2,753,976
Number of common shares, without par value (thousand) 87,859 102,159

The Company’s authorized capital as at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is R$3,700,000 (three billion and seven
hundred million reais), represented exclusively by common shares and each share entitles its holder to one
vote in shareholders” meeting.

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors approved the cancellation of 14,300
(fourteen million and three hundred thousand) common shares issued by the Company, which were kept in
treasury, without changing the capital value social.

(b) Treasury shares

On July 17, 2024, the Board of Directors approved for 18 months, starting on July 17, 2024, the Company's
Share Buyback program, in the maximum amount of 5.0 million common shares, respecting the legal limits,
for being held in treasury, canceled, re-placed on the market, or allocated to the Stock Option Plans.

On October 21, 2024, the Company's Share Buyback Program was approved by the Board of Directors, valid

for 18 months from approval, in a maximum quantity of 4.8 million common shares, respecting legal limits,
to be held in treasury, cancellation, sale, or allocation to Stock Option Plans.
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During the nine-month period ended December 31, 2024, 13,841 thousand shares were acquired in the
amount of R$314,945 thousand through the Company's Share Buyback Program, as shown below:

T — Costinresis perstarelorthe ||

Type
P Opening . Closing | Weighted
Acquired Transferred
balance balance average

Exercise 2024:

Common shares 1,719 13,841 (14,300) (432) 828 22.74 24.25 18.69
Exercise 2023:
Common shares 2,252 236 (47) (722) 1,719 20.49 23.71 15.01

(*) Market value of shares remaining in treasury as of December 31, 2024, and 2023.

(c)

(d)

Capital reserve

Represents stock options granted to the Company’s officers and employees, as described in item (f) below.
In accordance with article 200 of Brazilian Corporate Law, the Company may use capital reserves to absorb
losses, redeem or purchase shares and incorporate into paid-in capital.

Earnings reserves

Legal reserve

The legal reserve is recognized based on the allocation of 5% of the profit for the year, up to a ceiling of 20%
of share capital. The constitution of a legal reserve is not mandatory when the balance of this reserve, plus
the paid-in capital amount, exceeds 30% of share capital. The objective of the legal reserve is to preserve
capital and can only be utilized to offset losses or increase capital. The calculation schedules for the
recognition of the 2024 and 2023 legal reserve is shown in (e) below.

Earnings retention reserve

The earnings retention reserve represents undistributed profits to shareholders aiming to reserve funds to
be used in investments according to the Company’s capital budget. As at December 31, 2024, it was proposed
the constitution of earnings retention reserve of R$244,664 (R$112,567 as at December 31, 2023).

Dividend
Mandatory minimum and proposed additional dividends

Under its bylaws, the Company can, by decision of the Board of Directors (i) prepare semiannual or quarterly
financial statements or financial statements for shorter periods, and declare dividends or interest on equity
based on the profits disclosed in such financial statements; or (ii) declare interim dividends or interest on
equity, charged to retained earnings or earnings reserves disclosed in the latest annual or semiannual
financial statements. The distributed interim dividends and interest on equity can be deducted from the
mandatory dividends. Shareholders are entitled to an annual mandatory minimum dividend of no less than
25% of the net income for the fiscal year, which can be decreased or increased by the following amounts: (i)
amount to be allocated to the legal reserve; (ii) amount to be allocated to the recognition of a provision for
contingencies and reversal of the same provisions recognized in prior years; and (iii) amount derived from
the reversal of prior years’ unrealized earnings reserve, pursuant to Article 202, Il, of Brazilian Corporate Law.
Under the law, the payment of the mandatory dividend can be limited to realized net income for the fiscal
year.

37

Market
value (*)

14,912

49,495



O

According to the Company’s management’s proposal, to be approved at the Annual Shareholders' Meeting
(ASM), 2024 dividends are as follows (2023 dividends are presented for comparative purposes):

Net income for the year 343,389 192,176
Legal reserve -5% of net income (17,169) (9,609)
Net income available for distribution 326,220 182,567
Proposed dividends:

Mandatory minimum dividends - 25% of net income avaliable for 81,556 45,642

Additional 68,444 24,358
Total 150,000 70,000
Proposed dividends per share:

Mandatory minimum dividends - RS 0.9371 0.4544

Additional -RS 0.7864 0.2425
Total 1.7235 0.6969

Fiscal year 2023 dividends, amounting R$70,000, were approved at the Board of Directors Meeting held on
February 6, 2024 and paid on February 21, 2024.

Fiscal year 2022 dividends, amounting R$91,692, were approved at the Board of Directors Meeting held on
February 8, 2023 and paid on February 23, 2023.

(f) Stock option plan

The Company’s Board of Directors periodically establishes stock option programs, where the number of
shares that beneficiaries will have the right to receive or subscribe to upon exercising the option, the
subscription price, the maximum period for exercising the option, rules regarding the transfer of options, and
any restrictions on shares received through the exercise of the option are defined, including rules in the event
of termination, end of mandate, or death of the beneficiary. The issuance price of the shares to be subscribed
by the participants in the option plans, resulting from exercising the option, is equivalent to the average of
the 30 (thirty) trading days preceding the grant date (“exercise price”).

Under Article 171, Par. 3, of the Brazilian Corporate Law, the Company’s shareholders do not have preemptive
rights on the exercise of stock options.

The Stock Option Plan approved by the Company’s Board of Directors prescribes a maximum of 3,092,149
shares, equivalent to 5% of the Company’s total shares as of November 2010.

On September 9, 2024, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the issuance of program 13 of the stock
option plan, granting to directors and managers up to 555 thousand options with vesting period of 5 years,
with exercise deadline date in December 2031. The stock option fair value is R$9.24 each with, total cost of
remuneration of R$4,611, which will be recognized in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting period.

The table below shows the main terms and conditions of the stock option programs:

% of total Initial
8 A | Maximum %0 oda. o strike pri Adjusted Particioant ot I? Exercise deadline
rogram | Approva P approved in esting rike price [ o o price articipants exerc‘lse *

the plan deadline

4 11/14 31,835 1.03% Upto5year RS 30.04 R$19.34  Officers and managers 12/14 12/24
5 12/15 27,710 0.90% Upto5year RS$ 30.04 R$ 19.41  Officers and managers 12/15 12/25
7 9/19 226,251 7.32% Upto5year RS 23.42 RS 14.25  Officers and managers 12/19 12/26
8 6/20 653,216 21.12% Upto5and10 RS 21.62 R$12.66  Officers and managers 12/20 12/27 and 12/32
10 12/21 338,074 10.93% Upto5year RS 24.17 R$ 15.16  Officers and managers 12/21 12/28
11 7/22 401,761 12.99% Upto5year RS 18.99 R$17.64  Officers and managers 12/22 12/29
12 9/23 527,430 17.06% Upto5year RS 16.85 R$ 16.47  Officers and managers 12/23 12/30
13 9/24 554,703 17.94% Upto5year R$ 21.02 R$21.02  Officers and managers 12/24 12/31

(*) After the last vesting of each plan, the beneficiary has three additional exercise years. The programs 3 to 5 had a 3-year extension in exercise deadline date as approved by the
Board of Directors.
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The tables below show the changes in stock option plan program for the years ended December 31, 2024 and
2023 and supplemental information thereon:

Changesin 2024 (thousand options)

. Number of = - F— PP
rogram participants pening xplr'e osing
balance forfeited balance
21 - -

4 (21) -
5 21 - - (6) 15
7 5 = - - 5
8 507 - (4) (195) 308
10 236 = (3) (31) 202
11 359 - (6) (76) 277
12 501 S (6) (70) 425
13 - 555 - (33) 522
1,650 555 (19) (432) 1,754
Weighted average price of exercised options 15.43 21.02 16.04 15.38 17.21
Changes in 2023 (thousand options) 1,869 523 (20) (722) 1,650
Weighted average price of options 14.47 16.47 15.65 13.69 15.43
Number of vested Compensation Unrecogniz-ed Remairjing
Program cost for the compensation compensation cost
shares (thou.) . . )
period cost period (in years)
4
5
7 172 - - -
8 339 927 1,626 5.1
10 134 453 369 1.0
11 121 644 936 2.0
12 105 1,036 1,868 3.0
13 55 890 3,721 4.1
2024 968 3,950 8,520 3.7
2023 863 3,320 7,858 4.3

As at December 31, 2024, had all options currently granted been exercised, the Company would have issued
1,754 thousand shares, which would represent a 1.96% dilution in relation to the Company’s total of 87,859
thousand shares (1.59% at December 31, 2023).

As at December 31, 2024, Stock options granted represents 96.85% of the total approved plan (86.79%
December 31, 2023).

The weighted average market price of exercised shares, considering each exercise date, during the year
ended December 31, 2024, was R$18.18 (R$24.17 during the year ended December 31, 2023).

The Company records the employees’ share-based compensation in the financial statements based on its fair

value at grant date. The fair value of the stock option program was estimated based on the Black & Scholes
stock option pricing model, considering the following weighed average assumptions:

_mmmm“mmm

0
Risk-free rate 10.86% 12.42% 16.20% 8.61% 6.43% 5'21/10; 11.19% 12.56% 11.29% 11.16%
B C
Vesting period in years (*) 7 7 7 7 7 7el2 7 7 5 7
Expected annualized volatility 36.56% 27.17% 26.73% 29.38% 30.86% 39.97% 37.48% 39.21% 38.14% 37.74%
Expected dividends 5.00% 5.00% 6.02% 5.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00% 4.00%
11.
Stock options fair value on grant date per share R$2.09 RS$3.43 R$3.48 R$4.66 RS$S4.76 R$R$1§36: R$7.51 R$ 8.61 R$ 7.57 R$9.24

(*) Vesting period of up to 5 and 10 years.

The risk-free rate is based on an average of future DI rate for the maximum exercise period of each tranche
of the plans, using the projection of B3 (Brazilian Stock Exchange).
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The expected volatility was calculated based on the Company’s average historical data, other companies
operating in the same industry and B3 data.

(g) Noncontrolling interests

Openingbalance 2,276 79,185
Net contributions (distributions) to noncontrolling shareholders 7,824 35
Capital transaction 8,277 (79,728)
Interests in netincome for the period 989 2,784
Closing balance 19,366 2,276

(h) Earnings per share

Net income and the weighted average number of common shares used to calculate basic and diluted earnings
per share are as follows:

Basic earnings per share:

Net income for the year 343,389 192,176
Weighted average number of outstanding common (thousand) 94,937 99,757
Basic earnings pershare -in RS 3.61702 1.92644

Diluted earnings pershare:

Net income for the year 343,389 192,176
Weighted average number of outstanding common (thousand) 94,937 99,757
Dilutive effect of stock options (thousand) 358 80
Total shares after dilutive effect (thousand) 95,295 99,837
Diluted earnings per share -in RS 3.60343 1.92490

15.Net revenue

_ T e company

Rental revenue 216,292 221,398 63,962 71,598
Revenue from condominium management services 14,621 10,230 14,621 10,230
Revenue from construction services 1,931 2,001 1,931 -
Taxes on revenue (13,102) (13,473) (7,965) (7,907)
Net revenue 219,742 220,156 72,549 73,921

During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company did not have a client whose net revenue individually
represented 10% or more of the total net revenue (did not have a client whose net revenue individually
represented 10% or more for the same period of 2023).
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Consolidated Parent Company

Costs of services provided - condominium management (5,334) (3,887) (5,334) (3,.887)
Operating expenses:
Salaries, charges and benefits (19,091) (19,209) (18,878) (18,788)
Outside services (9,832) (10,226) (5,538) (6,473)
General expenses (5,019) (6,774) (4,776) (6,259)
Management compensation (9,212) (7,856) (9,212) (7,856)
Vacancy expenses (2,432) (2,318) (508) (640)
Stock options (3,950) (3,320) (3,950) (3,320)
Advertising (1,119) (1,027) (1,116) (1,026)
Depreciation and amortization (5,671) (3,972) (2,946) (2,053)
Other operating expenses, net
Sale of assets/equity interest (110,532) (159,287) (7,043) (48,780)
Other (4,590) (6,078) (1,334) (639)
(171,448) (220,067) (55,301) (95,834)
Classified as:
Selling expenses (9,820) (9,455) (6,357) (6,251)
General and administrative expenses (37,294) (37,391) (31,355) (32,308)
Management compensation (9,212) (7,856) (9,212) (7,856)
Other operating expenses, net (115,122) (165,365) (8,377) (49,419)
(171,448) (220,067) (55,301) (95,834)

(*) See note 6.

17.Financial expenses and income

Financial expenses
Interest on loans, financingand debentures (Note 8 (d))

Consolidated Parent Company

Mark-to-market derivative financial instruments (includes hedge effect)

Other financial expenses [1]

Financial income
Income from financial investments
Present value discount
Interestincome on intercompany loans
Other financial income [2]

Financial result

[1] Includes interest on lease liabilities.
[2] Includes tax effect in financial income.

(165,737) (175,974) (161,509) (174,779)
(1,302) 17,845 (1,306) 18,883
(30,868) (15,236) (5,403) (2,915)
(197,907) (173,365) (168,218) (158,811)
73,255 77,647 64,286 69,888
28,882 16,391 6,478 4,393
1,027 1,272 3,772 1,327
3,641 1,445 1,321 526
106,805 96,755 75,857 76,134
(91,102) (76.610) (92,361) (82,677)
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18.Related parties

Related-party balances and transactions are as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
[ Amer [ by | Aser [ abiy |
12/31/24 |12/31/23 |12/31/24 |12/31/23 |12/31/24 |12/31/23 |12/31/24 |12/31/23

Short-term investments and marketable securities
Otherrelated parties:

Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [1] 289,571 275,919 - - 279,711 275,819 - -
Banco Bradesco S.A. [2] 76,145 170,708 - - 76,145 170,708 - -
Intercompany receivables
Investees
SPEs [3] - - - - 3,709 - - -

Rental receivables
Other related parties:
Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda. [4] 542 615 - - 29 28 - -
Trade receivable from sale of equity interests
Other related parties:
MRV MRL Camp Nou Incorporag¢des e Participacdes Ltda. [5]1 11,146 12,700 - - 11,146 12,700 - -
Services supplier
Other related parties:

Conedi Participagdes Ltda. e MA Cabaleiro Participag8es Ltda. [6] - - 83 81 - - 83 81
Intercompany payables
Investiees
SPEs [10] - - - = - - 465,141 136,205

| ncome |  Expense |  income |  Expense |
2024 ] 2023 | 2024 [ 2023 ] 2024 | 2023 [ 2024 ] 2023 ]

Financial income
Short-term investments and marketable securities
Other related parties

Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [1] 29,013 27,829 - - 28,852 25,277 - -
Banco Bradesco S.A. [2] 7,854 11,648 - - 7,465 11,257 - -
Intercompany receivables
Investiees
SPEs [3] = = = = 2,516 55 = =

Trade receivable from sale of equity interests
Otherrelated parties
MRV MRL Camp Nou Incorporagdes e Participa¢Ges Ltda [5] 655 405 - - 655 405 - -
Rental revenue
Rental receivables
Otherrelated parties:
Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda. [4] 7,955 7,017 - - 342 318 - -
General and administrative expenses
Other related parties:
Conedi ParticipagGes Ltda. e MA Cabaleiro ParticipacBes Ltda. [6] - - 1,041 1,028 - - 1,041 1,028
MRV Engenharia e Participag¢des S.A. (MRV) [7] - - 4,796 4,016 - - 4,796 4,016
Other operating expenses, net
Other related parties:
Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [8] 116 272 - - 116 272 - -
Financial expenses
Other related parties:
Banco Inter S.A. (Inter) [9] - - - 2,174 - - - -

[1] Refers to transactions with Banco Inter S.A. and/or subsidiaries (“Inter”), which is controlled by controlling shareholder of the Company. In the
year ended December 31, 2024, short-term investments yielded 91.8% of DI rate in Consolidated and Parent Company (75.9% for the same period
of 2023).

[2] Refers to transactions with Banco Bradesco, controlling shareholder of Banco Bradesco Investimentos (BBI), which in turn is the controlling
shareholder of 2bCapital, current manager of the Fundo de Investimento em Participagdes Multisetorial Plus, a shareholder of the Company. In
the year ended December 31, 2024, short-term investments yielded 105.8% of DI rate in Consolidated and Parent Company (104.7% for the same
period of 2023).

[3] Refers to loan granted by the Company, in May 2024, to its subsidiary LE Empreendimentos e Participagdes S.A, subject to interest by DI + 3.00%
p.a. The income registered for the first half of 2023, refers to loan between the Company and subsidiary LOG Sdo José dos Pinhais, granted in
January 2018, subject to interest by DI + 2.25% p.a. This loan was paid in full in April 2023.

[4] Refers to warehouse’s lease agreement entered by the Company and subsidiaries with Patrus Transportes Urgentes Ltda., controlled by a
noncontrolling shareholder of the Company.
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In July 2018, the Company sold equity interest in the subsidiary MRV LOG MDI SJC | Incorporagdes SPE Ltda. (“LOG SJC Sony”) to MRV MRL CAMP
NOU Incorporacdes e Participacdes Ltda, a company controlled by MRV Engenharia e Participacdes S.A for the total amount of R$35,000. The
contract determines payments in two tranches as detailed below:

. R$10,800 referring to 10.81% of the equity interest, to be paid in 24 monthly installments of R$450 each, updated by INCC index, the
first being paid after the approval of the land subdivision project by the Muncipal Administration, an event that took place in July 2018;
and

1. R$25,523 (R$24,200 plus update by IPCA index) referring to 24.22% of the equity interest, which will be paid in 48 monthly installments
of R$532 each, the first being paid after approval of a change in the zoning area from industrial to residential by the Municipal
Administration, an event that took place in the fourth quarter of 2019. In December 2023, an amendment was signed rescheduling
the for six installments of R$250 from July to December 2024 and eight installments of R$1,012 from January 2025 to August 2025.

In this transaction, an agreement of shares holders was celebrated that started to characterize joint control on this entity, so far controlled by
the Company. The amount of transactions affecting cash flows arising from LOG SJC are not material for separate presentation in the statement
of cash flows.

Refers to lease agreement of part of ninth and tenth floor of the office building where the head office is located, owned by the companies Conedi
Participagdes Ltda. (“Conedi”) and MA Cabaleiro Participagdes Ltda. (“MA Cabaleiro”). Conedi is one of the Company’s shareholders and MA
Cabaleiro is owned by Marcos Alberto Cabaleiro Fernandez, a noncontrolling shareholder. The contract is valid until February 28, 2035, including
extension of the contract, adjustable annually by IPCA index. On december 31, 2024, the agreement establishes a total monthly payment (gross
of taxes) of R$83 (R$81 on December 31, 2023). The amounts shown in the table above are segregated between administrative and financial
expenses when registered.

Amounts related to expenses incurred on the provision of administrative services. The agreement establishes a monthly payment of R$429 on
December 31, 2024 (R$339 on December 31, 2023). This amount is updated every nine months according to the volume of service provided by
MRV and, annually, by the IPCA. On December 09, 2019, the contract was renegotiated making the term indefinite, in the absence of opposition
between the parties.

It refers to "preference premium" paid to the Company by 25% on the credit revenue obtained by the bank referring to invoices from the
Company’s suppliers discounted by them. In these operations, the original conditions and economic substance carried out with the respective
suppliers are maintained. As at December 31, 2024, the consolidated balance held on these transactions amounts to R$1,538 (R$3,369 on
December 31, 2023).

It refers to the financial discount generated by the anticipation of receivable security made in the 1st quarter of 2023.

[10] Amounts received from the LOG Viana, LOG Itaitinga |, LOG Recife, LOG Aracaju, LOG Via Expressa, LOG SJC and LOG Salvador, arising from the

sale of their assets, as mentioned in note 6. These balances were eliminated in the consolidation process and will be offset upon distribution of
the respective profits or capital reduction of these companies.

Compensation of key management personnel

Pursuant to CPC 05 and IAS 24, which addresses related party disclosures, and according to the Company’s
understanding, key management personnel consist of members of the Board of Directors and officers elected by
the Board of Directors in conformity with the Company’s bylaws, and their roles and responsibilities comprise
decision-making powers and control of the Company’s activities.

Consolidated and Parent Company

Short-term benefits granted to management:

Management compensation 9,212 7,856
Profit sharing 3,277 2,577
Non-monetary benefits 390 95
Long-term benefits to management:
Retirement private plan 172 140
Share-based compensation:
Stock option plan 3,241 2,526
16,292 13,194

On April 19, 2024, the Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting approved the overall management compensation at
R$16,894.

Besides the benefits above, the Company does not grant any other benefits such as postemployment benefits or
severance pay.

43



O

19.Financial instruments

(a) Category of financial instruments and fair value

. 12/31/24 12/31/23
Consolidated
[Bookvalue | Fairvalue | Bookvaiue | Fairvaiue |

Financial assets:

Amortized cost 979,712 979,712 714,131 714,131
Cash and bankaccounts 2,079 2,079 1,523 1,523
Trade receivables 4 977,633 977,633 712,608 712,608

Fair value through profit or loss (mandatorily measured) (*) 812,549 812,549 824,663 824,663

Restricted investment funds
Unrestricted investment funds

525,283 525,283 357,073 357,073
196,607 196,607 388,102 388,102

wwww

Bank certificates of deposit (CDB) 8,042 8,042 6,890 6,890
Securities with repurchase agreement backed by debentures 29,259 29,259 - -
Derivative financial instruments 19 (a) 53,358 53,358 72,598 72,598

Financial liabilities:

Amortized cost 1,541,914 1,540,971 1,422,147 1,422,121
Loans, financingand debentures 1,144,509 1,143,566 1,198,539 1,198,513
Land payables 9 87,415 87,415 12,585 12,585
Trade payables (suppliers) 70,243 70,243 58,418 58,418
Lease 13 187,040 187,040 118,719 118,719
Other liabilites 52,707 52,707 33,886 33,886

Fair value through profit or loss (Hedge accounting) (*) 921,693 921,693 699,198 699,198
Loans, financingand debentures 19 (a) 921,693 921,693 699,198 699,198

Fair value through profit or loss (mandatorily measured) (*) 18,480 18,480 - -
Derivative financial instruments 19 (a) 18,480 18,480 - -

(*) Financial assets and liabilities recognized at fair value with level 2 measurement, using the discounted cash flows valuation technique.

Fair value of loans, financing, and debentures was estimated by the Company’s management based on the
future value of the loans at maturity with the contracted rate, discounted to present value at the market rate
as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

Management believes that the carrying value of other financial instruments, which are recognized in the
financial statements at their carrying amounts, do not present significant variations from their respective fair
values.

The Company entered derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to fixed rates and stock price
fluctuation. The sole purpose of these transactions is to hedge the risk of fluctuation by swapping them. Main

conditions and effects are described below:

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the swap contracts position is as follows:

Effect on result 12/31/24

Gain (loss)

Contract

date Asset / Liability Maturity | Notional amount | Long position | Short position on Mark-to- | Derivative
. market fair value
transaction

Swap [1] 9/21 IPCA+5.52% /DI +1.23% 9/28 450,000 551,321 465,920 (3,163) (38,054) 47,347
Swap [2] 4/22 IPCA+6.30% /DI +1.47% 3/29 169,650 196,300 175,617 (8,063) (14,672) 6,011
Swap 10/24  Pré-fixado 13.018% /CDI +0.35% 10/29 191,297 195,334 194,950 384 (16,775)  (16,391)
Swap 10/24 IPCA+7.1512%/CDI +0.5495% 10/31 49,153 50,235 50,109 126 (2,215) (2,089)
Swap [3] 1/23 LOGG3 /CDI +1.84% 5/24to 8/24 46,312 - - 15,365 - -
4,649 (71,716) 34,878
[1] Derivative fair value includes net payment effect of R$88,564.
[2] Derivative fair value includes net payment effect of R$28,746. Current assets 53,358

[3]InJune 2024, the Company settled this swap in advance with a net gain of R$15,365.
Noncurrent liabilities 18,480
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12/31/23

Type ?f Contract date Asset / Liability Maturity Notional amount | Long position | Short position L LA Mark-to- | Derivative
transaction on )
. market fair value
transaction
11/18 10.5%/108.95% DI 8/28 16,198 - - (329) - -
9/21 IPCA+5.52% /DI +1.23% 9/28 450,000 525,679 467,104 (4,013) (13,127) 45,448
4/22 IPCA+6.30% /DI +1.47% 3/29 169,650 187,178 176,026 (8,216) (678) 10,474
09/21 LOGG3 /DI +1.75% 1/23and3/23 74,468 - - (38,136) - -
01/23 LOGG3 /DI +1.84% 05/24 and 08/24 46,312 69,396 52,236 - 16,676 16,676
50,694 2,871 72,598
(*) InJuly 2023, the Company paid off this swap in advance, in the amount of R$329.
Current assets 16,676
Noncurrent assets 55,922
72,598

Effect on results - Consolidated

Gain (loss) on
( ‘) Mark-to-market Total
transaction

2024
Effect in profit or loss
Swaps with fair value hedge 1,513 (57,911) (56,398)
Swaps with no hedge - (1,311) (1,311)
Gross effect in profit or loss 1,513 (59,222) (57,709)
Reducing effect of hedges - 57,920 57,920
Net effect in profit or loss 1,513 (1,302) 211
2023
Effect in profit or loss
Swaps with fair value hedge (16,562) 26,722 10,160
Swaps with no hedge - 17,675 17,675
Gross effect in profit or loss (16,562) 44,397 27,835
Reducing effect of hedges - (26,552) (26,552)
Net effect in profit or loss (16,562) 17,845 1,283

Impacts on profit or loss related to derivatives above are recognized in line-item financial charges, according
to their nature.

Hedge accounting

As described in note 2.2 (i), in order to represent the effects of risk management activities and eliminate
accounting mismatch and volatility in results arising from the measurement of financial instruments on
different basis, the Group adopted hedge accounting for certain cases.

In order to evaluate whether there is an economic relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, a qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of the hedge is performed by comparing the critical
terms of both instruments. Subsequently, on each reporting date and after a significant change in the hedge
relationship circumstances, a quantitative assessment is performed by comparing the change, from the
beginning of the hedge relationship, in fair value of the hedge instrument to change in fair value of the hedged
item (quantitative effectiveness assessment), as follows:

Dollar offset method = Change in fair value of the hedge instrument /
Change in fair value of the hedged item
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The Group formally designated derivative financial instruments (swap types) as hedging instruments and a
financings as hedged items, establishing a relationship of economic protection between them, according to
the hedge accounting methodology. These designations were classified as fair value hedges, as they reduce
the market risk arising from the fair value fluctuations of the respective financing. Thus, both the derivative
and financings are being measured at fair value through profit and loss, with the expectation that changes in
fair values will compensate each other. The critical terms of the instruments are as follows:

Effects on Effects on
Notional results results

Fair value hed Maturit
air value hedge aturity value

[ 12/31/24 | 2024 ] 12/31/23 | 2023 |

Construction financing 11/18 8/28 = 10% - (1,039)
CRI-19" debentures issue 9/21 9/28 450,000 IPCA+5.52% (513,267) 24,927 (512,552) (18,646)
CRI-20" debentures issue - 2" series 4/22 3/29 169,650 IPCA+6.30% (181,800) 13,995 (186,646) (6,867)
CRI-24" debentures issue - 1*'series 10,24 10/31 191,297 Pré-fixado 13.018% (178,559) 16,775 - -
CRI-24" debentures issue -3 series 10/24 10/31 49,153 IPCA+7.15% (48,067) 2,223 - -
Loans, financingand debentures 860,100 (921,693) 57,920 (699,198) (26,552)

(Hedged item)
Long position

Swap 11/18 8/28 - 10% - - - 1,039

Swap 9/21 9/28 450,000 IPCA+5.52% 513,267 (24,927) 512,552 18,557

Swap 4/22 3/29 169,650 IPCA+6.30% 181,628 (13,994) 186,500 6,867

Swap 10/24 10/31 191,297 Pré-fixado 13.018% 178,559 (16,775) - -

Swap 10/24 10/31 49,153 IPCA+7.15% 48,020 (2,215) - -

Derivative financial instrument 860,100 921,474 (57,911) 699,052 26,463

(Hedge instrument)

Short position

108.95% DI - - - 259

DI+1.23% (465,920) - (467,104) -

DI +1.47% (175,617) - (176,026) -

DI+0.35% (194,950) - - -

DI +0.5495% (50,109) - - -

(886,596) - (643,130) 259

Swap net position 34,878 (57,911) 55,922 26,722

Total net position (886,815) 9 (643,276) 170

(b) Risk management

Capital risk

The Group manages its capital to ensure that all Group companies can continue as going concerns, and at the
same time maximizes the return of all their stakeholders by optimizing the balance debt and equity.

The Group’s equity structure consists of net debt (debt broken down in Note 8, less cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities, broken down in Note 3) and the Group’s equity.

The Management periodically review the Company's equity structure. As part of this review, the Management
consider the cost of capital, asset liquidity, the risks associated to each class of equity, and the Group’s net
debt-to-equity ratio. As at December 31, 2024 and 2023, the net debt-to-equity ratio is as follows:

Consolidated Parent Company
12/31/24 | 12/31/23 12/31/24 | 12/31/23

Loans, financing and debentures 2,066,202 1,897,737 1,990,691 1,897,737
Cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities (761,270) (753,588) (649,427) (705,076)
Net debt 1,304,932 1,144,149 1,341,264 1,192,661
Equity 3,605,375 3,732,221 3,586,009 3,729,945
Net debt-to-equity ratio 36.2% 30.7% 37.4% 32.0%

The Group is not subject to any external debt requirements, except for the contractual obligations described
in Note 8 (e).
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Market risk

The Company conducted a sensitivity analysis for financial instruments exposed to changes in interest rates
and financial indicators. The sensitivity analysis was developed considering the exposure to changes in the
indexes of financial assets and financial liabilities, taking into account the net exposure of these financial
instruments as at December 31, 2024, as if such balances were outstanding during the entire 2024, as detailed
below:

Exposed net financial asset and exposed financial liability, net: the change in the rate estimated for 2025
(“probable scenario”) compared to the effective rate for the year of 2024, multiplied by the exposed net
balance as at December 31, 2024, was used to calculate the financial impact, had the probable scenario
materialized in 2024. For the impact estimates, we took into consideration a decrease in financial assets and
an increase in financial liabilities at the rate estimated for 2025 of 25% for scenario | and 50% for scenario II.

) Total
. . ) . Net exposed Annual rate Estimated )
Financial Financial ) ) Rates changesfor | estimated
financial (asset) effective for annual rate for 5 .
each scenario financial

liability 2023 2025 (*) impact

asset liability

Probable scenario:

DI/Selic 499,289 (1,966,960) (1,467,671) 10.78% 15.41% (i) 4.63% (67,953)
IPCA 1,807,944 (815,552) 992,392 4.83% 4.39% (ii) -0.44% (4,367)
Savings - (77,699) (77,699) 6.43% 8.02% (ii) 1.59% (1,235)
(73,555)

Scenario l:
DI/Selic 499,289 (1,966,960) (1,467,671) 10.78% 19.26% 8.48% (124,459)
IPCA 1,807,944 (815,552) 992,392 4.83% 3.29% -1.54% (15,283)
Savings - (77,699) (77,699) 6.43% 10.03% 3.60% (2,797)
(142,539)

Scenario ll:
Dl/Selic 499,289 (1,966,960) (1,467,671) 10.78% 23.12% 12.34% (181,111)
IPCA 1,807,944 (815,552) 992,392 4.83% 2.20% -2.63% (26,100)
Savings - (77,699) (77,699) 6.43% 12.04% 5.61% (4,359)
(211,570)

(i) Data obtained from B3 website.
(i) Data obtained from Banco Central website.

As required by IFRS 7 (CPC40) — financial instruments: disclosure, management believes that the estimated
annual rates presented in the probable scenario above reflect the reasonable possible scenario for 2025.

Liquidity risk

The Executive Board of Finance is responsible for the management of the liquidity risk and periodically
reviews the cash flow projections, using stress scenarios and assesses the possible funding requirements,
maintaining a balanced debt profile, in line with the equity structure and the indebtedness to be

maintained by the Group.

The cash flows of the financial liabilities based on the nearest date on which the Group should settle the
related obligations was based on the projections for each index on December 31, 2024, by maturity, are as
follows:

a7
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Consolidated:

Floatingrates liabilities 483,526 784,919 679,145 802,653 2,750,243
Fixed rates liabilities 32,700 37,347 38,005 869,720 977,772
Non-interest bearingliabilities 111,453 13,397 - - 124,850
Total 627,679 835,663 717,150 1,672,373 3,852,865
Parent Company:

Floatingrates liabilities 419,296 765,177 663,103 724,662 2,572,238
Fixed rates liabilities 24,356 25,340 25,340 247,223 322,259
Non-interest bearing liabilities 476,083 2,443 - - 478,526
Total 919,735 792,960 688,443 971,885 3,373,023

Credit risk

It refers to the risk of a counterparty failing to meet its contractual obligations, leading the Group to incur in
financial losses. The Group is exposed to credit risks related to:

i) Accounts receivable from customers: to mitigate this risk, the Group adopts the policy of dealing only
with counterparties that have credit capacity and obtain sufficient guarantees. The company records
allowance for expected credit loss as mentioned in Note 2.2 (i).

ii) Financial investments: to mitigate default risk, the Group maintains its investments in financial
institutions with a rating above 'A'.
20.Guarantees
Except for the guarantees described in Notes 6 and 8, the Group does not collateralize any of its assets and is not
the guarantor of any other types of third-party transactions.
21.Noncash transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Company and its subsidiaries conducted the following
financing and investment transactions that did not involve cash, and, therefore, are not reflected in the statement
of cash flows:

_ R 2 Company

Interest capitalization (note 8 (d)) 71,287 84,460 71,287 84,460
Right-of-use (remeasurement of CPC 06 (R2)) (note 13) 10,144 9,941 354 1,884
Right-of-use (additions) (note 13) 50,327 - - -
Property Additions for Investment (Exchanges and Accounts Payable for Land) 135,999 (48,300) 221,563 11,700
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22.Insurance

The Company has an insurance policy that considers primarily risk concentration and their materiality, taking into
consideration the nature of its business, and advice of the insurance brokers. As at December 31, 2024, insurance
coverage is as follows:

Insured
Type of coverage
amount

Insures, during the project construction period, any compensation
for damages caused to the construction, such as fire, lightning,

Engineeringriskinsurance . o i 900,031
theft, and other specific coverage of facilities and assemblies on
the insured site.
Insures the coverage of moral damage suffered by the compan

Civil liability (officers) : g g v pany 50,000
officers (D&O)
Insures the coverage of moral damage suffered by the compan

Civil liability (events) CoHisl = v N 1,000
events participants.

Group life and personal injury  Insures payment of compensation related to involuntary personal 55 067

insurance injuries to employees, contractors, interns, and officers. !
Insures payment of compensation to the Company for covered

Corporate insurance events occurringin leased commercial properties, events such as 120,000

electric damages, fire, lightning, windstorm, etc.

Insures to the policyholder the payment ofany disputed amount in
Legal guarantee insurance full related to any lawsuit filed with any court or threatened. The 4,062
contracted guarantee replaces escrow deposits.

Guarantees the fulfillment of the obligation, by the Company, whether
Barterinsurance financial (payment of due installments) or delivery of GLA after the 77,889
completion of the agreed work, to the exchanger.
Free energy market guarantee Guarantees tothe energy supplier payments agreed in contracts

. 756
insurance annually.

23.Approval of the financial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors, as recommended by the Company’s audit
Committee on February 5, 2025.
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